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CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT
BV 80

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of China New City Commercial Development Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), |
am pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 (“the year under review”).

REVIEW OF RESULTS

During the year under review, the revenue of the Group was approximately
RMB1,956 million. Our property business reported sales of nearly
RMB1,535 million. The gross profit of the Group was approximately
RMB778 million. The profit of the Group was approximately RMB45
million.

During the year under review, the Group recorded a profit attributable to
owners of the parent of approximately RMB26 million; and the earnings
per share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent was
approximately RMB1.3 cents. The board of directors of the Company (the
“Board”) do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the
year under review.
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MARKET AND BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2019, the Chinese economy maintained steady growth with a year-on-
year gross domestic product (“GDP”) growth rate of 6.1%. As affected
by factors such as Sino-US trade war, accelerated aging population,
and weakening domestic demand consumption, the Group continued
to adhere to the consistent principle of prudent investment and sound
operation. Under the key tone of national policy of “houses for habitation
not for speculation”, a number of policies were introduced to maintain
regulation and control over real estate industry. On the one hand, the
Group sought to strengthen its main real estate business and to improve
its diversified industries; and on the other hand, the Group integrated
various business platforms to create synergy through the coordinated
development among industries. Driven by China’s market policy, the
Group will continue to serve the needs of human beings for a better life
and promote new breakthroughs in the Group’s performance in order to
achieve better performance.

1. Property Sales

Located in the prime location of Qianjiang Century City, IOCe Jiarun
Mansion Project (“Jiarun Mansion”) is the Plot A3 project of
Hangzhou International Office Center (IOC”) in the core location of
Qianjiang Century City. It is a large complex comprising furnished
studio flats, luxury and spacious flat floor apartments, commercial
streets, hotels, international kindergartens and training centers for
children.
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F i
During the year under review, Jiarun Mansion at Plot A3 recorded LIEFEERN, A3 RE = HE D H H—E
good sales performance by launching a tower of fine-decorated BREEEFTPAEREATRE MA
apartments with new Chinese-style show flats. The Plot A3.1#2 EERASIHETEEBTREEER 78
was currently under fine-decoration construction by the Group and AT FA2020F 6 AR FIA SR 2T AL E
was expected that centralized delivery will be made at the end of HERHAETRIBENEHEERATD
June in 2020. The Group believes that Jiarun Mansion could bring 2 MREmAEFgE -
a stable revenue of property sales and higher profitability to the
Group.
In addition, Xixi New City Project and Xixi Manhattan Project, BN EEBBAE - EJPERRMMN AR
which are in prime location and close proximity to Xixi Wetland SREL I A RRR R TR $T i T 1 B A
and Hangzhou Future Science and Technology City, were delivered EEWR\IEE FEERN  KARNEEREE
successively and became the main driving force for the growth of FERNYMEHERABROEES N -

the Group’s property sales revenue during the year under review.

China New Cify Commercial Development Limited
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Property Leasing

At present, the Group’s revenue from the property leasing increase
steadily as compared with the same period last year, mainly from
Highlong Plaza in Xiaoshan, Hangzhou and Zhong An Intime
City in Yuyao. During the year under review, with 24 newly-joined
brands, the occupancy rate of the shopping mall of Highlong Plaza
reached over 94%. The adjustments to business strategy were
completed successfully, which stimulated rental performance. With
the commercial elements and the theme “Happy Time”, the plaza
caters for children’s food and beverages, living and services. By
adding mainstream IP and enhancing differentiation and experience
elements, it effectively increased visitor traffic and promoted the
spending in the plaza. The occupancy rate of Zone B in Zhong An
Times Square, Yuyao (“Zone B”) was more than 90% with sound
operation. During the year under review, Zone B was carried out
a commercial street reconstruction plan. From street lighting and
scene creation, to market launch and enhancement of amusement
facilities for kids, the “Happy Time 24H Style Street” was
created, where Zone B was a multifunctional and comprehensive
commercial pedestrian street that integrating catering, leisure and
entertainment, and living facilities. The Group believes that it will
continue to contribute income to property leasing in the future.
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Hotel Operations

During the year under review, the Group’s Huaibei Bright Hotel and
Hangzhou Qiandao Lake Bright Resort Hotel operated well, with
revenue increased by nearly 26.9% year on year.

In addition, Ningbo Bright Hotel (“Ningbo Bright”) was majestically
opened on 1 October 2019. Ningbo Bright is a luxury business
hotel proudly presented by the Group that was built according to
the five-star standard. The hotel is in an excellent location which
is in proximity to Yuyao North High Speed Rail Station. It became
a leading hotel in its area for conferences and dining with higher
than expected occupancy rate within 3 months of the opening,
bringing considerable revenue to the Group. Zhejiang Bright Hotel
Management Co. Ltd. and Meituan Hotel entered into a strategic
cooperation agreement. Through cooperation, Meituan Hotel will
enhance its core competitiveness by means of brand building,
system building and data analysis, thereby driving multi-segment
revenue from hotel accommodation, catering, conferences and
entertainment.
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ing Business

For the commerce and real estate business, the Group
further adjusted its business model and optimized its
operating structure, and launched its new child-oriented
business pattern on the basis of the traditional business
model. The Group focused on serving children in cities and
integrating child health, child education, child entertainment
and child sports to build a diversified and intelligentized body
of comprehensive functions in order to inject new impetus to
the development of the child-related industry.

Maggie & Rose, the parent-child family club (“Club”) carried
out the IP upgrade from original graphic cartoon images
to lively cartoon characters, vivid stage shows and brand
derivatives in order to further create brand value. On 17
January 2020, a charity fundraising dinner, “An Enchanting
Evening with Lang Lang”, with the theme of “Music Changes
Life, Music Changes the World” was held at The Peninsula
Hong Kong. Adult guests were immersed in the beautiful
music atmosphere set by Maggie & Rose. The next day,
a concert named “Jaap’s Beethoven 1 | Lang Lang” was
successfully held at the Concert Hall of Hong Kong Cultural
Centre. Maggie & Rose was the designated sponsor of this
Lang Lang concert’s finale, hence more guests came to
know the Maggie & Rose brand.
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(2) Film and Entertainment (Z) R

The Group currently has 4 cinemas. Chengdu Cinema was AEBE BRI Z A 4R - BERR
grandly opened on 9 January 2020. It set an outstanding WR2020F1 Ao B AR E MES
record as the number of customers received exceeded ARBEFERSRZBE1EAN EF
10,000 and the total box office was over 240,000 in the first MEBRMAE - BI T TEHA-AE
weekend of the opening. The fim and television revenue AR 2 W B 2 (A HR 38 R 3 42%,
of the Group grew by nearly 42%, and the cumulative B EGRERHERAFRESRA
number of customers received increased by roughly 46%, 46% KR ERBEZ N ENIT
both compared to the same period last year. In the future, ERiEmE EEED BEREIER
more cinemas will be opened to build regional layout and EREF S B -

operational advantages, giving play to regional scale effect
and brand superiority.

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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ENTERPRISE SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

The Group actively participated in social welfare activities and established
Zhongan Charity Foundation (“Zhongan Charity”) to focus on charitable
activities. During the year under review, the Group co-organized a charity
auction with Zhongan Charity, and all charity proceeds from the auction
were donated to Zhongan Charity for the project fund under the “Flower
Project — Caring and support for forsaken children” to provide the left-
behind children with care and warmth from multiple aspects such as
economy, life and mind. On 28 January 2020, the Group and Zhongan
Charity jointly established a RMB10 million fund specialized for prevention
and control of COVID-19, with an aim to support the prevention and
control of the pandemic in Hubei, Zhejiang and other areas seriously
affected by the COVID-19 in China. According to the actual needs in the
seriously affected areas, medical supplies including masks and protective
clothing will be purchased and provided, thereby offering necessary
help to front line medical staff and other relevant workers combating the
pandemic.
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PROSPECTS AND DEVELOPMENT
STRATEGIES

Looking forward to 2020, maintaining the “stability” of China’s real estate
market will still remain as the top priority. Specifically, maintaining the
continuity and stability of policy to prevent drastic fluctuations of real
estate market, and a full implementation of “Policy by City”, which in turn
will be conducive to achieving long-term control objectives of stabilizing
land and housing prices and maintaining market expectations, thus stable
and healthy development of the real estate market will be attained. The
Chinese economy is under downward pressure; however, the Chinese
government stepped up its efforts on the “Six Stability” policy, that
is “stabilizing employment, finance, foreign trade, foreign investment,
domestic investment, and expectations” over the years, which achieved
significant results in the past year, and GDP has maintained steady growth
throughout the year. The impact of the novel coronavirus outbreak on the
real estate market in China may be short-lived. Home buyers are merely
delaying purchases rather than completely putting their home purchase
plans on hold. As the fight against the virus is ongoing across the country,
the demand is expected to pick up when the epidemic is brought under
control.

China New City Commercial Development Limited
2019 Annual Report
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The Group remains optimistic about future prospects. Adhering to the
corporate mission of “creating new urban life” and the strategic guiding
principle of “focusing on the demand of the public”, the Group further
developed its cultural education, health care, fim and entertainment,
and cultural leisure tourism segments based on its existing business and
sophisticated development and investment concepts, and extended their

presence to the whole Yangtze River Delta region.

Among numerous developing projects, the International Office Center
(the “IOC”) project remained a key development project of the Group.
The completed Jiarun Mansion in Lot A3 had been generating record-
breaking sales for the Group. The development of the I0OC (Lot A2)
was commenced at the end of 2018. The IOC project was expected to
continue to drive the property sales revenue of the Group, thus to assure
the steady growth in the Group’s revenue from property sales in the
future.

Highlong Plaza and its surroundings will be built into commercial
underground space, with business elites and surrounding residential
residents as the core customer group. It will integrate three functions
of business center + subway hub + tourist attraction into one to create
a space for stylish experiences that comprising the themes of leisure,
entertainment, music and trends. The mall will comprehensively enhance
the brand influence of “Happy Time”, and will integrate with IP to form a
theme series. The Times Square in Yuyao will connect shopping malls,
commercial streets in Zone B and the Central Grand Plaza; and will
E introduce food trunks, street markets, outdoor decoration, and children’s
: spbrts and entertainment facilities so as to create night culture at the
Plaza by delicacy, beauty and fun, and thus attract more visitors. Xixi New
' Clty will be transformed into an innovative and entrepreneurial industrial
park with high-end sophisticated future industries as its core. There will
be four major centers, including “service center, office center, R&D center,
and production center” + future incubation space in pursuit of pioneering
and innovation in business sectors.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude
to the continuing support and trust of the shareholders and business
partners as well as the dedicated efforts of all the staff.

Shi Kancheng
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BEWE

As at 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H

LAND RESERVE

As at 31 December 2019, the total GFA of land reserves of the Group was
approximately 2,229,469 sg.m..

The following table sets forth a summary of the Group’s property interests

1 1 3 fis

R2019F12A318  AEBM T EBE 2 BREE
E & 40 /52,229,469 J7 3K o

TREGANEBEEE2019F12 A31 B ERERS

as of 31 December 2019: e
Investment Properties REWE
Project Location Property type GFA
HE 1t 36 MEER BEEEE
sQ. m.

Investment Properties
REWE
Guomao Building Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province Integrated Commercial Complex 12,225
BEXE LA M EEL ]
Integrated Service Center Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province Integrated Commercial Complex 5,913
AR O HTAERM BEGAR
Highlong Plaza Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province Integrated Commercial Complex 64,626
B &% LA M EEL k]
Landscape Garden Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province Integrated Commercial Complex 8,781
1Y) ¥ HTERM BEGAR
Hidden Dragon Bay Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province Integrated Commercial Complex 17,814
B LA M BEEAR
La Vie Shanghai Commercial 341
REEH lss! GRS
International Office Center Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province Integrated Commercial Complex 84,848
IR A R L LA M BEEAR
Zhong An e Intime City Yuyao, Zhejiang Province Integrated Commercial Complex 92,489
R o BRI HTAE R BEGAR
Zhong An Times Square (Phase |) Yuyao, Zhejiang Province Integrated Commercial Complex 2,160
RLRERES (—H) LA Rk EETEE ]
Zhong An Times Square (Phase Il) Yuyao, Zhejiang Province Integrated Commercial Complex 7,274
FRBRES( —8) WTAE R EES N
Xixi New City Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province Commercial 599
PRI T LA M EES

297,070

China New City Commercial Development Limited

2019 Annual Report



MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT AND/OR SALE
FRAR BRI I BB B A T 3

Project GFA of
Project Location Property type Site area GFA and land bank
T fEE
HE 1 B MEBEE GEE BHEEEEE BEER
sg. m. sg. m. sQ. m.
Projects Under Development
B hIEE
Zhong An Times Square Yuyao, Zhejiang Integrated Commercial 65,159 305,473 138,276
(Phase ) Province Complex
RRBRES (—H) HTE R [EE3EN
Zhong An Times Square Yuyao, Zhejiang Integrated Commercial 71,519 322,912 115,837
(Phase II) Province Complex
RRBRES (ZH) HTAE R [EES N
Hidden Dragon Bay Hangzhou, Zhejiang Integrated Commercial 89,173 241,695 84,708
Province Complex
Bl LA AN [EESEN
Ningbo Cixi Land Ningbo, Zhejiang Integrated Commercial 49,804 159,610 159,510
Province Complex
EREE IR MIEER [EEIEN
Chaoyang Yinzuo Hangzhou, Zhejiang Integrated Commercial 10,541 53,033 3,024
Province Complex
FARS IR 2 AT ERM [EESEY
International Office Center Hangzhou, Zhejiang Integrated Commercial 92,610 798,795 570,939
(Plot A) Province Complex
BRI AT L (AtIR) ATAERM HEGAE
Xixi New City Hangzhou, Zhejiang Office/Commercial 39,703 83,391 31,596
Province
PRI HTATM HE/NY S
Xixi Manhattan Hangzhou, Zhejiang Integrated Commercial 24,534 109,173 34,012
Province Complex
FESRIE ATAETM BEGAR
Hangzhou Linan Tuankou Land Hangzhou, Zhejiang Commercial/Hotel 37,500 63,502 63,502
Province
M ER %0 E 4 3 ATAETM EEV
Projects contracted to be
acquired
BETAKFRBER
International Office Center Hangzhou, Zhejiang Integrated Commercial 207,390 1,098,065 1,098,065
(Plots B and C) Province Complex
BP0 (B R R CHER) AT AN BEGAE
2,229,469

PR ERERAT
—hEER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI W i B2 A

AWARDS AND HONOURS

Awarding Institution: Award: Awardee:
Asia Pacific Hotel Alliance Asia Pacific (China) Most Popular ~ Zhejiang Bright Hotel
Hotel Brands Management
Company
{21st Century Business Herald )~ Golden-Pillow Awards of “Best ~ The Somerset
and (Business Travel) New Serviced Apartments in Hangzhou
East China in 2019” International Office
Center Service
Apartment

BUSINESS REVIEW

The year of 2019 presented rather involved macroeconomic situation for
property policies to evolve. In further response to the keynote of “housing
is for living in, not for speculation”, and to carry on the philosophy of
implementing measures adjusted to the scale of cities, local governments
have made tougher effort on market surveillance to curb housing
speculation so that a reasonable demand for housing is to be met.
Specifically, local governments restructured housing supply at supply
side, promoted tenancy market in its full swing and launched houses with
joint property rights and other affordable housing in a rewarding direction
to an effective supply. Despite of less favorable market conditions, the
Group managed to achieve still desirable results in contract sales with its
unremitting effort against hardships and challenges. This fully embodied
the Company’s leading strategic vision, accurate investment layout as well
as prudent and flexible operation strategy.

Outlook for 2020

Looking forward to 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 will have a short-
term impact on the Chinese economy. The revenue from the service
industries such as catering, retail, transportation, and tourism declined
significantly. As the global epidemic spreads, trade is affected and
resulted in a weaker foreign demand. In order to achieve this year’s
economic goals, the Chinese government will adopt a more proactive
monetary and fiscal policy to increase investment, promote consumption

and stabilize foreign demand.
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The COVID-19 will also have a short-term impact on sales, development,
investment, and cash flow of the real estate industry. However, the
financial policies concerning of the real estate industry will also remain
stable, individual housing loan will increase steadily, and there is room
for downward adjustments of mortgage rate. It is expected that market
transactions throughout the year will stabilize following some moderation.

The outbreak will also have a certain impact on the Group, and the
specific impact depends on the duration and development trend of the
epidemic situation. We continue to strengthen cash flow management,
speed up repayments and increase capital turnover rate. By optimizing
the operation adjustment, we set to refine and strengthen the
management of project timeline.

DEVELOPMENT OF MAJOR PROJECTS
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province

Highlong Plaza

It is a large-scale integrated commercial complex located in Shanyin
Road, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, comprising hotels, shopping malls
and offices, and is the flagship project of the Company. The total site
area of the project is 30,933 sg.m. and the total GFA thereof is 171,071
sg.m.. The project was completed in January 2009, and has been in good
function to date.

International Office Center (“IOC”)

IOC is a large-scale integrated commercial complex located in Qianjiang
Century City ($5THE4230) ,
serviced apartments, shopping malls, hotels and offices. The total site
area of Plot A3 is 92,610 sq.m. and total GFA is approximately 798,795
sg.m.. The Group holds a total GFA of 84,848 sqg.m. for leasing.

Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, comprising

Xixi New City

It is located in Jiangcun Unit, Xihu District, Hangzhou and is in proximity
to Xixi Wetland. It is the only classic project integrating “Urban Prosperity”
and “Ecological Tranquility” in Xixi. The total site area of the project is
39,703 sg.m. and total GFA is 83,391 sg.m.. The project commencing
construction in 2017 is an integrated commercial complex comprising
offices, serviced apartments and shops were delivered in 2019.
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Xixi Manhattan

It is a commercial real estate project located in Yuhang District, Hangzhou,
with GFA of 109,173 sg.m.. The project was open for sale in late August
2017 and part of the serviced apartments were delivered in 2018.

Chaoyang Yinzuo

It is the commercial portion of the Chaoyang community parcel, Xiaoshan
District, Hangzhou with a total site area of 10,541 sg.m. and total GFA of
53,033 sg.m. The project mainly includes serviced apartments and shops,
and pre-sale was commenced in 2016, and the serviced apartments were
delivered in 2018.

Hangzhou Qiandao Lake Bright Resort Hotel

It is a hotel project located in the southwest of Qiandaohu Town (F
E#3%E) , Chunan County, Hangzhou, with total GFA of 46,691 sqg.m..
The hotel is built adjacent to Thousand-Islet Lake Passengers Port
which enjoys a beautiful lake view and natural habitat. This project was
completed and commenced business in the first half of 2017.

Yuyao, Zhejiang Province

Zhong An Times Square

It is a large-scale integrated commercial project located in Yuyao,
Zhejiang Province with estimated total GFA of 628,385 sg.m.. The
development of project is completed by two phases, comprising hotels,
shops, residences, serviced apartments, shopping malls and offices. The
construction of phase Il of this project was completed in 2016, and phase
| was completed and delivered in 2018.

Huaibei, Anhui Province

Huaibei Bright Hotel

It is a hotel project in Huaibei, Anhui province, with a site area of 60,768
sg.m. and total GFA of 67,061 sg.m.. This project has fully completed and
commenced business by the end of 2017.
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Sales Review SHE D A

ELOBEFEN BERRXMNDEZEBREE
S EE 4 A A R #1,534,552,0007T (20184 : 49 A&

For the year under review, the recognized sales of properties sold and
delivered was approximately RMB1,534,552,000 (2018: approximately
RMB1,578,447,000). The recognized GFA delivered of properties AR #1,578,447,0007T) - B HRH B R W3
was approximately 58,666 sq.m.. In addition, the sales of investment  #&% £&E 1& %) /358,666 F J7 K ° i &1 - 1R 1% B %
properties of approximately RMB51,932,000 (2018: approximately & &tER] HERE WL A K H51,932,0007T
RMB323,301,000) was not included in the sales of properties in (20184 : #) AR#323,301,0007C ) I ARFH A

accordance with International Accounting Standards. HE -
Proceeds from
disposal of
Sales of investment
properties properties
HEREWE
MIEHE FSME
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(ARBBET) (AR¥KBET)
International Office Centre 23 /NS 240.2 9.7
Yuyao Zhong An Times Square Phase || RIERLHNRES 8 104.3 -
Highlong Plaza 1B/ &% - 422
Yuyao Zhong An Times Square Phase | FRBLTRHRES 54.2 -
Chaoyang Yinzuo RS IR 44.9 -
Xixi Manhattan PR ERTE 188.9 -
Xixi New City PR FT T 902.1 -
1,534.6 51.9
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2019 Contracted Sales

For the year under review, the contracted sales area of the Group was
approximately 46,069 sqg.m. (2018: approximately 71,906 sg.m.) and
contracted sales revenue was approximately RMB1,040,700,000 (2018:
approximately RMB1,670,300,000). Details of the contracted sales of the

2019 MEREHE

REBEFEN AEENERBEERN A
46,069 77 2K (20184 : 49 /71,906 F 5 3K) + &
[E $8 & W A 49 & A R #1,040,700,0007T (2018
£ AR #1,670,300,0007T) - TREAMAR

major projects are as below: HEFFIBIT :
Contracted Contracted
sales area sales revenue
EEBEER EREEKRA
(sg.m.) (RMB million)
(F7K) (ARBBHET)
Jia Run Mansion SN = 14,998 568.1
Yuyao Zhong An Times Square Phase | AR LEBERES 2 7,557 57.1
Yuyao Zhong An Times Square Phase |l RIERLHENRES 8 10,166 118.3
Chaoyang Yinzuo 55 0 i 1,897 475
Binhai Commercial Plaza BEEEES 4,999 62.8
Xixi Manhattan AEESME 1,666 54.6
Xixi New City PRI T 2,097 90.9
Others Hith 2,689 41.4
Total @t 46,069 1,040.7

Hotel Operation B RS E

There are four hotels of the Group that are currently under operation,
being Holiday Inn Hangzhou Xiaoshan, Hangzhou Qiandao Lake
Bright Resort Hotel, Ningbo Bright Hotel and Huaibei Bright Hotel.
The hotel operation of the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
RMB141,270,000 (2018: approximately RMB111,328,000), representing
an increase of approximately 27%, during the year under review and the

hotel occupancy rate was approximately 51% (2018: approximately 58%).
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Leasing Business

The current leasing income of the Group mainly comes from Highlong
Plaza, IOC and Yuyao Zhong An Times Square in operation, including
office and shopping malls. The total revenue from leasing business for
the year under review was approximately RMB175,412,000, representing
an increase of approximately 9% from approximately RMB160,369,000
recorded in the year of 2018. The average occupancy rate of leasing
properties (calculated by dividing total lease area by total area available for
lease) was approximately 93% (2018: approximately 96%).

Land Reserve

As of 31 December 2019, the total GFA of land reserves held for
development and/or sale of the Group was approximately 2,299,469
sg.m..

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Revenue

The Group recorded consolidated revenue of approximately
RMB1,955,853,000 (2018: approximately RMB1,924,619,000) for the
year under review, representing a slight increase of 1.6%.

Revenue from the property sales amounted approximately
RMB1,5634,552,000 (2018: approximately RMB1,578,447,000),
representing a slight decrease of 2.8%. The investment property sales of
approximately RMB51,932,000 were not included in the Group’s revenue
and gross profit in accordance with international accounting standards for
the year under review.
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The revenue from property rental amounted to approximately
RMB175,412,000 (2018: approximately RMB160,369,000), representing
an increase of 9.4%. The hotel operation recorded a revenue of
approximately RMB141,270,000 (2018: approximately RMB111,328,000),
representing an increase of 26.9%. Such an increase was due to the
continuing improvement of revenue brought by the operations of Qiandao
Lake Bright Resort Hotel and Huabei Bright Hotel.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit of the Group for the year under review amounted to
approximately RMB778,236,000 (2018: approximately RMB340,491,000),
representing an increase of 128.6%. Gross profit margin was 39.8%
(2018: 17.7%), increased by 22.1 percentage points. The significant
increase in gross profit margin was mainly due to the increase in revenue
generated from the core commercial property development projects with
high profit-margin, hence gross profit increased substantially for the year
under review. Moreover, the revenue and gross profit of the hotel segment
of the Group had a continuing improvement.

Other Income and Gains

For the year under review, other income and gains amounted to
approximately RMB68,460,000 (2018: approximately RMB18,905,000),
representing a significant increase of 262.1%. This was mainly due to an
increase in bank interest income and fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

Selling and Distribution Costs

For the year under review, selling and distribution expenses amounted to
approximately RMB137,603,000 (2018: approximately RMB138,519,000),
representing a slight decrease of 0.7%. These expenses were incurred
in sales commission, advertising and promotional expenses of the
investment property sold during the year under review.
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Administrative Expenses

For the year under review, administrative expenses amounted to
approximately RMB184,836,000 (2018: approximately RMB198,455,000),
representing a decrease of 6.9%. Such decrease was principally due to
exclusion of one-off professional fees incurred in 2018.

Other Expenses and Losses

For the year under review, other expenses and losses amounted to
approximately RMB3,069,000 (2018: approximately RMB40,099,000),
representing a drop of 92.3%. The drop was mainly due to exclusion of
loss on disposal of investment properties incurred in 2018.

Finance Costs

For the year under review, finance costs was approximately
RMB154,960,000 (2018: approximately RMB110,330,000), representing
an increase of 40.5%. The increase was mainly due to an increase in
interest on bank borrowing and lease liabilities.

Profit for the Year

For the year under review, the profit of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB45,289,000 (2018: loss of approximately
RMB221,997,000).The turnaround from loss to profit for the year under
review was mainly due to higher gross profit margin generated from
Xixi New City and Xixi Manhattan and fair value gain upon transfer to
investment properties.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Acquisition of Further interest in Maggie and
Rose

On 27 May 2019, Zhong An Education (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group and an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of Zhong An
Group Limited (“Zhong An”)) entered into the share purchase agreement
with eight several individual sellers to acquire approximately 31.56% of
the equity interest of Maggie and Rose Limited for the consideration of
GBP8,840,090 (equivalent to approximately HK$90,800,000).

For each of Zhong An and the Group, as the highest of the applicable
percentage ratios in respect of the acquisition (whether on a stand-
alone basis or when aggregating with the existing effective shareholding
of approximately 14.96% in Maggie and Rose Limited held by the
Group acquired in 2018) calculated under Rule 14.07 of the Listing
Rules exceeds 5% but was less than 25%, the acquisition constituted
a disclosable transaction for each of Zhong An and the Group and was
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements but was exempt
from the shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules.

Upon completion of the acquisition on 6 September 2019, Maggie and
Rose Limited has been consolidated into the financial statements of the
Zhong An and the Group and treated as a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
Zhong An and the Group. For the details of the acquisition, please refer to
the Company announcement dated 28 May 2019.
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Acquisition of Further Equity Interest in
Zhejiang Xinnongdou

Reference is made to the joint announcements of Zhong An Group
Limited and the Company dated 21 August 2017 and 29 August 2017 in
relation to Zhejiang Zhongan Shenglong Commercial Company Limited
(“Zhong An Shenglong”) (an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company) acquiring 19.85% of the entire equity interests in Zhejiang
Xinnongdou Industrial Company Limited (“Zhejiang Xinnongdou”)
from Hangzhou Oriental Culture Tourism Group Company Limited
(“Hangzhou Oriental”); and the joint announcement of Zhong An and
the Company dated 20 July 2018 and the circular of each of Zhong An
and the Company both dated 30 November 2018 in relation to Zhong
An Shenglong further acquiring 22.65% of the entire equity interest in
Zhejiang Xinnongdou from Hangzhou Oriental.

On 7 January 2019, Zhong An Shenglong completed the acquisition of
22.65% equity interests in Zhejiang Xinnongdou from Hangzhou Oriental
at the consideration which was satisfied by the issue of 178,280,000
consideration shares by the Company. However, Hangzhou Oriental had
filed a lawsuit against the Company to cancel the transaction. As at the
date of this annual report, the lawsuit is still in progress.

Save as disclosed above, during the year under review, there was no
other material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or associated
companies of the Company.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

Cash Position and Fund Available

As at 31 December 2019, the total cash and bank balances of the
Group were approximately RMB431,686,000 (2018: approximately
RMB625,322,000), comprising cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB408,493,000 (2018: approximately RMB548,907,000)
and restricted cash of approximately RMB23,193,000 (2018:
approximately RMB76,415,000).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s total available financial resources
amounted to approximately RMB12,249,955,000 being the undrawn
borrowing facilities of approximately RMB7,793,850,000 and the
borrowings of approximately RMB4,456,105,000.
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Borrowings

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank and other borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB4,456,105,000 (2018: approximately
RMB2,968,085,000), comprising bank loans of approximately
RMB3,646,105,000 (2018: approximately RMB2,158,085,000) and
other loans of approximately RMB810,000,000 (2018: approximately
RMB810,000,000).

The maturity profile of borrowings were as follows:

B
R2019F12A31H AEERTER L EM
BERH B ARE4L456,105,0005C (20184 :
4 N R #2,968,085,0007T) * BIERITERL
A NR#3,646,105,0007C (20184 : Y A R
#2,158,085,000 o) R EMBERLH BARE
810,000,0007T (20184 : #7 A FR %#6810,000,000
JT) e

BRABFEEBERETIMT :

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

20195 20184

12H31H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARBTIT

Within 1 year or on demand —FANIZREK 351,860 922,460
Over 1 year but within 2 years ZR—FEBLIRME 948,298 320,500
Over 2 years but within 5 years EQiN KX ISR A D 2,065,642 1,565,000
Over 5 years AFEUE 1,090,305 160,125
4,456,105 2,968,085

For bank and other borrowings, except for certain short term bank and
other borrowings amounting to approximately RMB2,390,000,000 (2018:
approximately RMB1,010,000,000) that bear interest at fixed rates, all bank
loans bear interest at floating rates. The Group’s bank and other borrowings
bear effective interest at rates ranging from 5.15% to 10% per annum as
at 31 December 2019 (2018: 0.9% to 8.2%). The Group’s objective is to
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of bank and other borrowings.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B P o S 3 B

Pledge of Assets EEEA

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank and other borrowings 2019512831 R - REBRITEHR M EMER
of approximately RMB4,456,105,000 (2018: approximately #7743 A #4,456,105,0007C (20184 : #) A R #&
RMB2,968,085,000) were secured by the Group’s pledge of assets as ~ 2,968,085,0007T) FA AR S H LA T & A& (U :
follows:

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R2019%F 720184
12A31H 12H31H8
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Investment properties S IES 1,317,502 1,238,247
Properties under development FEE R Y% 124,462 753,053
Completed properties held for sale FIEHED R T 824,359 1,524,606
Property and equipment I EYNEEL 624,560 498,179
Restricted cash SR HIR e 13,974 5,033
2,904,857 4,019,118

Net Current Assets and Current Ratio ERBEERARBLLER

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s net current assets amounted  F2019F12A31H  AEE 2 FRBEELN B A
to approximately RMB1,773,345,000 (2018: net current liabilities of K #1,773,345,0007T (20185 - F R E B EL =B
approximately RMB257,828,000). As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s A R#267,828,0007T) * 201912831 H » A
current ratio, calculated as current assets divided by current liabilities, was B Z R E (RABEERARB B EFTH)
approximately 1.59 (2018: 0.94). %) /51.59(20184F : 0.94) °

Gearing Ratio EXREELE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s gearing ratio (as measured by net 2019 12H431H - REBE 2 E AR A FEH X (1%
debt to total equity) was 66% (2018: 40%). Net debt is calculated as total B F B A @ =5t 8 ) /866% (20185 :
interest-bearing borrowings less cash, cash equivalents and restricted ~ 40% ) ° B FHIRET EEFRAER S HesE
cash. BY RZREREFTE -

AT AL EEERAT
Zz-nggm 29




30

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Cost of Borrowings

For the year under review, the total cost of borrowings of the Group was
approximately RMB218,936,000 (2018: approximately RMB198,985,000).
In addition, for the year under review, interests with an amount of
approximately RMB79,010,000 (2018: approximately RMB88,655,000)
were capitalized. The decrease was mainly attributable to the increase in
funds recovered from projects, which represented less time of borrowings
of the Group.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group principally operates in PRC and the revenue, operating cost
and borrowings were mainly denominated in RMB. As a result, the Group
has minimal exposure to exchange rate fluctuation. The interest rates for
the Group’s borrowings were floating and fixed. Upward fluctuations in
interest rates will increase the cost of borrowings.

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial
management. Cash is generally placed in short-term deposits mostly
denominated in RMB. The Group does not use any financial instruments
for hedging purpose for the year under review.

GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s contingent liabilities was
approximately RMB258,800,000 (2018: approximately RMB332,636,000),
which were mainly the guarantees provided by the Group in favour
of certain banks for the grant of mortgage loans to purchasers of the
Group’s properties.
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COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s commitments for property
development expenditures amounted to approximately RMB767,467,000
(2018: approximately RMB480,259,000). It is expected that the Group will
finance such commitments from its own funds and bank loans.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND
REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 1,763 employees (2018: 1,399).
For the year under review, the staff costs of the Group was approximately
RMB133,076,000 (2018: approximately RMB123,116,000).

The employees’ remuneration policy was determined by reference to
factors such as remuneration information in respect of the local market,
the overall remuneration standard in the industry, inflation level, corporate
operating efficiency and performance of the employees. The Group
conducts performance appraisal once every year for its employees,
the results of which are applied in annual salary review and promotion
assessment. The Group’s employees are considered for the entitiement of
annual bonus according to certain performance conditions and appraisal
results. The Group also provides continuous learning and training
programmes to its employees to enhance their skills and knowledge, so
as to maintain and enhance their competitiveness.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no expense in
relation to share-based payments recognised in the Company’s financial
statements, and no arrangement under which a Director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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STRATEGIES

The management has developed sound strategies to overcome the
above mentioned challenges and address the uncertainties faced by
the Group, including formulating effective marketing strategy plan and
improving our products and services quality to consolidate our brand.
The Group will put more effort in formulating new policies, guidelines,
systems and processes to facilitate effectively cost management, risk
management, internal control and sustainable environmental management
to enhance company management standards and corporate governance
standards. For growth strategy, the Group will focus on identifying
possible acquisitions with future development prospects and profitability
to improve the returns on assets. The Group will further emphasize
on investor relations management, and continue to convey clearly the
operation vision, business updates and future development strategies
of the Group and other information to various stakeholders through
press conferences, roadshows, media delegation visits and one-on-one
analyst or investor interview and otherwise to strive for the recognition
and support from various stakeholders and obtain more resources for
business development and maximize shareholders’ value.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Employees, customers and suppliers are the key stakeholders who
affected the sustainability of our business. Engaging with those
stakeholders will not only help us understand the possible risks and
opportunities to our business, but also help us to mitigate risk and seize
the opportunities in the real market situation.

The Group believes that our people are critical factors to the Group'’s
success and competitiveness in the market. As such, we had adopted
a share option scheme on 20 May 2015 for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contributed to the
success of the Group’s operations.

Customer satisfaction with our services and products has profound
effects on our profitability. Our dedicated sales team constantly
communicates with our customers and potential customers to uncover
and create customer needs and help customers make informed
decisions. To grasp the market trend is critical for the Group to timely
adjust our operating strategies to fit the market requirement.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Company’s policies and practices highlight the importance of
compliance with all relevant local laws, rules, regulations and standard.
This in return, facilitates the continuous granting of specific licenses and
permissions.

The Group will seek professional legal advice from legal advisers, where
necessary, to ensure transactions and business to be performed by the
Group are in compliance with the applicable laws and regulations.

No material accidents related to serious injuries, death or property
damage and no environmental claims, lawsuits, penalties or administrative
sanctions were reported to our management during the year under
review and as at the date of this annual report. The management is of the
view that the Group were in compliance with all relevant PRC laws and
regulations in each material respects.

ENVIRONMENT POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to protecting
the environment in the areas where we operate and ensuring that
environmental standards set by the government are consistently met.

We have closely monitored our projects at different stages to ensure that
construction process is in compliance with laws and regulations related
to environment protection and safety. The Group endeavors to manage
its project operations by working with suppliers and contractors to ensure
that they understand the importance of environmental protection, pollution
prevention and waste reduction. We also encourage all our employees to
be more environmentally conscious.
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EVENTS AFTER THE YEAR UNDER
REVIEW

On 13 February 2020, the Company granted share options to the
employees of the Company or other eligible participants (the “Grantees”)
to subscribe for an aggregate of up to 173,800,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company under the share option
scheme adopted by the Company on 20 May 2015 at an exercise price
per share of HK$0.998. The validity period of the share options is from
13 February 2020 to 12 February 2022, both dates inclusive. None of the
Grantees is a Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or an associate (as defined in the Listing Rules) of any of them.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company will be held
on Thursday, 11 June 2020. Notice of the AGM will be published on
the websites of the Company (www.chinanewcity.com.cn) and the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk), and will be despatched to the
shareholders of the Company within the prescribed time and in such
manner as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company (comprising all the independent
non-executive Directors) had reviewed the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019, and
reviewed with the management of the Group regarding the accounting
standards and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed with them
the internal controls and financial reporting matters.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding the Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules.
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The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code for the year under review and up to the date of this
report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and,
to the knowledge of the directors, they confirm that the Company has
maintained at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital held
by the public for the year under review and as at the date of this annual
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board has adopted the code provisions of the CG Code. The Board
has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance practices and is
satisfied that the Company has complied with the code provisions set out
in the CG Code for the year under review and up to the date of this report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determination of the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the
transfer books and register of members will be closed from Monday, 8
June 2020 to Thursday, 11 June 2020 (both days inclusive) during which
period no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to
qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, all transfers accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch registrar and transfer office, Tricor Investor Services Limited
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 5 June 2020.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has complied
with the code provisions in the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
STRUCTURE

The Board will review the corporate governance structure of the Group
from time to time and will adopt appropriate measures as may be
desirable for future development of the operating activities or business of
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises: (i) executive directors: Mr. Dong Shuixiao (resigned
on 3 April (2020), Ms. Jin Ni (resigned on 3 April 2020), Mr. Shi Nanlu
(appointed on 3 April 2020), Mr. Liu Bo (appointed on 3 April 2020) and
Ms. Tang Yiyan; (i) non-executive directors: Mr. Shi Kancheng and Mr.
Tang Min (appointed on 3 April 2020); and (i) independent non-executive
directors: Mr. Ng Sze Yuen, Terry, Mr. Xu Chengfa and Mr. Yim Chun
Leung.

The details of the Directors and (where applicable) their family
relationships are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 66 to 70 in this annual
report. There are no relationships (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships) among members of the Board. A list
of the Directors identifying their roles and functions are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers that all the independent
non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with the
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Board meets regularly to discuss the
overall strategy, the operational and financial performance of the Group.
The Directors can attend meetings in person or through other electronic
means of communication in accordance with the articles of association of
the Company (the “Articles”).
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During the year under review, a total of 5 Board meetings and one general REIEEER BITARARAEESSZL K
meeting were held. The individual attendance of the Directors is tabulated R A€ - S EEHNER|HERWLOT
as follows:
Number of Number of
attendance/ attendance/
Number Number
of Board of general
meetings meetings
HEESE
BEXE HE
EEE REASXHES
BERE BEXEXEH
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Shi Kancheng FEATRK %5 4 5/5 1/1
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Dong Shuixiao (resigned on 3 April 2020) E KR 54 (R2020%F4 53 H FFHT) 5/5 1/1
Ms. Jin Ni (resigned on 3 April 2020) S+ (K20205F4 53 H §HE) 5/5 11
Ms. Tang Yiyan ElaMit 5/5 11
Independent non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Mr. Ng Sze Yuen, Terry RETEE 5/5 1/1
Mr. Xu Chengfa AKX 5/5 1/1
Mr. Yim Chun Leung BRIR ST S 5/5 11
Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer FERITHAR

The roles of the chairperson and chief executive officer are separate and
are not performed by the same individual as this ensures better checks
and balances and hence better corporate governance. During the year
under review and as at the date of this report, the role of the chairperson
was performed by Mr. Shi Kancheng, while Mr. Dong Shuixiao was chief
executive officer of the Group.

The chairperson had held a meeting with all independent non-executive
Directors in the absence of executive Directors. No specific or other
issues had been raised or discussed as it had been concluded that all
issues which would be discussed had been properly dealt with in the
meetings of the Board.
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Non-Executive Director and Independent
Non-Executive Directors

The non-executive Director, Mr. Shi Kancheng, has been appointed for
a term of 3 years commencing on 31 May 2014, which is automatically
renewable for a successive term of one year from the next day upon the
expiry of the appointment.

The non-executive Director, Mr. Tang Min, has been appointed for a term
of 3 years commencing on 3 April 2020, which is automatically renewable
for a successive term of one year from the next day upon the expiry of the
appointment.

The independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Ng Sze Yuen, Terry, Mr. Xu
Chengfa and Mr. Yim Chun Leung, have been appointed for a term of 3
years commencing on 31 May 2014, which is automatically renewable for
a successive term of one year from the next day upon the expiry of the
appointment.

All non-executive Director and independent non-executive directors
possess extensive academic, professional and/or industry expertise and
management experience and have provided their professional advice to
the Board.

Power of and Delegation by the Board

The Board operates and exercises its power in accordance with
the Articles. The Board focuses on overall corporate strategies and
policies with emphasis on the business growth, financial performance
and corporate governance standard of the Group. It also decides on
matters such as annual and interim results, major transactions, director
appointments or re-appointments, investment policy, dividend and
accounting policies and responsible for developing, reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices on corporate governance and legal
and regulatory compliance of the Group. In addition, the Board has also
specifically resolved that all transactions/contracts/other matters of the
Group that are subject to the disclosure requirement in accordance with
the Listing Rules should be approved by the Board in advance.

The Board has delegated to the senior management to deal with day-
to-day operations and reviewed those arrangements on a periodic basis.
The senior management frequently reports back to the Board and obtains
prior approval from the Board before making decisions for key matters or
entering into any commitments on behalf of the Company.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

The Articles provide that any Director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy in the Board or as an additional member of the Board
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting of the
members of Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at such
meeting.

In accordance with the Articles, at each AGM, one third of the Directors
for the time being, shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election. The Company may, at any general
meetings convened and held in accordance with the Articles, remove
a Director by ordinary resolution at any time before the expiration of his
period of office notwithstanding anything contrary in the Articles or in any
agreement between the Company and such Director and may by ordinary
resolution elect another person in his/her stead.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees and has delegated various
responsibilities to the committees, including the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”), the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
and the corporate governance committee (the “Corporate Governance
Committee”) of the Company. All the Board committees perform their
distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference which
are available for inspection by the Shareholders on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises a total of three members,

being one executive Director, Ms. Tang Yiyan, and two independent

non-executive Directors, Mr. Xu Chengfa (chairperson of the

Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Yim Chun Leung.

The Company has adopted written terms of reference for

the Remuneration Committee. The role and function of the

Remuneration Committee of the Company include the following:

(@)

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the Board on the

remuneration of non-executive Directors;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

to review and approve the compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management in connection
with any loss or termination of their office or appointment to
ensure that such compensation is determined in accordance
with relevant contractual terms and that such compensation
is otherwise fair and not excessive;
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(e)  to review and approve compensation arrangements relating e Wi M#ERESRITAKE MRED
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure RERBERESMYROBERZEE
that such arrangements are determined in accordance with HRZELHIRBEAEGNIERETE
relevant contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and EBAREREBENVGIETE  EHEE
appropriate; ENMEERER:

()  to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates is ) EREESEIETMBEAIEE
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration; and AIMEBSMHM &

(@ to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time @ ZEERBQARINIHOFH: BNEHN
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions FrfE R B R - DA RN &R B A B B AL
elsewhere in the Group. B0 R -

One meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during the REREFEANTMEEGRITT —Rg&E-

year under review. The Remuneration Committee had reviewed the FHEZEE BN TESENHME MK

policies of remuneration packages of the Board of Directors. The Feo XK EMERILEREWT

individual attendance of the members was tabulated as follows:

Number attendance/
Number of meetings

HERE EBRH
Mr. Xu Chengfa AKX 1/1
Mr. Yim Chun Leung BiRZE S E 1/1
Ms. Tang Yiyan ElaMit 11

(ii) Nomination Committee (i) REZES

The Nomination Committee comprises a total of three members, RELZESHAE=ZRAKE (AI—ZH1T
being one executive Director, Ms. Jin Ni (resigned on 3 April 2020) EELRLT (20204 A3H BT ) sl
or Mr. Shi Nanlu (appointed on 3 April 2020), and two independent FIBE oA (7A2020F4 ASHEZRT) kW%
non-executive Directors, Mr. Xu Chengfa (chairperson of the W IFITERARELEE (REEEEE
Nomination Committee) and Mr. Yim Chun Leung. &) MR R sn e A ) HERK
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The Company has adopted written terms of reference for the

Nomination Committee. The role and function of the Nomination

Committee are as follows:

(@)

to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives)
of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorship;

to review the board diversity policy of the Company (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) and the progress on achieving the
objectives set for implementing the Board Diversity Palicy,
and to make disclosure of its review results in the corporate
governance report of the Company’s annual report;

to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors;

to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to, among others, the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors (in
particular, the chairperson and the chief executive officer of
the Company);

to give full consideration to, among others, the skills and
expertise required from members of the Board and the
relevant requirements of the Listing Rules with regard to
Directors and such like in the discharge of the Nomination
Committee’s duties;
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in respect of any proposed service contracts to be entered
into by any members of the Group with its director or
proposed director, which require the prior approval of the
Shareholders at general meeting under Rule 13.68 of the
Listing Rules, to review and provide recommendations to
the Shareholders (other than shareholders who are directors
with a material interest in the relevant service contracts and
their respective associates) as to whether the terms of the
service contracts are fair and reasonable and whether such
service contracts are in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole, and to advise Shareholders on how
to vote;

to ensure that on appointment to the Board, non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
receive a formal letter of appointment setting out what is
expected of them in terms of time commitment, committee
service and involvement outside meetings of the Board;

to conduct exit interviews with any Director upon their
resignation in order to ascertain the reasons for his/her
departure; and

to consider other matters, as defined or assigned by the
Board from time to time.

The Board has set the following measurable objectives

implementing the Board Diversity Policy:

when identifying suitably qualified candidates to become
Board members, it should be based on a series of diverse
aspects, including Board members with different background,
skills, regional and industry experience, race, gender and
other qualities, that are in balanced and complementary
with each other, creating synergy, and enabling the Board to
function effectively as a whole.
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The nomination procedures are as follow:

° candidates for directorship are selected by the Nomination
Committee subject to the review and approval of the Board in
accordance with the Articles.

° when reviewing the composition of the Board and
considering the nomination of new Directors, the Nomination
Committee will take into account the skills, regional and
industry experience, background, race, gender and other
qualities of potential candidates and also business needs of
the Company.

As at the date of this report, the Board’s composition under major
criteria for diversity was summarized as follows:

Executive
Directors

Independent
Non-executive
Directors

VFHTES

Designation Age Group Gender

B Fi# 5 3]

Based on the review by the Nomination Committee, the Nomination
Committee considers that the Company has achieved the
measurable objectives set for implementing the Board Diversity
Policy for the year under review.

One meeting of the Nomination Committee were held during the
year under review. The Nomination Committee had reviewed the
structure and the diversification policy of the Board of Directors and
had revised and restated the Board Diversity Policy.
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(iii)

The individual attendance of the members of the Nomination

REEFEAR SREZBEKEBMIEH L

Committee during the year under review was tabulated as follows: JERIT :
Number of attendance/
Number of meetings
HEREEERE
Mr. Xu Chengfa AR E 11
Mr. Yim Chun Leung BiRSe S 1/1
Ms. Jin Ni (resigned on 3 April 2020) SR+ (R2020F4H3H BFE) 1/1

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises a total of three members, being
three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Ng Sze Yuen Terry
(chairperson of the Audit Committee), Mr. Xu Chengfa and Mr. Yim
Chun Leung. Mr. Ng Sze Yuen possess the appropriate professional
qualification, and accounting and financial management expertise.

The role and functions of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@  to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
other terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(b)  to review and monitor the external auditor's independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

(c) to discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations and ensure co-ordination
where more than one audit firm is engaged before the audit
commences;
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to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
“external auditor” includes any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm or any
entity that a reasonable and informed third party knowing
all relevant information would reasonably conclude to be
part of the audit firm nationally or internationally. The Audit
Committee should report to the Board, identifying and
making recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;

Review of the Company’s financial information

(€)

to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, interim report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;

in reviewing these reports (the Company’s annual report
and accounts, interim report and, if prepared for publication,
quarterly report) before submission to the Board, the Audit
Committee should focus particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumption and any qualifications;

(v}  compliance with accounting standards;

(v  compliance with the Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

(vij  the fairness and reasonableness of any connected
transaction and the impact of such transaction
on the profitability of the Group and whether such
connected transactions, if any, have been carried out in
accordance with the terms of the agreement governing
such transactions;
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(vii) whether all relevant items have been adequately
disclosed in the Group’s financial statements and
whether the disclosures give a fair view of the Group’s
financial conditions;

(ix)  any significant or unusual items that are, or may need
to be, reflected in such reports and accounts; and

(x)  the cash flow position of the Group;

and to provide advice and comments thereon to the Board;

(@ inregard to (e) and (f) above:

(i) members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the
Board and senior management of the Group and the
Committee must meet, at least twice a year, with the
Company'’s auditor; and

(ii) the Audit Committee should consider any significant
or unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected
in the reports and accounts, it should give due
consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the Company’s staff responsible for the accounting
and financial reporting function, compliance officer or
auditor;

(h)  to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the auditor may wish to
discuss (in the absence of management where necessary);
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Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system, risk

management and internal control systems

)

to review the Company’s financial controls and, unless
expressly addressed by a separate Board risk committee,
or by the Board itself, to review the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with management to ensure that management has performed
its duty to have effective systems. This discussion should
include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or
on its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditor, and to
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Company, and to
review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;
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(p) to conduct exit interviews with any Director, manager, (9)
financial controller or internal credit control manager upon
their resignation in order to ascertain the reasons for his
departure;

() to prepare work reports for presentation to the Board and to (@
prepare summary of work reports for inclusion in the Group’s
interim and annual reports;

(n  to consider the appointment of any person to be a Audit r
Committee member, auditor and accounting staff either to
fill a casual vacancy or as an additional Audit Committee
member, auditor and accounting staff or dismissal of any of

them;
(s)  toreport to the Board on the matters set out above; (s)
(1) to review arrangements employees of the Company can use, (t)

in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters. The
Audit Committee should ensure that proper arrangements
are in place for fair and independent investigation of these
matters and for appropriate follow-up action;

(u)  to act as the key representative body for overseeing the (u)
Company’s relations with the external auditor; and

(vy  to consider other matters, as defined or assigned by the ()
Board from time to time.
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A total of two meetings of the Audit Committee were held during REEFEANEREEGHBITMAGE -

the year under review. The work performed by the Audit Committee
included the following:

- reviewed the annual report and results announcement of the -
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019;

- reviewed the interim report and interim results -
announcements of the Company for the six months ended
30 June 2019;

- reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by -
the Group and other financial reporting matters;
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(iv)

- reviewed the results of external audit and had discussion with
external auditor on any significant findings and audit issues;

- reviewed the internal control reports and had discussion
with internal control consultant on any significant findings
and internal control issues for the first half of the year under

review;

- reviewed the internal control reports and had discussion with
internal auditor on any significant findings and internal control
issues for the second half of the year under review;

- discussed with the external auditor before the audit
commenced, the nature and scope of the audit and the
respective relevant issues; and

- considered and approved the service contract of the auditor
for the year under review.

The individual attendance of the members of the Audit Committee
during the period under review was tabulated as follows:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
(e SRR S

—  EHIEEAER U EMERHE
BREGFEFEEINFZBENETR

A .
i

- HFABEWRES UHARLEOEFE
AEMERER RASIEH ETEHRA
TREER I TR R

- EHAERES MR TFOEFE
NEMERER & E AR EE
B AR Az BUAD 1T 7 A

- REZFEGATEINEZBE R EX
MMEERBEARERRER: &

- ERRHERBFENZEMRES
#e

REBEHRRN - BREEE
JERMT

ma}

ERCB B E R

Number of attendance/
Number of meetings

REEERE
Mr. Ng Sze Yuen, Terry ;‘iiﬁf‘ﬁi 2/2
Mr. Xu Chengfa AR E 2/2
Mr. Yim Chun Leung BRIRSE S 2/2

Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee comprises a total of three
members, being one executive Director, Ms. Jin Ni (chairperson
of the Corporate Governance Committee and resigned on 3 April
2020) or Mr. Shi Nanlu (chairperson of the Corporate Governance
Committee and appointed on 3 April 2020), and two independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Ng Sze Yuen Terry and Mr. Yim Chun
Leung.

The role and functions of the Corporate Governance Committee
include the following:

(a)  to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(iv)
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(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the code
provisions of the CG Code and the disclosures in the
Corporate Governance Report.

One meeting of the Corporate Governance Committee were
held during the year under review. The Corporate Governance
Committee had discussed and reviewed the Board’s and the
Group’s compliance with the code provisions of the CG Code
and the prevailing Listing Rules during the year under review. The
Corporate Governance Committee had also reviewed the internal
control reports and had discussion with internal control consultant
on any significant findings and internal control issues for the first
half of the year under review and had revised and restated Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors and Employees and Inside
Information Policy;

The individual attendance of the members of the Corporate
Governance Committee during the year under review was tabulated
as follows:
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Number of attendance/
Number of meeting

BRE EBRH
Ms. Jin Ni (resigned on 3 April 2020) SR+ (R20209F4 534 §HE) 11
Mr. Ng Sze Yuen, Terry RETEE 1/1
Mr. Yim Chun Leung BRIR e S 1/1

Further details of the terms of reference of Board committees are
available on websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEM

The Group recognizes that good risk management is essential for the
long-term and sustainable growth of a business. The Board puts particular
emphasis on determining the risk-tolerance levels in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives and is responsible for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The management also
learns from other outstanding companies and takes into consideration
of the Company’s unique business and operating environment in
formulating the risk management and control framework. All employees
are committed to continually enhancing the risk management framework,
linking to our corporate strategies as well as integrating it into day-to-day
operation.

Objective of the Risk Management and Internal
Control

The objectives of the risk management and internal control framework of
the Group include:

o to strengthen the Company’s risk management and internal control
in compliance with the Listing Rules requirement;

o to establish and constantly improve the risk management and
internal control system;

. to implement a top-down and companywide risk management
system that covers every aspect of the business; and

o to keep baseline risks within the acceptable range.
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Main Features of Risk Management System -
Three-tier Risk Management Approach

The Group has adopted a three-tier risk management approach to
identify, assess, mitigate and handle significant risks. At the first line of
protection, business units are responsible for identifying, assessing and
monitoring risks associated with each business or deal. The management,
as the second line of defense, defines rule sets and models, provide
technical support, develops new systems and oversees portfolio
management. It ensures risks are within the acceptable range and that the
first line of protection is effective. As the final line of protection, the internal
audit department ensures that the first and second lines of protection are

effective through constant inspection and monitoring.
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Main Features of Internal Control System

QOur internal control systems are developed with reference to the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
principles which involved five elements as internal environment, risk
assessment, control activities, information and communication and
internal supervision. The aim of internal control is to reasonably guarantee
the compliance of its operation and management with regulations and
laws, assets security, and authenticity and integrity of financial report and
related information, improve the efficiency and effect of operating activities

and promote the realization of development strategy of the Group.
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Principal Risks and Key Controls

1. Market risks

The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from customers from PRC.
The Group is exposed to the risks associated with the PRC market
which include the risks of policy change, interest rate change,
demand-supply imbalance and the overall economic conditions.
The market risks may pose an adverse impact on the Group’s
business, financial condition or results of operations.
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The project team will carefully scrutinize each project for
related risks and returns. These include assessment of relevant
government policies, market demand and conditions and economic
data. The management is responsible for supervision, conducting
regular operation reviews and keeping the Board fully informed
through regular reports, and prompt decisions can therefore be
made if changes are required.

Business and operational risks

Distinctive risks factors in property related businesses such as
default of buyers, tenants and strategic business partners, and
inadequacies or failures of internal processes, people and systems
may have different levels of negative impact on the results of the
Group’s operation. Industrial accidents may happen although
precautionary measures is established, which may damage the
Company’s reputation or cause financial loss to the Group.

The internal audit team will review key activities of the Group and
ensures all material controls, including financial and operational, are
functioning effectively. Precautionary and contingency measures are
also set up to ensure the Group is protected against major potential
loss, damage or impact to our operations. Insurance coverage
against accidental losses and/or other hazards is used in protecting
our assets and reputation against any potential liabilities.

Financial risks

The investment and business operation are exposed to risks from
exchange rates, interest rates and liquidity. Amid global financial
uncertainties, the financial risks encountered by the Group had
increased accordingly.

The Group closely monitors the financial risks and when appropriate
will adopt measures to manage and hedge corresponding risks by
using of derivatives such as interest rate and currency swaps. The
Group’s cash and financing are centrally managed and controlled
at the corporate level to achieve a better borrowing terms and
coherent financial risk management. To meet our obligations as and
when needed, the Group maintains sufficient facilities with various
banks and financial institutions. The maturity of deposits and loans
is carefully planned and managed to reduce liquidity risk.
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4. Talent risks

Talent shortage and high employee turnover will have a negative
impact on the Group’s present and future performance. We believe
that human resources are of critical importance for the success of
the Company.

To attract, motivate and retain talented employees, the Group
evaluate our employee remuneration packages and monitor them
against market trends. We provide on-the-job training for new staff
and offer career advancement opportunities for suitable staff to
develop their full potential at various stages of their career. We also
encourage communication with all levels of staff to gather feedback
and suggestions for future improvement.

Review of Internal Control System

The internal audit department of the Company (“Internal Audit
Department”) in the year under review responsible for the internal control
functions. The Internal Audit Department is required to provide internal
control assessment reports to the Audit Committee and the Board on a
regular or ad hoc basis.

The Board recognized its responsibility to ensure the Group maintains a
sound and effective risk management and internal control system. The
Directors had conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Group during the Year. Such review had covered
all material controls including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions. No major issue but areas for
improvement have been identified. The Board and the Audit Committee
considered that the key areas of the Group’s internal control systems are
reasonably implemented.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

The procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination
of inside information are as follows:

° the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities and
Future Commission in June 2012;

° the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair
disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of
information to the public through channels such as financial
reporting, public announcements and its website;

° the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorized use of confidential or
inside information;

° the Group has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs, so that
only the executive Directors of the Company, company secretary
and investor relations officers are authorized to communicate with
parties outside the Group; and

° employees or Directors possessing inside information should
report the same to an executive Director, who will then report to
the Board. The Board will then discuss and handle the relevant
disclosures or dissemination of inside information accordingly.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is subject to
the Board’s approval in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company. Mr. Chong Yuk Fai (“Mr. Chong”) has been appointed as the
Company Secretary with effect from 30 November 2019.

Mr. Chong is responsible for advising the Board through the chairperson
and/or the chief executive officer on governance matters and assisting
the Board in discharging its obligations to Shareholders pursuant to the
Listing Rules. He is also responsible for ensuring that the activities of
the Board conducted efficiently and effectively, and procedures and all
applicable laws and regulations complied with, and facilitating induction
and professional developments of the Directors, the company secretary
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for the preparation
of accounts which give a true and fair view of the Group. The Company
has selected appropriate accounting policies and has applied them
consistently based on prudent and reasonable judgments and estimates.

During the year under review, all Directors have been given on a quarterly
basis the latest information report about the financial position and
business development of the Group. The Directors endeavor to ensure
a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s position
and prospects in annual reports, interim reports, inside information
announcements and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules
and other statutory requirements.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the accounts of the Group is set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.
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OPERATION OF MEETING AND SUPPLY
OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION

Notice of at least 14 days should be given of a regular board meeting to
give all directors an opportunity to attend. For all other board meetings,
reasonable notice should be given.

Board or committee papers will as far as practicable be sent to all
Directors at least three days before the intended date of a Board meeting
or a Board committee meeting.

Management has supplied the Board and its committees with adequate
information and explanations so as to enable them to make an informed
assessment of the information put before the Board and its Board
committees for approval. Management is also invited to join the Board or
Board committee meetings where appropriate.

Draft and final version of minutes of the meetings should be sent to all
Board and Board committee members for their comment and records.
Minutes of the meetings are kept by our Company Secretary, and the
Board and Board committee members may inspect the documents and
minutes of the Board and the Board committees at any time.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The audit fee of the Group in respect of audit services provided by the
independent auditor, Ernst & Young, for the Year was RMB1,350,000
(2018: RMB1,350,000).

During the year under review, the independent auditor was also engaged
to review the interim results of the Company at a fee of RMB250,000
(2018: RMB250,000) and no other non-audit services took place (2018:
Nil).

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS

In respect of the compliance with the provisions of the Non-compete
Undertakings by the Controlling Shareholders, please refer to the section
headed “Non-compete Undertakings”
report.

in the Directors Report of this
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’
INSURANCE

The Company had arranged liability insurance for Directors and senior
management officers of the Company with appropriate coverage in
respect of legal action against them arising from their duties performed.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company updates Directors on the latest development regarding the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements from time
and time, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.

According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of training
received by Directors during the year under review is as follows:

Name of Directors
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Notes:

A: attending briefing sessions and/or seminars relating to matters in financial, legal

and corporate governance

B: reading seminar materials and updates relating to the latest development of the

Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements

MECHANISM FOR THE PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT ON MIXED-USE LANDS

In relation to the mechanism for the property development on Mixed-
use Lands (as defined in the prospectus of the Company dated 16 June
2014 (“Prospectus”), each of Zhong An together with its subsidiaries,
(the “Zhong An Group”) and the Company has undertaken to each
other that it must, in respect of each of its financial year ending after the
Listing, instruct its auditor or independent financial advisers to review
such documents as the auditor or independent financial advisers may
require and confirm to its board of directors that the mechanism set out
the section headed “Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders —
Joint property development on mixed commercial-residential use land
projects” in the Prospectus had been complied with during such financial
year. During the year under review, the Directors confirm that there has
not been any occasion where an opportunity aroused for an acquisition
and development of land for property development project on mixed
commercial-residential use land projects in which the remaining Zhong An
Group (i.e. Zhong An Group, excluding the Group) (the “Remaining Zhong
An Group”) has invited the Group to participate in the Joint Development
(as defined in the Prospectus).

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding the Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the Company’s code of conduct during the year under review.

Senior management who, because of their office in the Group, are likely
to be in possession of inside information, have also been requested
to comply with the provisions of the Model Code when dealing in the
Company’s shares.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening Extraordinary General Meeting and
Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, general meetings shall be convened
on the written requisition of any two or more Shareholders made to
Directors or the Secretary specifying the objects of the meeting, provided
that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition
shall not hold less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within a further
21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves may convene the general meeting
in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may
be convened by the Board and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
them by the Company.

Procedures for Proposing a Person for Election
as a Director

If a shareholder, who is entitled to attend and vote at the relevant
general meeting, wishes to nominate a person (not being the nominating
shareholder) to stand for election as a Director, he or she should give to
the company secretary of the Company notice in writing of the intention
to propose a person for election as a Director and notice in writing by
that person of his or her willingness to be so elected, no earlier than the 7
clear days after the dispatch of the notice of the relevant general meeting
and no later than 7 clear days prior to the date appointed for the relevant
general meeting.

Detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as
a Director are available on the Company’s website.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS/WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
COMMUNICATION

The Company attaches great importance to communication with
the Shareholders. A number of means are used to promote greater
understanding and dialogue with the Shareholders. The means of
access includes the release by the Company of the various corporate
communication of the Company via the website of the Stock Exchange
and the website of the Company (http://www.chinanewcity.com.cn).
Shareholders are encouraged by the Company to attend general
meetings of the Company where the chairperson of the Company and
other members of the Board and (if appropriate) the auditor of the
Company, are available to answer questions.

In addition, our chairperson, Directors and senior management actively
participated in various investor relations activities to reach and establish
a good long-term interactive relationship with shareholders and potential
investors. We introduced our current operating conditions and future
development strategies and at the same time also received advices
from investors regarding the Company’s development, from which we
understand more about investors’ expectations of the Company. Thereby,
we can continue improving the operation management of the Company
and establish effective mutual communication channels.

Enquiries and Proposals to the Board

Shareholders are encouraged to communicate with the Company for any
enquiries in relation to the affairs of the Group. Shareholders may contact
the Company in writing to the Company’s head office in the PRC or the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong or by e-mail to
cnc_ir@chinanewcity.com.cn or direct any enquiries to the Company’s
investor relations representative, Capital Markets Department, whose
contact details are set out in the annual report of which this report forms
part.
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Annual General Meeting

The 2018 annual general meeting was held on 6 June 2019 at
Conference Room No. 5, 4th Floor, Holiday Inn Hangzhou Xiaoshan, No.
688 Shanyin Road, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, the
PRC. The Directors and senior management together with the external
independent auditor attended the annual general meeting to answer
enquiries from shareholders and investors attending the meeting. All
ordinary resolutions proposed in the meeting were duly passed by way of
poll.

Regular Meetings with Investors

During the year under review, the Directors, senior management and
investor relations team have meetings with investors, fund managers and
financial analysts from time to time, introducing the operating conditions
and development strategies of the Company and answered the questions
raised. The Company provides the investors and analysts with clear
and timely compliance information to enable them to make reasonable
investment decisions with sufficient information.

Investor Relations Plan

In 2020, we will continue to enhance communication with investors in
accordance to the main needs and concerned issues from investors
and analysts. It is expected that multiple activities for investors will be
conducted in 2020 through field trip, non-deal roadshow and one-to-
one meeting and publishing voluntary disclosure announcement to mass
investors in order to enhance their understanding of the Group.

Should investors have any inquiries and/or suggestions, please contact us
at cnc_ir@chinanewcity.com.cn.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s constitutional documents was adopted on 31 May 2014.
There was no change in the memorandum and articles of association of
the Company during the year under review.

For and on behalf of the Board
China New City Commercial Development Limited

Shi Kancheng
Chairperson
Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Shi Nanlu (MR 8% % %), aged 37, is the executive Director
and chief executive officer of the Company since 3 April 2020. He
is responsible for the daily operation and management, strategic
investments and new business exploration of the Group. He joined Zhong
An Group Limited (“Zhong An Group”) in June 2010. He has served as
the manager of the capital management department, manager of the fund
management department and deputy director of the Zhong An Group.
He has many years of experience in financial management. Mr. Shi has
resigned from all of his management positions in the Zhong An Group
prior to joining the Group. He has been a vice president of the Group
since June 2015. Mr. Shi received his undergraduate degree in finance
and accounting from The University of Manitoba in Canada in June 2007.

Mr. Liu Bo (255 4), aged 32, is the executive Director and vice
president of the Company since 3 April 2020. He is responsible for overall
daily operations and management of the Group as well as ensuring the
Board functions properly with good corporate governance practice.
He joined the Group in July 2016. He has served as the vice president
of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in the investment
department of He Jun Capital from December 2012 to July 20183, and
in the business development department of Wan Xiang Trust from
August 2013 to June 2016. He has many years of experience in financial
investment and fund management. Mr. Liu holds a Master’'s Degree in
Actuarial Science from the Boston University in December 2012.
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Ms. Tang Yiyan (E1a# £ ), aged 49, is the executive Director
and vice president of the Group, and is responsible for overall property
management of our Group. She was appointed as an executive Director
on 30 September 2013. Ms. Tang has over 17 years of experience in
operations and management. Prior to joining the Group, she held various
positions including assistant to general manager of Jiaxing Jiahe Beijing
City Shopping Center Company Limited ( 3 Bz K1t R EWES A
R/ ®]), and manager of sales department, project supervisor, deputy
general manager and vice general manager in general affairs of Zhejiang
Lai Yin Da Commercial Development Company Ltd. (#7135 & 4
¥%REAMRAT). Ms. Tang obtained a diploma in economics and
management from the Zhejiang Province Mechanic and Politics University
GHT & B TBUAAKZ) (currently known as Zhejiang University of
Economics and Management CHT/TAZ & 12 K &) ) in July 1994,

Non-executive Director

Mr. Shi Kancheng ( HE{TL X 554 ) (alias Shi Zhongan (7R %) ), aged
57, is a non-executive Director and chairperson of the Board. He was
appointed as a Director on 2 July 2013 and re-designated as non-
executive Director on 30 September 2013. He is responsible for assisting
the Board in the strategic planning of the Group, leading the Board
to ensure that it will perform its roles and carry out its responsibilities
effectively, and ensuring proper corporate governance practices and
procedures are implemented within the Group. However, he does not
participate in the day-to-day management of the business operations of
the Group.

Mr. Shi has over 27 years of experience in property development and
property investment. Mr. Shi currently serves as the executive director,
chairman and the chief executive officer of Zhong An (stock code:
00672). Mr. Shi served as a tax officer in the finance and revenue
bureau of Xiaoshan District of Hangzhou (formerly known as Xiaoshan
City) and the general manager of Hangzhou Xiaoshan Mikyway Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. Mr. Shi completed an Executive Master of
Business Administration Program (Finance Track) organized by Shanghai
National Accounting Institute and obtained a CFO Qualifying Training
Certificate in June 2007. From 2005 to 2006, Mr. Shi completed a
program for executive officers, focusing on globalization and real estate
developers, co-organized by Harvard University, Tsinghua University, The
University of Hong Kong and the United States Military Academy and a
program for presidents of real estate companies organized by Zhejiang
University in July 2006. Mr. Shi obtained a doctoral degree of business
administration program jointly organized by Shanghai Advanced Institute
of Finance (SAIF) and W. P. Carey School of Business, Arizona State
University (ASU) in the US in May 2017. Mr. Shi is also a director of certain
members of the Remaining Zhong An Group and the Group. Mr. Shi is
the sole director and the sole shareholder of Whole Good Management
Limited, which is the controlling shareholder of the Group.
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Mr. Tang Min (EIR 5 4) , aged 64, is the non-executive Director of
the Company and vice chairperson of the Board since 3 April 2020. He is
responsible for the formulation of development strategies. He is a senior
economist.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Ng Sze Yuen, Terry (Rt T5E4), aged 60, is an independent
non-executive Director and vice chairperson of the Board. He was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 31 May 2014.
He has over 32 years of experience in operation and management and
is now the chief executive officer and an executive director of L’AVENUE
International Holdings Limited, a private company in Hong Kong. His
leadership responsibilities include strategic planning, financial investments,
management of property development and investment portfolio, both in
Hong Kong and overseas. Since October 2017, he has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director of Sun Hing Printing Holdings
Limited (stock code: 01975), a company whose shares are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange and provides independent views to
the board as well as its audit committee and nomination committee. Mr.
Ng was an executive director of Hang Lung Group Limited (stock code:
00010), Hang Lung Properties Limited (stock code: 00101) and Giordano
International Limited (stock code: 00709), companies whose shares are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, respectively. He also
worked at the Stock Exchange and held various positions. Mr. Ng is a
fellow member of CPA Australia.

Mr. Xu Chengfa (B % % %), aged 67, is an independent non-
executive Director. He was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 31 May 2014. Mr. Xu has over 23 years of experience in
banking operations and management. He worked in the Hong Kong
Branch of Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. (stock code: 03328),
a company whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange and held various positions including senior manager of
investment banking department, senior manager of corporate services
department, assistant general manager, deputy general manager, deputy
chief executive officer and consultant.
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Mr. Yim Chun Leung (BIE= % 4£) , aged 58, is an independent non-
executive Director. He was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 31 May 2014. Mr. Yim has over 35 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and finance fields. He is the independent non-
executive Director who has the qualifications and experience to meet the
requirements under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Yim is a non-practicing member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. He also possesses a master’s degree in business
administration.

Mr. Yim is also an executive director of Jacobson Pharma Corporation
Limited (a company whose shares are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 02633) which, together with its group
companies, are principally engaged in development, production,
marketing and sale of generic drugs and proprietary medicines. Mr.
Yim had served in numerous companies listed on the main board of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange which included an executive director
and chief executive officer of LVGEM (China) Real Estate Investment
Company Limited (formerly known as New Heritage Holdings Ltd.) (stock
code: 00095) since December 2004 and July 2014 respectively until he
resigned in March 2016, the financial controller of Soundwill Holdings
Limited (stock code: 00878) from May 2002 to June 2004, the chief
financial officer of Sinolink Worldwide Holdings Limited (stock code:
01168) from December 2000 to February 2002, an executive director of
N P H International Holdings Limited (currently known as Concord New
Energy Group Limited, stock code: 00182) from 1998 to April 1999 and
the finance director of Tysan Holdings Limited (stock code: 00687) from
January 1994 to January 1998.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Fang Bin (5 # %4 ) is the executive vice-president of the Group,
and is responsible for operations of film and television culture, cultural
tourism and human resource and administration. Mr. Fang joined China
New City in July 2016. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in Hangzhou
Branch of Huaxia Bank for investment sector from February 2012 to
June 2016 and has many years of experience in financial investment and
business negotiation. Mr. Fang holds a Master’'s Degree in finance and
economics from the University of Warwick in September 2012.
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COMPANY SECRETARY RS

Mr. Chong Yuk Fai (¥ /B %4 ) has been appointed as the financial — FEBIE 4 B E R (T AR D BB S AEES N A Bk
controller and Company Secretary of the Company with effect from £ H2019F11 A30H AN - HAANES &
30 November 2019. Mr. Chong has over 16 years of experience in st R EENEHFHEB B16F &R R IMAKA
auditing, accounting and corporate finance. Prior to joining the Company, &) Bl * it %6 4 LT BN — R BFE € 5+ e =5 F7
Mr. Chong had worked for an international accounting firm providing AZE&EB LM ARREZERS aEHKE
assurance services and a number of listed companies in Hong Kong E-Hh4HAEFTBEAZGNERESSE
responsible for financial management. Mr. Chong holds a bachelor degree W ABHE &I AS S8 -

in Accounting and Finance from The University of Hong Kong and is a

member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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THE REPORT OF DIRECTORS

The board (‘Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of China New City
Commercial Development Limited (the “Company”) are pleased to present
their annual report to shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
and the audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2019 (“the year under review”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in commercial property development, leasing and hotel
operations. The nature of the principal activities has not changed during
the year under review.

BUSINESS REVIEW, KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS AND
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

A discussion on the business review of the Group and an analysis of the
performance of the Group based on certain financial key performance
indicators for the year under review are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year under review and the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group at 31 December 2019 are set out in the financial
statements on pages 98 to 104.

The Board has not recommended the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements is set out on page 276.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property and equipment, and investment
properties of the Group during the year under review are set out in notes
12 and 13 to the financial statements respectively. Further details of the
Group’s investment properties are set out on pages 202 to 217.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s principal risks and uncertainties are set out under the
paragraph headed “Principal Risks and Key Controls” in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

An account of the Group’s key relationships with its employees,
customers and suppliers are set out in the paragraph headed
“Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers” under the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance is
set out in the paragraph headed “Environment Policies and Performance”
under the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST
CAPITALISED

Borrowings repayable on demand or within one year are classified under
current liabilities. Details of the long-term borrowings are set out in note
29 to the consolidated financial statements. Interest and other borrowing
costs capitalised by the Group during the year are set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year
under review are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Scheme as disclosed in the section headed “The Report
of Directors — Share Option Scheme” of this annual report and note 31 to
the financial statements respectively, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Company during the year under review or subsisted at
the end of the year under review.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
under review are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and note 32 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s accumulated losses amounted
to approximately RMB50,144,000 and the Company’s share premium
amounted to RMB721,694,000. By passing an ordinary resolution of the
Company, dividends may also be declared and paid out of share premium
account or any other fund or account which can be authorized for this
purpose in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The details of the share option scheme (the “Scheme”) approved by the
Shareholders on 20 May 2015 (the “Adoption Date”) are disclosed below
pursuant to the requirements under Chapter 17 of the Rules (the “Listing
Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”):

1. Purposes of the scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Group to grant
options to selected participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group. The Directors consider the Scheme, with
its broadened basis of participation, will enable the Group to reward
the employees, the Directors and other selected participants for
their contributions to the Group. Given that the Directors are entitled
to determine any performance targets to be achieved as well as the
minimum period that an option must be held before an option can
be exercised on a case by case basis, and that the exercise price of
an option cannot in any event fall below the price stipulated in the
Listing Rules or such higher price as may be fixed by the Directors,
it is expected that grantees of an option will make an effort to
contribute to the development of the Group so as to bring about an
increased market price of the Shares in order to capitalise on the
benefits of the options granted.
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Participants of the Scheme

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, invite any person

belonging to any of the following classes of participants, to take up

options to subscribe for Shares:

(@)

any employee (whether full-time or part-time including any
executive Director but excluding any non-executive Director)
of the Company, any of the Company’s subsidiaries or any
entity (“Invested Entity”) in which any member of the Group
holds an equity interest;

any non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company, any of the Company’s
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity;

any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity;

any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement to the
development and growth of the Group;

and, for the purposes of the Scheme, the offer for the grant of

option may be made to any company wholly owned by one or more

persons belonging to any of the above classes of participants.

For avoidance of doubt, the grant of any options by the Company

for the subscription of Shares or other securities of the Group to

any person who falls within any of the above classes of participants

shall not, by itself, unless the Board otherwise determine, be

construed as a grant of option under the Scheme.
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The eligibility of any of the above class of participants to an offer for

the grant of any option shall be determined by the Board from time

to time on the basis of the Board’s opinion as to his contribution to

the development and growth of the Group.

Maximum number of the Shares available
for Subscription

(@)

The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme adopted by the Group must not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the share capital of the Company
in issue from time to time.

The total number of the Shares which may be allotted and
issued upon the exercise of all options (excluding, for this
purpose, options which have lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Group) to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the number of Shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the Scheme (“General Scheme Limit”).

Subject to (a) above but without prejudice to (d) below, the
Company may seek approval of the Shareholders in general
meeting to refresh the General Scheme Limit provided that
the total number of Shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Group must not
exceed 10% of the number of Shares in issue as at the
date of approval of the refreshed limit and, for the purpose
of calculating the refreshed limit, options (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised in accordance
with the Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Group) previously granted under the Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Group will not be counted.
The circular sent by the Company to the Shareholders shall
contain, among other information, the information required
under Rule 17.02(2)(d) of the Listing Rules and the disclaimer
required under Rule 17.02(4) of the Listing Rules.
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(d)  Subject to (a) above and without prejudice to (c) above,
the Company may seek separate Shareholders’ approval
in general meeting to grant options beyond the General
Scheme Limit or, if applicable, the refreshed limit referred
to in (c) above to participants specifically identified by the
Company before such approval is sought. In such event,
the Company must send a circular to the Shareholders
containing a generic description of the specified participants,
the number and terms of options to be granted, the purpose
of granting options to the specified participants with an
explanation as to how the terms of the options serve such
purpose and such other information required under Rule
17.02(2)(d) of the Listing Rules and the disclaimer required
under Rule 17.02(4) of the Listing Rules.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon the exercise of the options granted under the Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Group (including both
exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the number of Shares in issue for
the time being (the “Individual Limit”). Any further grant of options
in excess of the Individual Limit in any 12-month period up to
and including the date of such further grant must be separately
approved by the Shareholders in general meeting of the Company
with such grantee and his close associates (or his associates if
the grantee is a connected person of the Company) abstaining
from voting. The number and terms (including the exercise price)
of options to be granted must be fixed before the approval of the
Shareholders and the date of the Board meeting for proposing such
further grant should be taken as the date of grant for the purpose of
calculating the exercise price under note (1) to Rule 17.03(9) of the
Listing Rules.
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5. Grant of options to the Directors, chief

executive or substantial shareholders
of the Company or their respective
associates

(@  Any grant of options under the Scheme to a Director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or
any of their respective associates must be approved by
independent non-executive Directors (excluding independent
non-executive Director who or whose associates is the
proposed grantee of the options).

(b)  Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive Director or any of their
respective associates would result in the Shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and
to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in
issue; and

(ii) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the Shares at the date of each offer for the grant, in
excess of HK$5 million;

such further grant of options must be approved by Shareholders
in general meeting. The Company must send a circular to the
Shareholders. The grantee, his associates and all core connected
persons of the Company must abstain from voting in favour at
such general meeting, except that any connected person may vote
against the relevant resolution at the general meeting provided
that his intention to do so has been stated in the circular. Any vote
taken at the meeting to approve the grant of such options must be
taken on a poll. Any change in the terms of options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive Director
or any of their respective associates must be approved by the
Shareholders in general meeting.
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Minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised and the
exercise period of the option:

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be determined
and notified by the Board to each grantee, which period may
commence from the date of the offer for the grant of options is
made, but shall end in any event not later than 10 years from
the date of grant of the option subject to the provisions for early
termination thereof. Unless otherwise determined by the Board and
stated in the offer for the grant of options to a grantee, there is no
minimum period required under the Scheme for the holding of an
option before it can be exercised.

Amount payable on acceptance of the
option and the period within which
payment must be made:

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the
grant of an option and options may be accepted by a participant
within 21 days from the date of the offer of grant of the option.

Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price for the Shares under the Scheme shall be a price
determined by the Board, but shall not be less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer for the grant, which
must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the offer for the
grant; and (i) the nominal value of a Share.

Remaining life of the Scheme:

The Scheme became effective on 20 May 2015 and unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for a period of
10 years from that date.
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OUTSTANDING OPTIONS

In 2019, no option was granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company
or had lapsed under the Scheme. There was no outstanding option under
the Scheme as at 31 December 2019 as no option had been granted
during the relevant period or before that.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The sales attributable to the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 4% of the Group’s consolidated revenue for
the year under review.

The purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for about 32% of the Group’s consolidated purchases for the
year under review.

The largest supplier of the Group accounted for about 19% of the
Group’s consolidated purchases for the year under review.

None of the Directors, their close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or any Shareholders (who or which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has
any interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Shi Nanlu (Chief Executive Officer) (appointed on 3 April 2020)

Mr. Liu Bo (Vice President) (appointed on 3 April 2020)
Mr. Dong Shuixiao (Chief Executive Officer) (resigned on 3 April 2020)

Ms. Jin Ni (Vice Chairperson and Vice President)
(resigned on 3 April 2020)
Ms. Tang Yiyan (Vice President)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Shi Kancheng (alias Shi Zhongan) (Chairperson)
Mr. Tang Min (Vice Chairperson) (appointed on 3 April 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ng Sze Yuen, Terry (Vice Chairperson)
Mr. Xu Chengfa

Mr. Yim Chun Leung

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’
INFORMATION

Save as disclosed in the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report, there were no change in the Directors
information subsequent to the publication of the interim report of the
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the transactions as disclosed in this report notes 2 and 35 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” of the Prospectus and the supplemental
prospectus dated 30 June 2014 (“Supplemental Prospectus”), there was
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries or its
holding company was a party and in which a Director is or was materially
interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of
the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out on pages 66 to 70 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Shi Nanlu and Mr. Liu Bo, all being the executive Directors,
has entered into a service contract with the Company pursuant to which
he agreed to act as the executive Director for a term of three years
with effect from 3 April 2020, which is automatically renewable for a
successive term of one year from the next day upon the expiry of the
appointment.

Ms. Tang Yiyan, being executive Director, has entered into a service
contract with the Company pursuant to which she agreed to act as the
executive Director for a term of three years with effect from 31 May 2014,
which is automatically renewable for a successive term of one year from
the next day upon the expiry of the appointment.
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Mr. Shi Kancheng, being non-executive Director, has been appointed
for an initial term of three years with effect from 31 May 2014, which is
automatically renewable for a successive term of one year from the next
day upon the expiry of the appointment.

Mr. Tang Min, being the non-executive Director, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years with effect
from 3 April 2020, which is automatically renewable for a successive term
of one year from the next day upon the expiry of the appointment.

Each of Mr. Ng Sze Yuen, Terry, Mr. Xu Chengfa and Mr. Yim Chun Leung,
all being independent non-executive Directors, has been appointed for
an initial term of three years with effect from 31 May 2014, which is
automatically renewable for a successive term of one year from the next
day upon the expiry of the appointment.

No Director (including the Directors proposed to be re-elected at the
AGM) has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to Shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board with reference
to directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group. Details of the Directors’ remuneration during the year under review
is set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to any of the directors and chief
executive or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
as compensation for loss of office.

No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in
the future years as of 31 December 2019.

The band of the remuneration of senior management personal and related
number of members of senior management personnel are as follows:
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Nil to 1,000,000 % £1,000,0007T 4 3
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,0017t £1,500,0007T 1 2

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of the Company, the Company had a permitted
indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the Companies
Ordinance) in force for the benefit of the Directors throughout the year
under review and as at the date of approval of this report of the Directors,
pursuant to which the Company shall indemnify any Director against any
liability, loss suffered and expenses incurred by the Director in connection
with any legal proceedings in which he is involved by reason of being
a Director, except in any case where the matter in respect of which
indemnification is sought was caused by the fraud or dishonesty of the
Directors. The Company has maintained insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors
arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis. During the year under review, no claims were made
against the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFQO”), as

recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the

SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Name of Director

Name of
Group member/
associated corporation

Capacity/nature of interest
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

AEEREAR/
Esps W EE SR 28 +-1:3:1 RRRGEE REBNED
(Note 1)
(Hist 1)
Mr. Shi Kancheng The Company Interest of controlled corporations 1,315,787,694 shares of 65.36%
(Nofe 2 HK$0.10 each (L)
MR E AN EHEER S (Hi22) 1,315,787,504 % SR E E
010 TRIA(L)
Zhong An Interest of controlled corporation 3,262,411,200 shares of 57.05%
(Note 3 HK$0.10 each (L)
RL EHEER S (#:23) 3,262,411,2001 SR A&
0.1078 T 7 (L)
Beneficial owner (Note 4) 4,600,000 shares 0.08%
of HK$0.10 each (L)
BERBEA (M) 4,600,000 BREE
0.10B T A (L)
Whole Good Beneficial owner 1 share of US$1.00 (L) 100%
2o BB 1RREE1.00E TRA ()
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Name of Director

Name of
Group member/
associated corporation

Capacity/nature of interest
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Number of share(s) held

ERETHY

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

EEpE B/ RHEME FRROYE REBAT D
(Note 1)
(Hizt1)

Ms. Jin Ni Zhong An Beneficial owner (Note 5) 3,722,480 shares of 0.07%
HK$0.10 each (L)
SlRLT RL BRBEFA(Hits) 3,722,480 B R EI(E
010 TRIA(L)

Mr. Dong Shuixiao Zhong An Beneficial owner (Note 6) 3,722,480 shares of 0.07%
HK$0.10 each (L)
BREE RL BERBEFA (M6 3,722,480 B R A E
010 TR

Ms. Tang Yiyan Zhong An Beneficial owner (Note 7) 600,000 shares of 0.01%
HK$0.10 each (L)
ERELT RE BERBEAAN(ME7) 600,000k B EE
0.10B TR (L)

Notes: Bt -

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares and underlying

shares of the Company or the relevant associated corporation.

Among these 1,315,787,594 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company
(“Shares”), 1,284,484,000 Shares are held by Ideal World Investments Limited
(“Ideal World”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Zhong An. The entire issued shares
of Zhong An are owned as to about 57.05% by Whole Good Management
Limited (“Whole Good”), which is wholly owned by Mr. Shi Kancheng. In addition,
31,303,594 Shares are held by Whole Good. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Shi
Kancheng is taken to be interested in the Shares in which each of Ideal World and

Whole Good is interested.

These shares are held by Whole Good. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Shi Kancheng
is deemed to be interested in the shares of Zhong An in which Whole Good is

interested.

These shares represent the underlying shares in Zhong An comprised in the
options granted to and held by Mr. Shi Kancheng pursuant to its share option
scheme adopted on 15 May 2009.

These shares represent the underlying shares in Zhong An comprised in the
options granted to and held by Ms. Jin Ni pursuant to its share option scheme
adopted on 15 May 2009.
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6. These shares represent the underlying shares in Zhong An comprised in the
options granted to and held by Mr. Dong Shuixiao pursuant to its share option
scheme adopted on 15 May 2009.

7. These shares represent the underlying shares in Zhong An comprised in the
options granted to and held by Ms. Tang Yiyan pursuant to its share option

scheme adopted on 15 May 2009.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company had or were deemed under the SFO
to have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, the Supplemental Prospectus and
the transactions as disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, no controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries has any
contract of significance with the Company or its subsidiaries during the
year under review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, Supplemental Prospectus and
in this annual report, no contracts of significance concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or subsisted during the
year under review.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS

The Company has received the written confirmation from Ideal
World, Zhong An, Whole Good and Mr. Shi Kancheng (collectively,
the “Controlling Shareholders”) in respect of the compliance with
the provisions of the non-compete undertakings (“Non-compete
Undertakings”), entered into between the Controlling Shareholders and
the Company as set out in the section headed “Relationship with our
Controlling Shareholders — Non-compete Undertakings” of the Prospectus
during the year under review.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed and confirmed
that the Controlling Shareholders have complied with the Non-compete
Undertakings and the Non-compete Undertakings has been enforced by
the Company in accordance with its terms during the year under review.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation”, at no time
during the year under review were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than a Director or the chief executive of the
Company) had an interest or short position in the Shares and underlying
Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO:
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Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share

Name of shareholder Capacity/nature of interest Number of Shares held capital

HERARBE#IT

RERE B B1ipREME FERGEE RAT D
(Note 1)
(Htzt 1)

|deal World Beneficial owner 1,284,484,000 Shares (L) 63.80%
E@EAA 1,284,484,000 R& %17 (L)

Zhong An Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 1,284,484,000 Shares (L) 63.80%
& REHEE e ER (fiE2) 1,284,484,000 B3 (L)

Whole Good Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 1,284,484,000 Shares (L) 63.80%
2 4f ZEsEEEER (f772) 1,284,484,000 A% 3% 17 (L)

Beneficial owner 31,303,594 Shares (L) 1.56%

EmfEAA

31,303,594 A& A% 17 (L)

hEM WA EERAR DA
“E-NEFER




33

THE REPORT OF DIRECTORS
ERTH

Notes:
1. The Letter “L.” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

2. These Shares are held by Ideal World, the wholly owned subsidiary of Zhong An.
The entire issued shares of Zhong An are owned as to about 56.15% by Whole
Good, which is wholly owned by Mr. Shi Kancheng. By virtue of the SFO, each
of Zhong An, Whole Good and Mr. Shi Kancheng is taken to be interested in the
Shares in which Ideal World is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, other than the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company whose interests are set
out in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests
and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation” above, no person had interest
or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares which were required
to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
organized by the PRC municipal and provincial government authorities
for the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC, and operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund scheme for the employees in Hong Kong. Particulars of
these retirement plans are set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year under review, the Group donated RMB1,002,000 (2018:
RMB5,520,000).

China New City Commercial Development Limited
2019 Annual Report

Wit
1. FRILIRRZALTREDOER -

2. ZE R AR R % 2 E M E A Flldeal World#5 A » B%&
MEHERTROB 2T (HEMKEEZ2ERS)
R B #156.16%  RIBEEF A KK L 2F R
FEAMAR A5 B AR A1 Ideal World#E & Bz 8% (7
hEA -

B ESCATIREE E SN FA2019F12A318 "B AR
RIEERERTHBRAE (HEE#REX[EER
=R THABRAR B s AR AAHEE MRS
FARARR (D MEEFNER AR —B) N &
ATRBED S BERG B ELSENIRIEESFR
S GO E386IERERARATFENELMA
ZRERBAR

iB ¢ kY
ARERENTHEZAEREESETEMRALK
ERB AT A PIFTRR AL 2 SR MR IR AET 8-

WABREREBLLERFIEDESE - ZFERIIK
AR ZFHBENRA M B RARME2 -

RERR

ARARETHERREARSEHEROMAIZAZ
EARBERRRIE

HERAm

REEFENRN & E BB A RK1,002,0005T
(20184 : AR #5,520,0007T) °



PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year under
review.

EVENTS AFTER THE YEAR UNDER
REVIEW

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19 outbreak”)
in early 2020, a series of precautionary and control measures have
been implemented across China continuously. The Group will pay close
attention to the development of the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its
impact on the financial position and operating results of the Group.

Except the above, no significant events affecting the Group took place
subsequent to 31 December 2019 and up to date of this report.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.20 OF
THE LISTING RULES

The Directors were not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
responsibility of disclosure under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules regarding
the provision of advances by the Company to an entity.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for its reappointment as auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

On Behalf of the Board of
China New City Commercial Development Limited

Shi Kancheng
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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To the shareholders of China New City Commercial Development
Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an exempted company with
limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China New City
Commercial Development Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 98 to 275, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
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procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for

our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

HMEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ESMAERARENER

Valuation of investrment properties

KREYEZI1G1E

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s investment properties
amounted to RMB5,676 million, which represented 39% of
the Group’s total assets.

We evaluated the competence and independence of
the external valuation expert engaged by the Group. We
Investment properties are stated performed audit procedures including checking those signed
at fair value. Management is required to exercise significant rental contracts, comparing the unit price of adjacent similar
judgement in determining the fair value of investment properties  properties that were benchmarked in the valuation process,
as disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

2019512 A31H - E R B IR &Y ¥ &/ A R #5,676,000,000
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and assessing assumptions related to future market rents,
the discount rates and future maintenance costs applied
based on historical experiences with the involvement of our
internal valuation specialists, who focused on the term yield,
reversionary yield and market unit rent. We also assessed
the adequacy of the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Key audit matter

HMEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ESTMARRARENER

Valuation of investment properties (continued)

REYFEZ 1418 (B)

The Group engaged an external valuation expert to perform
the valuation of investment properties. The valuation methods
applied included the direct comparison approach and income
approach which involved various assumptions, such as
estimated rental revenues, discount rates, occupancy rates,
historical transactions and market knowledge.
SEEBEEFIEEERETREMEZLE -RAZMK
BEFEBRBREEUIER S RZARE WAL BIEHEE
DUWA PR MR BERSRTIHHH-

The related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.
AR ESH NG E T BHmEMTE24 - 3%13 -

Net realisable value of completed properties held for sale and properties under development

FFIEHEZ CEK YRR ZRF YR Z 2T FE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s properties under
development and completed properties held for sale amounted
to RMB3,167 million, which represented 22% of the Group’s
total assets. These properties were stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. The net realisable value was estimated
by management based on expected selling prices, the cost of
completion of properties under development, and the costs to
be incurred in selling the properties based on prevailing market
conditions. The estimation of the net realisable value involved
significant judgement.
20195124310 - ERBEBEREFMERFIEHEEZEEZXKY
¥ B ARHS,167,000,0007T - HE N EEBBEE 222% ° %
EMEARERAIFRFECREEDNR  EREENRBRITT
SRBIESHEES TRERDPYERARRHEEYES TES
Z AR ET AT B ERFE - A BB FE GRS R E AR -

The related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3, 14 and 22
to the consolidated financial statements.
R EHNGE B mEMTE24 3 145%22 0
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We reviewed the Group’s net realisable value estimation
and checked the expected selling prices to prices of
similar properties presold by the Group recently or adjacent
properties sold. For the cost of completion of properties
under development and the cost to be incurred in selling
the properties, we evaluated management’s estimation
methodology, which has been updated to reflect the latest
historical information and the refined construction and selling
costs budget process.

B EHEEEATERFEMG RERBHEEEE
SEFREERUNENC EMMY ENER - Tk E
BRAMERARHEDES TEEZKEME  HMDFT
HERENMERE HEEMUARMKINESL B KT
EREUNHERATAERIE -



Key audit matter

HEETER

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
T8 A%

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ESTMARREARENER

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets

B R A AT B A 6 (8 A1

The carrying values of goodwill and intangible assets
amounted to approximately RMB99 million and RMB34 million,
respectively, as at 31 December 2019. Under IFRSs, the Group
is required to perform an impairment test for goodwill annually
and the other intangible assets with definite useful lives are
reviewed whether there is any indication of impairment at
each reporting period end. An impairment test itself for other
intangible assets with definite useful lives only has to be carried
out if there are such indications. The impairment test is based
on the recoverable value of the cash-generating units (‘CGU”) to
which the goodwill is assigned to.

R20195F12A31H HELRERVEENRERES ORA
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Management’s assessment process was complex and
significant judgement was involved, including the degree of
subjectivity of expected future cash flow forecasts, associated
growth rates and the discount rate applied.
EIRERREBIR /E RIS R EAHE - B E AR
ARBFERRETN  BRAERERBER IO M-

The related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 16 and 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BEREEHNFE M EHRRM 2.4 16517 ©

We have involved our internal valuation specialists to assist
us in evaluating the models and certain assumptions used
by the Group in the impairment test of goodwill and other
intangible assets. We have inspected the basis of goodwill
allocation to cash-generating units (“CGU”) and evaluated
the rationality and reasonableness of the cash flow forecast
model and management’s key assumptions including
discount rate and long-term average growth rate. We also
have reviewed the Group’s assessment of whether there
had been any indicators of impairment of the other intangible
assets with definite useful lives for the year. We also checked
the related disclosures.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN
THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE
DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
T A% B i

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

China New City Commercial Development Limited
2019 Annual Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Siu Fung Terence Ho.

Yours faithfully,
Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

31 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Ao AR AR

Year ended 31 December 2019 # Z=2019F12A31B L FE

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ARMT T ARBTT
Revenue PN 5 1,955,853 1,924,619
Cost of sales BHE KA (1,177,617) (1,584,128)
Gross profit EF 778,236 340,491
Other income and gains H WA RS 5 68,460 18,905
Selling and distribution expenses SHE MR X (137,603) (138,519)
Administrative expenses FTEA X (184,836) (198,455)
Other expenses Hip (3,069) (40,099)
Finance costs W%sEA 7 (154,960) (110,330)
Fair value gain/(loss) upon transfer HBEREMEZ
to investment properties AnEEKE (BE) 13 50,642 (25,030)
Changes in fair value of KEMED
investment properties RREEED 13 (36,742) 22,223
Profit/(loss) before tax BREBLATAE, (B518) 6 380,128 (130,814)
Income tax expense FTiS T 2 10 (334,839) (91,183)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRFE (BE) 45,289 (221,997)
Attributable to: LU MG
Owners of the parent NREA A 26,270 (243,524)
Non-controlling interests JEVER R 19,019 21,527
45,289 (221,997)
Earnings/(loss) share BAREERERBEEA
attributable to ordinary equity EBEERERN (FAR)
holders of the parent 171
Basic AR RMB1.3 cents (RMB13 cents)
AR¥1.32 (AR#®135)
Diluted B RMB1.3 cents (RMB13 cents)

China New City Commercial Development Limited

2019 Annual Report
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Ao 4 TH WAL i

Year ended 31 December 2019 #{Z2019F 128310 IEFE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT

Profit/(loss) for the year FRFE (BB 45,289 (221,997)
Other comprehensive income Hih2mEU =
Other comprehensive income that may be REZ AR AJseEH HEE

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent Eﬁmﬁf% Wz

periods:
Exchange differences: ME W ZHE
Exchange differences on translation MEGINETHIE H 58

of foreign operations 10,741 (4,1086)
Net other comprehensive income REZEEAEEFRDESR

that may be reclassified to profit or B 8 HAth 2 E W = F R

loss in subsequent periods 10,741 (4,1086)
Other comprehensive income that will REZBESTIEEHIEE

not be reclassified to profit or loss in BammHEMEEE:

subsequent periods
Equity investments designated at fair value 5 A&k A EEF A

through other comprehensive income: Hih 2 E Wz RAIRE -
Change in fair value AUV LR - 9,000
Income tax effect FIECE-2— - (2,250)
Net other comprehensive income that REZ AR ﬁH—rT\@E%ﬁﬁ*ﬁ

will not be reclassified to profit or loss BarEae i F58

in subsequent periods - 6,750
Total comprehensive income FARAEHEKEHEE

for the year 56,030 (219,353)
Attributable to: BUT FE4h

Owners of the parent ISYNEIEFEWN 37,011 (240,880)

Non-controlling interests JEVE R 19,019 21,527

56,030 (219,353)

F B AR m?ﬁ%?ﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁ’& A
—hEFHR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

i o B B AR DL AR

31 December 2019 2019512 431H

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR®BT T ARBTT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property and equipment L EYNEEL 12 2,450,208 2,058,952
Investment properties "EY 13 5,358,640 5,502,607
Properties under development FERYE 14 935,311 933,400
Right-of-use assets EAEEE 15 316,788 -
Goodwill ma 16 98,995 -
Other intangible assets EmEpEE 17 34,257 -
Equity investments designated at fair value 5 A&k AL EEF A
through other comprehensive income H b2 E RS AR E 18 374,672 416,814
Long term prepayments RHEITER X 19 134,213 230,981
Deferred tax assets IRIEF IH & B 20 6,444 4,553
Restricted cash SR HIIR e 25 8,922 6,565
Total non-current assets BWIEREEE 9,718,450 9,153,872
Current assets REBEE
Completed properties held for sale BEEHEERIME 22 1,734,021 2,009,041
Properties under development R 14 497,524 913,669
Inventories 75 27,700 22,842
Trade receivables FEUE Z R 23 29,375 21,501
Prepayments, other receivables and other &< kT8 « E i fiE Y 5778 &
assets HEMEE 24 701,005 408,579
Amounts due from related companies ez /NI P G 35 1,060,275 24,541
Financial assets at fair value through profit or i& A 7o B EF A B 2
loss ERMEE 650 42,093
Restricted cash SR HI3R & 25 14,271 69,850
Cash and cash equivalents RekBAEZEY 25 408,493 548,907
Investment properties classified as held for 7 38 AR EE 2 R EM ¥
sale 13 316,960 21,693
Total current assets BRBEE 4,790,274 4,077,716
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables ERTE SRR 26 643,029 690,793
Other payables and accruals Hih R sRE M ETER 27 212,871 184,946
Contract liabilities aHaE 28 476,063 1,123,792
Amounts due to related companies FE T A R RSB 35 711,707 986,909
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings T B R1TE & E b &3 29 351,860 922,460
Lease liabilities HESE 15 24,297 -
Tax payable FETRRIE 10 597,102 426,644
Total current liabilities BRBAaR 3,016,929 4,335,544
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (A FHE 1,773,345 (257,828)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABEE 11,491,795 8,896,044

China New City Commercial Development Limited
2019 Annual Report




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR BB R LA

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥T ARBTFT
Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings #F B R1TE R M H 4B 29 4,104,245 2,045,625
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIEEE 20 937,915 952,376
Lease liabilities HEEE 15 308,100 -
Total non-current liabilities WIEREEE 5,350,260 2,998,001
Net assets FEE 6,141,535 5,898,043
Equity xR
Equity attributable to owners of the parent A R #EH A JE(GHEZS
Share capital f& s 30 160,443 144,850
Reserves & 32 5,623,608 5,438,136
5,784,051 5,582,986
Non-controlling interests FFIERER 357,484 315,057
Total equity HRERS 6,141,535 5,898,043
Dong Shuixiao Jin Ni
BKR £k
Director Director
o EF

PRI TEREAARAT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

5 Al 2 A T

Year ended 31 December 2019 # £2019F 12831 H IEFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAREEARL
Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at
fair value
Share through other Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share premium Capital comprehensive Other surplus  fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve income reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
BOREE
FARMR
AYEL
i SREENR R E 2R
i BEE  RARE  EERE  HhEE  BREE  RBEE  REEA a3t E# s
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETr ARETr ARETr AR%ETx
Note 30 Notes 308326 Note 3b) Note 31 Note 36
W30 kasoksn  hEsw Wisr W
At1 January 2018 201851518 147,503 583,836 1,281,751 - 5974 81,716 238,002 3,498,340 5,837,122 171,234 6,008,356
Loss for the yeer ERER - - - - - - SR Ry 257 @19
Other comprehensive income EREMZENR
for the year:
Bxchange diferences related to foreign  BEEI £ 2
operations ERZE - - - - - - 4,106) - 4,106) - 4,106)
Changes in fair vlue of equity EARBEGA
ivestment at fair value through other £ 2EREHRA
comprehensive income, net of tax RENAREBEES:
I - - - 6,750 - - - - 6750 - 6,750
Total comprehensive income for the year S A2E KA - - - 6,750 - - (4,106) (43524 (240880) 21501 (219,359
Repurchase of shares BERR (2,659 (10,603) - - - - - - (13,256) - (13,256)
Capital contributions by non-controling ~ 3EERIER T2
interests - - - - - - - - - 122,29 122,29
At 31 December 2018 20185124314 144,850 573233 1,281,751 6,750" 5974 81,716 233806"  3264816" 5,582,986 315,067 5,898,043
Profit for the year FRFE - - - - - - - 26,210 26,210 19,019 45,289
Other comprehensive income FREp2ENE
for the year:
Exchange diferences related to foreign - BB £752
operafions EREE - - - - - - 10,741 - 10,741 - 10,741
Total comprehensive income ERRENGER
for the year - - - - - - 10,741 26,270 37,011 19,019 56,030
Issue of new shares B{IHRA 15,593 148,461 - - - - - - 164,054 - 164,054
Acquiston of a subsidiary WE-HHBAR - - - - - - - - - 23,608 23,608
Liquidation of a subsidiary WEBLRRE - - - - - - - - - (200) (200)
At 31 December 2019 12019124318 160,443 721,694 1,281,751* 6,750* 5,974 81,716* 244637 3281,086* 5,784,051 357,484 6,141,535
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB5,623,608,000  * ZERERCREATBERAIRRNEEREEAR

(2018: RMB5,438,136,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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VYear ended 31 December 2019 # Z2019F 12831 H L F /&

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ARET ARBETF T
Cash flows from operating activities REXBENEERE
Profit/(loss) before tax BERTFIE, (E58) 380,128 (130,814)
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation of property and equipment MERZETE 12 75,856 49,671
Amortisation of other intangible assets EfhfEp EERE 17 433 -
Depreciation of right-of-use assets PREEENE 15 43,963 -
Fair value (gain)/loss upon transfer to EREREMENDAER
investment properties W),/ &8 13 (50,642) 25,030
Changes in fair value of investment HREYWENRAABEES
properties 13 36,742 (22,223)
Loss on disposal of items of HEREMEIER 2
investment properties E518 6 1,427 29,554
Changes in fair value of financial assets BRAREEFAEBZZ
at fair value through profit or loss SMEEZANBEZE) 6 (31,625) 1,514
Finance costs B 758 7 154,960 110,330
Gain on fair value re-measurement of E R yinE TR ES
existing equity in business combination etz RBREZ
not under common control AR BEERE 6 (451) -
610,791 63,062
Decrease in properties under development B %% /1 477 % 5 149,158 1,093,000
Increase in investment properties AWM - (24,924)
Decrease/(increase) in completed BIEHEERIME
properties held for sale W (1) 215,479 (806,080)
Increase in trade receivables FEULE S BRFIE N (6,702) (2,226)
Increase in deposits and other receivables &< N E b & I FIE 1S AN (34,870) (13,532)
Increase in prepayments and other assets & f< 5k K H & E= 12 40 (90,882) (246,741)
Decrease/(increase) in long term REATEM R D (38 )
prepayments 90,367 (42,274)
Increase in inventories FEEN (4,131) (11,417)
Decrease in restricted cash FHEMSREXRHES
for pre-sales proceeds Vo 64,523 41,085
Decrease in trade payables FERTE SRR D (55,182) (59,581)
Increase/(decrease) in other H iR FRE M ETER
payables and accruals #hn Crid) 30,318 (9,467)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities AHEECRD), N (913,963) 59,347
Cash generated from operations REEREENRS 54,906 40,252
Interest paid EARHLE (235,722) (194,279)
Income tax and land appreciation tax paid 2 BT 15 8% & - # 18 E 5 (186,630) (131,407)
Net cash flows used in REEBEANESRETH
operating activities (367,446) (285,434)

PEFATELEREELD
—hEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOBlaER

Year ended 31 December 2019 # Z=2019F12A31B L FE

2019 2018
20194 20184
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 ARBT ARBETF T
Cash flows from investing activities REXBEENBEESRE
Investment on equity investments EREAABERA
designated at fair value through other ﬁﬁﬁ 2 E U
comprehensive income AR ENRE (372) (48,514)
Investment on financial assets at fair value 1% ’D\ AEEFABRZ
through profit or loss TREERE (82,570) (89,822)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HEZAABETABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss SRVE E 2 TS 5KIE 155,638 117,719
Purchases of items of property and BEMEREEEREE
equipment (111,235) (126,776)
Proceeds from disposal of items of eV KR RHEIEB B REIA
property and equipment 374 14,321
Increase in investment properties AL (131,218) (107,732)
Proceeds from disposal of HEREYEFTERIEA
investment properties 318,166 298,883
Payment to related parties a) B8 B 5 5 3k (1,035,735) -
Capital refund to a non-controlling REBTIFERRR 2ER
shareholder (200) -
Acquisition of a subsidiary Ui b — FHi BT 88 A &) (66,452) -
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash SERHIZE S (&M, R (11,301) 171,651
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from RE %% (¥8) EEXNWE
investing activities ESREFHR (964,905) 229,730
Cash flows from financing activities METHELENRSRE
(Repayment to)/received from ERT)BUEHA
related parties /T/\I (275,201) 305,435
Capital contributions by non-controlling BB R 2 BEARTE
shareholders - 122,296
New interest-bearing bank and other FEt BRITERK
borrowings EHb g 4,140,000 1,658,216
Repayment of interest-bearing bank and ~ {Ei&5t.8 fE?T%“/?k&
other borrowings HMEER (2,651,980) (1,797,870)
Principal portion of lease payments HENE E’]$é§*ﬁ (21,953) -
Repurchase of shares EAEIE) - (13,256)
Net cash flows generated from METHELEN
financing activities RERBEHE 1,190,866 274,821
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERBESLEEY (BL)
cash equivalents 2 hn 58 (141,485) 219,117
Cash and cash equivalents at FNReNBESEEYD
beginning of year 548,907 323,312
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net JME [E R gha) & - F4E 1,071 6,478
Cash and cash equivalents FRRESRRESEEY
at end of year 408,493 548,907
Analysis of balances of ReRREESENERDN
cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances e MIRITA 25 408,493 548,907

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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1.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

China New City Commercial Development Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated as an exempted company
in the Cayman Islands on 2 July 2013 under the Companies Law
(revised) of the Cayman Islands. The registered office address of the
Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) were members of Zhong
An Group Limited (“Zhong An”) and its subsidiaries (“Zhong An
Group”). Zhong An, the shares of which have been listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) since November 2007, is the holding company of
Zhong An Group.

The Group is principally engaged in commercial property
development, leasing and hotel operations.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors (the “Directors”),
the ultimate holding company of the Company is Whole Good
Management Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands on 3 May 2007.

The Company was separately listed on the Stock Exchange
with the stock code “1321” on 10 July 2014 and raised capital
amounting to HK$608 million from the market.
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S5 A B

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1.
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

LAFEKEREH (]&)

Information about subsidiaries Ve NG 2

106

Particulars of the Company’s principle subsidiaries are as follows:

Place and date of

ARRBEEMBARIGFENAT

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company
incorporation/ Issued AATEERETS K
registration ordinary shares/ Principal
Name of company and business registered capital 2019 2018  activities
MR/ EME
AR EB EXBHRAH BRITLER EREE 2019% 2018F EFEEH
Zhejiang Zhong An Property PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 81.0% 81.0%  Property development
Development Xiaoshan Co.,Ltd.“ 3 April 1997
HIBRREHERUREERATY  HE/HENL AR H#2,000,0007C NEER
199744 A3H
Chunan Minfu Property Co., Ltd. @ PRC/Mainland China RMB6,000,000 100.0% 100.0%  Property development
24 October 2003
SFRREREBEERATO HRE /BN AR #6,000,0007C NERR
20034104244
Shanghai Zhong An Property PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 19 January 2004
LERZEREREERAAY B/ HE R, AR 10,000,000 NEHR
200441 A 198
Zhejiang Huijun Real Estate Co., Ltd. @ PRC/Mainland China US$77,600,000 99.7% 99.7%  Property development
1 April 2005
HIEREEXBRAR L/ HE R, 77,600,000% 7T NEHR
20054818
Hangzhou Zhong An Highlong PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Property management
Commercial Buildings Co., Ltd. @ 20 September 2005
MMBREREEERARY B/ HRE R, AR H#2,000,0007T NELRE
200549208
Hangzhou Zheng Jiang Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 92.5% 92.5%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. ¥ 16 March 2006
MNEIRGEBEERAAY B/ B, AR #50,000,0007 MEER
2006437168
Henlly Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China US$149,061,280 100.0% 100.0%  Property development
(Hangzhou) Co., Ltd. @ 4 December 2006
BERGEER (M) BERAAR HE /BN 149,061,280% 7T NEER
200612748
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Zhong An Holiday PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Hotel management
Inn Co., Ltd. 28 May 2007
MMBLRZRABEERAT HRE/RERH AR %10,000,0007C BEER
200745A28H

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place and date of

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

LAFEKERH (]&)

MEXRER (&)

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company
incorporation/ Issued AATEEREE S
registration ordinary shares/ Principal
Name of company and business registered capital 2019 2018  activities
MR/ EMR
DEEH EEWERAH BRATEEREMBRA 20195 20185 IEEH
Hefei Zhong An Holiday Inn Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB350,000,000 100.0% 100.0%  Hotel management
18 March 2008
ARERZBAEEARARY HE/HE R, A #£350,000,0007C BEER
2008%3A18H
Yuyao Zhong An Time Square PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Property management
Commercial Management Co., Ltd. ® 6 December 2011
ARBRRERESEEEEEBRLAY PR/ FEAM AR #2,000,0007 mEER
201112468
Yuyao Zhong An Time Square PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 5 August 2013
ARBRZEREEREERAF L/ HE R, AK#100,000,0007 nEER
2013%8A5H
Yuyao Zhong An Time Square PRC/Mainland China US$16,000,000 93.0% 93.0%  Property development
Property Co., Ltd. @ 13 August 2013
ARBRZHRESEXERAF R/ B, 16,000,000% 7 MEER
2013%8A13H
Zhejiang Zhong An Sheng Long PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Property management
Commercial Co., Ltd. ¢ 9 September 2013
HIRREEEHEERATY HE/HERL AR #50,000,00070 nEER
2013%9A9H
Cixi Znong An Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Property development
6 December 2013
EERREEBERAAY HE/E R AR #50,000,0007C NERR
2013F1246H
Hangzhou Zhong An Sheng Long PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Property development
Liyumen Property Co., Ltd. “ 21 April 2014
MNRLEEERMIBEERAFY RE /B AR 20,000,000 NEZR
2014%4A218
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S5 A B

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place and date of

MELARTER (&)

Percentage of equity

LAFEKEREH (]&)

attributable to the Company
incorporation/ Issued AATEEREE S
registration ordinary shares/ Principal
Name of company and business registered capital 2019 2018  activities
MR/ EME
DEEHR BEBURAH BRATEERERBRA 20195 20185 EEEH
Hangzhou Xixi Huijin Property Co., Ltd. " PRG/Mainland China US$50,000,000 100.0% 100.0%  Property development
18 November 2015
MMEZESBEERAR RE/HE R, 50,000,000% 7% NEZR
20154115184
Zhejiang Bairuite Hotel PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Hotel management
Management Co. Ltd." 19 May 2016
MLIaM S EEEEARAR O RE/RE R AR %10,000,0007 BIEER
2016F57198
Zhejiang New Screen PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100.0% 100.0%  Theater management
Theater Management Co., Ltd.* 29 November 2016
FINBEYREEEEERAF HE /R ER AR #10,000,0007C FhER
201611 298
Hangzhou Qiu Eye Hospital Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 72.0% 72.0%  Hospital management
12 August 2016
MIKRBHBRERATY B/ E R, AR H50,000,0007 B
2016687128
Zhejiang Hengfa Real Estate Co., Ltd.#¥  PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 46.0% 46.0%  Property development
6 June 2014
HIEREXBRAFM B/ HERL AR #50,000,00070 NEER
201456 76H
Huaibei Briliant Hotel Co., Ltd. 9 PRC/Mainland China RMB6,900,000 100.0% 72.0%  Hotel management
16 October 2013
L AR B ERRA R HE/RE R AR #6,900,0007T BEER
2013%10A416H
Laizhou New Screen PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Theater management
Theater Management Co., Ltd. 2 May 2017
FNFEYREEERERAR HE /BT AK#1,000,0007 FRER
201745A28

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place and date of

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

LAFEKERH (]&)

MEXRER (&)

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company
incorporation/ Issued AATEEREE S
registration ordinary shares/ Principal
Name of company and business registered capital 2019 2018  activities
MR/ EMR
DEEH BEBURAH RTEER/ERRE 20195 20185 IEEH
Zhong An Education Investment British Virgin Islands US$1 100.0% 100.0%  Education development
Holdings Limited */ 8 May 2018
REHEREBRBERARY RE/FRE R Y HEER
2018%5A8H
Kunming New Screen PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Theater management
Theater Management Co., Ltd.c 27 April 2017
BRRNEYREEERERAR M HE/HE R, AR #1,000,0007 FhER
20174 A278
Yuyao New Screen PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Theater management
Theater Management Co., Ltd.@ 26 September 2017
AR B R ELERERAF /R ER AR #1,000,00070 FhER
201749A26H
Hefei Xinmu Cinema PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Theater management
Management Co., Ltd. @4 19 March 2018
BREHBYRERERARM R/ B, AK#1,000,0007T FhER
2018%3A19H
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Maggie & Rose PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 50.1% 50.1%  Education development
Culture Co., Ltd. @ 20 September 2018
PMBLERRGULERATS  RE/ AN ARH1,000,0007% HELE
2018%9A20H
Foshan Xinmu Cinema PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 90.0% 90.0%  Theater management
Management Co., Ltd. @4 11 October 2017
BITHEYREEERAERATW  FE /AR AR 5,000,007 FhER
2017%10A118
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S5 A B

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. AFIREESZFH (&)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) MEARER (&)

Percentage of equity
Place and date of

attributable to the Company
incorporation/ Issued AATEEREE S
registration ordinary shares/ Principal
Name of company and business registered capital 2019 2018  activities
MR/ EME
DEEHR BEBURAH BRATEERERBRA 20195 20185 EEEH
Xuzhou Wanxiang Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 45.9% 45.9%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. @ 28 September 2018
BHTBRELERBEBRAAW RE/HE R, AR 50,000,00070 NEZR
20184 9A28H
Hangzhou Xinhuan Cinema PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 45.0% 450%  Theater management
Management Co., Ltd. @ 25 April 2018
MM ET R EERERAR O RE/PERMH AR #1,000,00070 FRER
2018%F4A258
Ningbo New Screen Theater PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 69.2% 69.2%  Theater management
Management Co., Ltd. € 10 May 2018
ERMBEYRERERA R B/ HE R, AR #1,000,00070 FhER
2018454108
Tiptop Global Group Limited ©4 Samon US$4 75% 75%  Investment holding
8 January 2018
EER 4ET REER
2018%1A8H
Taizhou New Screen Theater PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 69.2% 69.2%  Theater management
Management Co., Ltd. @ 31 October 2018
ZNFRZRERERAR B/ HERL ARH#1,000,0007T FhER
20186107318
Hangzhou Zhongan Health PRC/Mainland China RMBS5,000,000 90.0% N/A Health management
Management Co., Ltd@ct 8 January 2019
MR EEERARA A HE/HERL ARH#5,000,0007T TER  BERER
201941 A8H
Chendu Xinhuan Cinema PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 90.0% N/A~ Theater management
Management Co., Ltd. @ 4 April 2019
BRI ERERA R HE /BT AK#1,000,0007 TER  FhER
201944748

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place and date of

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

LAFEKERH (]&)

MEXRER (&)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

incorporation/ Issued AATREERET S
registration ordinary shares/ Principal
Name of company and business registered capital 2019 2018  activities
MR/ EMR
DEEH BEBURAH BRATEEREMBRA 20195 20185 IEEH
Zhejiang Zhongsu PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 72.0% N/A~ Technology development
Technology Co., Ltd. @ 5 March 2019
IREREARA R RE/RERH AR #10,000,0007¢ TER  RifRE
20194 3A5H
Maggie and Rose Limited @ England GBP 1 46.5% N/A Education development
11 December 2007
S 158 TER #HERER
20074128118

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Notes:

N/A  Not yet incorporated/established/acquired or liquidated by the Group

(@) These subsidiaries were established by the Group in 2019.

(b) Types of legal entities:
(1) Wholly-foreign-owned enterprise
) Sino-foreign equity joint venture
) Limited liability company invested by a foreign invested enterprise
4) Limited liability company

(c) The capital of these subsidiaries has not been fully injected as at 31
December 2019.

(d) The subsidiary was acquired by the Group in 2019.

(e) These subsidiaries are subsidiaries of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of

the Group and, accordingly, are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of
the Group’s unilateral control over the subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 285 o M i

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”), which comprise standards and interpretations
approved by the International Accounting Standards Board
(the “IASB”), and International Accounting Standards and
Standing Interpretations Committee, interpretations approved
by the International Accounting Standards Committee that
remain in effect, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties, derivative financial instruments and equity
investments which have been measured at fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2019. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBERGITRE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE (&)
Basis of consolidation (continued) mEEE(E)
When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a WA ABEEEEEE DRIRE Y
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the RAZ L ERLFALER - AR E
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in EREEEGHEA R EHRE
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including: WEeER—EEEERIER &

&
(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote @ HEMEBREHRIBREREAA
holders of the investee; ZERTHE:
(o)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and (o) HMAEHNRHEAZETR: &
() the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.  AEBIEEEREERERE
-

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared M ARz EmEk < mERE
for the same reporting period as the Company, using MEARQRMEEFA B2 5K
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries Ko MBATMERE ANEE ST
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains HlEZBREZEEHAR EEXE
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that zhlE 2 BRI

such control ceases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 285 o M i

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WAEEREHBE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

il

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE (&)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i)
the fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2,
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

BHEERGHBE

=
22 EHEKREHRIRE

REBCDNAFEPERE EIRA
AT AT RS ERT B R B 5 3R 5 &

Amendments to IFRS 9

IFRS 16
Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to IAS 28

IFRIC-Int 23

Annual Improvements
to IFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation
Leases
Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or Settlerment
Long-term Interests
in Associates and
Joint Veentures
Uncertainty over
Income Tax Treatments
Amendments to IFRS 3,
IFRS 11, IAS 12
and IAS 23

A

AREBREEANZFETE EFEHEL

Except for the amendments to IFRS 9 and IAS 19, and
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which
are not relevant to the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements, the nature and the impact of the new and revised
IFRSs are described below:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 285 o M i

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

(a)

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, SIC-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and
SIC-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to account for all leases under a single on-
balance sheet model to recognise and measure right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities, except for certain
recognition exemptions. Lessor accounting under IFRS
16 is substantially unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors
continue to classify leases as either operating or
finance leases using similar principles as in IAS 17.

IFRS 16 did not have significant impact on leases
where the Group is the lessor.

The Group adopted IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial application
of 1 January 2019. Under this method, the standard
has been applied retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of initial adoption recognised as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits at 1 January
2019, and the comparative information for 2018 was
not restated and continued to be reported under IAS
17 and related interpretations.

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

(a)

(continued)

New daefinition of a lease

Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys a right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the identified asset and
the right to direct the use of the identified asset. The
Group elected to use the transition practical expedient
allowing the standard to be applied only to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying I1AS
17 and IFRIC-Int 4 at the date of initial application.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under IAS
17 and IFRIC-Int 4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the
definition of a lease under IFRS 16 has been applied
only to contracts entered into or changed on or after 1
January 2019.
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31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

(a)

(continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating
leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of IFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for items of buildings.
As a lessee, the Group previously classified leases as
operating leases based on the assessment of whether
the lease transferred substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group. Under IFRS
16, the Group applies a single approach to recognise
and measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
all leases, except for two elective exemptions for leases
of low-value assets (elected on a lease-by-lease basis)
and leases with a lease term of 12 months or less
(“short-term leases”) (elected by class of underlying
asset). Instead of recognising rental expenses under
operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease
term commencing from 1 January 2019, the Group
recognises depreciation (and impairment, if any) of
the right-of-use assets and interest accrued on the
outstanding lease liabilities (as finance costs).
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

(a)

(continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating
leases (continued)

Impacts on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised
based on the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing
rate at 1 January 2019. The right-of-use assets
were measured at the amount of the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to the lease recognised in the
statement of financial position immediately before 1
January 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment
based on IAS 36 on that date. The Group elected
to present the right-of-use assets separately in the
statement of financial position. The Group has no lease
assets that were recognised previously under finance
leases and needed to be reclassified from property and
equipment.
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31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

(a) (continued)

For the leasehold land and buildings (that were held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation)
previously included in investment properties and
measured at fair value, the Group has continued to
include them as investment properties at 1 January
2019. They continue to be measured at fair value
applying IAS 40.

The Group has used the following elective practical
expedients when applying IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019:

o Applying the short-term lease exemptions to
leases with a lease term that ends within 12
months from the date of initial application

o Using hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend/
terminate the lease

° Applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Financial impact at 1 January 2019

The impacts arising from the adoption of IFRS 16 at 1

January 2019 were as follows:
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Liabilities =R
Increase in total liabilities BERFEEN 273,178
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 285 o M i

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Financial impact at 1 January 2019 (continued)

The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled to
the operating lease commitments as at 31 December

2. MEBEBEERERTHE
(#)

il

22 SRR RKE (H)

(a) (&)

RO019F1A1H2 B &4
(%)

R20195F1 1AM EAaEHE
MR2018F12 A3 HH K EHE

2018 are as follows: AYEHEMT
RMB’000
ARBEF T
Operating lease commitments as at A2018F12A31H I
31 December 2018 REHERE 381,274
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as at 201951 A1H
1 January 2019 INHETH93E & & A % 4.60%
Discounted operating lease commitments as at HR2019F1A1HK
1 January 2019 BRI L S TH EAE 273,178
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R2019F1 B1EMNEHEAE 273,178
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

(b)

Amendments to IAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion
of IFRS 9 only includes interests in an associate or
joint venture to which the equity method is applied and
does not include long-term interests that in substance
form part of the net investment in the associate or
joint venture, to which the equity method has not been
applied. Therefore, an entity applies IFRS 9, rather than
IAS 28, including the impairment requirements under
IFRS 9, in accounting for such long-term interests.
IAS 28 is then applied to the net investment, which
includes the long-term interests, only in the context
of recognising losses of an associate or joint venture
and impairment of the net investment in the associate
or joint venture. The Group assessed its business
model for its long-term interests in associates and
joint ventures upon adoption of the amendments on
1 January 2019 and concluded that the long-term
interests in associates and joint ventures continue to
be measured at amortised cost in accordance with
IFRS 9. Accordingly, the amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S5 WA B

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. MNBERETRE
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il

22 EFBRRSBRKE (K)

(b)

GG o MBI 550850 7] AN B
ﬁEV%Wﬁ%EW%%%ﬁE
EREERENBEQRRE
EARR R (ERRERE)
WHEEEE EERREER
AlskAENRFRE —FHDH
Rk (UEEREDRE) -
it BEREZERPESIA
AR B R B B B S R 5 2B A1 55
O M FE R R & 5T 4ERI 55285 -
BIE B B 15 R 55 AE RN B 05k A
B TE o BB g 5T 4RI 528
RERANFRE RERBE
o MEEEREE AR E
ERBIEB RN E A RRE
ERARFRERERNERLT
ETF%°$EI%%w¢Uﬂ
1 BRI ST AR RE ST EL O Bt
NEkEE AR REAERD
¥BER MmdmAREE A
AIREEARN RS ES
IR YR B R B 7 s o 2E RI B 05k 1%
B AT E - At - 551 AN
EHAEENM BRI RE
ISR TR

F B AR m?ﬁ%?ﬁéﬁﬁfﬁ n
—hEF

123




124

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 285 o M i

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

(c)

(d)

IFRIC-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments
involve uncertainty that affects the application of IAS
12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”).
The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies
outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically
include requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax treatments.

The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately;
(i) the assumptions an entity makes about the
examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities;
(i) how an entity determines taxable profits or tax
losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers
changes in facts and circumstances. Upon adoption
of the interpretation, the Group considered whether
it has any uncertain tax positions arising from the
transfer pricing on its intergroup sales. Based on the
Group’s tax compliance and transfer pricing study, the
Group determined that it is probable that its transfer
pricing policy will be accepted by the tax authorities.
Accordingly, the interpretation did not have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBERGITRE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective 2.3 © ME#F1E & R4 WA B BR B
International Financial Reporting 85 2 A
Standards
The Group has not applied the following new and revised AREBWRRZEY EHRERFERT
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in HIE MM E MR AR R] RASIERT
these financial statements. PR s 22 A
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business' BEREERLENSS  #EEE
B3R
Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’ BRHBREEAS0R.  AEEEYE
IAS 39 and IFRS 7 AReElE0RR
AR BREES
FITRBIA
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BRHBREENSI0RR REEEAEE 055
and IAS 28 between an Investor and its BRESENEBRETR LGBl EL I AEE
Associate or Joint Vlenture*
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? BESRRLEASTE  REAA
Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material' BReHENEIRR EXTE
and IAS 8 AReElZeRET A
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as BReENEINBIL  HEEABATIALRE

Current or Non-current®

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 1 202091 A1 8 52 & 6 & F E 5
Sl

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 2 #2021F1 A1B X2 & FRiaH F /& 5
S

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 3 R2022F 1 A1 H B 2 & FIA R FE 5
EESS

¢ No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for ‘ NI 75 7 9% I A 0 H B - e AT SR ER AR

adoption
BTk Fﬁ%?’*@ﬁfﬁ’
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 285 o M i

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WAEEREHBE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

il

2.3 Issued but not yet effective 2.3 © ME#F1E & R 4 WA B BR B

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is as follows:

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to be
considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business can exist
without including all of the inputs and processes needed to
create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of acquiring the
business and continue to produce outputs. Instead, the
focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive
processes together significantly contribute to the ability
to create outputs. The amendments have also narrowed
the definition of outputs to focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other income
from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and introduce an optional fair value concentration
test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2020. Since the amendments apply prospectively to
transactions or other events that occur on or after the date
of first application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBERGITRE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective 2.3 © ME#F1E & R4 WA B BR B

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 address
the effects of interbank offered rate reform on financial
reporting. The amendments provide temporary reliefs which
enable hedge accounting to continue during the period of
uncertainty before the replacement of an existing interest
rate benchmark. In addition, the amendments require
companies to provide additional information to investors
about their hedging relationships which are directly affected
by these uncertainties. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. Early
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and
in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and a
new mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for adoption now.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 285 o M i

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WAEEREHBE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

il

2.3 Issued but not yet effective 2.3 © ME#F1E & R 4 WA B BR B

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements. The amendments clarify
that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude
of information. A misstatement of information is material
if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions
made by the primary users. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBERGITRE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES &
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FTEEHHRYE

policies
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 285 o M i

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WAEEREHBE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

il

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FTESHBERME (&)

policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBERGITRE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESHBEHE (&)

policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 285 o M i

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and equity
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in

their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the

asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable

inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBERGITRE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESHBEHE (&)
policies (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued) AREETE (F)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured R BwEARTESRBRALEEB

or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised HAEEAERABERAABESHRA

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based DR MTETI BEREAAEE
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value AEREmMEAEEANSKESERE
measurement as a whole: AT EEE :

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) F—H — HENBERBEEXEER
in active markets for identical assets or JERTIZ R IRE (RE
liabilities AE)

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the FoH - ERRESHHATEHE
lowest level input that is significant to the B HEERAHAR
fair value measurement is observable, either BEFEEERTEN
directly or indirectly h E R

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the F=1 — ERFESHATT]
lowest level input that is significant to the fair BRANEEFERE
value measurement is unobservable FEMGHERM

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial IR B EERYIFRRERNE

statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines ENBEME AEERSHREHRR

whether transfers have occurred between levels in the MBEITEERN (REBEHAAER
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest EEREMEBERANRESHE
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as ABBEEEERCHEREEE

a whole) at the end of each reporting period. %o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 285 o M i

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WAEEREHBE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

il

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FTESHBERME (&)

policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets, completed
properties held for sale, properties under development,
investment properties and non-current assets/a disposal
group classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBERGITRE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES &
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

24 TEESGHERBE (&)

policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 285 o M i

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

@iy  is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)

(continued)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 285 o M i

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WAEEREHBE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

il

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FTESHBERME (&)

policies (continued)

Property and equipment and depreciation

Property and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Cost may also
include transfers from equity of any gains or losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of
property and equipment.

Expenditure incurred after items of property and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBERGITRE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES &
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESHBEHE (&)

policies (continued)

Property and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that
the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially
from its carrying amount. Changes in the values of property
and equipment are dealt with as movements in the asset
revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve is insufficient
to cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of
the deficit is charged to the statement of profit or loss. Any
subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the statement
of profit or loss to the extent of the deficit previously charged.
An annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to
retained profits is made for the difference between the
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of an
asset and the depreciation based on the asset’s original
cost. On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of
the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is transferred to retained profits as a movement in
reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated
residual values and useful lives for this purpose are as

follows:
Useful lives
Buildings 20 years
Hotel properties 40 years
Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Leasehold improvements Shorter of the
lease terms
and 5 years
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 285 o M i

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WAEEREHBE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

il

24 TEEGTHERBE (&)

policies (continued)

Property and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on
a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property and equipment when completed and
ready for use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBERGITRE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES &
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

24 TEESGHERBE (&)

policies (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use
asset (2018: leasehold property under an operating lease)
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for
sale in the ordinary course of business. Investment properties
comprise completed investment properties and investment
properties under construction. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit
or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

The Group determines whether completed properties held for
sale and properties under development would be transferred
to investment properties when, only when, there is a change
in use, evidenced by the following criteria: (a) the Group
has prepared a business plan that reflects the future rental
income generated by the property and this is supported
with evidence that there is demand for rental space; (b) the
Group can demonstrate that it has the resources, including
the necessary financing or capital, to hold and manage
an investment property; (c) the change in use is legally
permissible; (d) if the property must be further developed for
the change in use, the development has commenced and (e)
change in use is approved by the board.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 285 o M i

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WAEEREHBE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

il

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FTESHBERME (&)

policies (continued)

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and comprise land costs,
construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred
during the development period.

Properties under development which are already under
construction or expected to be under construction within
twelve months or have explicit business plan for construction
are classified as current assets. The rest of properties are
classified as non-current assets.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by
an apportionment of the total costs of land and buildings
attributable to the unsold properties. Net realisable value
takes into account the selling price, less estimated costs
to be incurred in selling the properties based on prevailing
market conditions.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2,
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Other intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Other intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of other intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of the acquisition. The useful lives of other intangible
assets are assessed to be finite. Other intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the other intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each reporting period.

The principal estimated useful lives of other intangible assets
are as follows:

Estimated
Category useful life
Brandname 20 years
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 285 o M i

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. MEBEBEERERTHE

(#)

il

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(@)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings 5-18 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

o)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there
is a maodification, a change in the lease term, a change
in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

2. MEBEBEERERTHE

(#)

il

24 TEEGTHERBE (&)

policies (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (continued)

HE (B2019F1A1REEHA)
(4&)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(©

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-
value assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBERGITRE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESHBEHE (&)

policies (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 285 o M i

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included
in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the
operating leases are credited to the statement of profit or loss
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases
net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through

other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBERGITRE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES &
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

24 TEESGHERBE (&)

policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continueq)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continueq)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash
flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets
classified and measured at amortised cost are held within
a business model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial
assets classified and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are held within a business model with
the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows
and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured

at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBERGITRE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

il

24 FEESTHEBE (&)

policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign exchange
revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same
manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The remaining fair value changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative
fair value change recognised in other comprehensive income
is recycled to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.
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31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments) (continued)

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in
which case such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment

assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or

loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured

reliably.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBERGITRE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (48)
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESHBEHE (&)
policies (continued)

il

Derecognition of financial assets KIEBRAEHMEE

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial SREE (k (WEA) " BEefEE

asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily Z— s —ERESREE &8

derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated MIETHIER K & L ETR (A

statement of financial position) when: BAEEGE M BARRKRIER)

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have . WZIEEEMGREREN
expired; or BEFMEER: 2K

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash . AEECEFRAWRZEEARE
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation FriSiieREMNER AR
to pay the received cash flows in full without material B-IBIEMN] 28 BRER
delay to a third party under a “pass-through” EE KRBT 15 P YR
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred CREFRINTE=F R
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, @ASECEEZEEENS
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained N BB [ R Kz 01 4 - k(o)A &
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but B EEESREZEEEDN
has transferred control of the asset. 1B R B B fe Bl 3y - B 2 B
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31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WAEEREHBE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

il

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FTESHBERME (&)

policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to
repay.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBERGITRE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESHBEHE (&)

policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required
for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime
ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.
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31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of

recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified

approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal

to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal

to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at

an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBERGITRE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESHBEHE (&)

policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises
a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.
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31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WAEEREHBE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FTESHBERME (&)
policies (continued)

Financial liabilities tRMEE

Initial recognition and measurement HIAE A7 5T 2

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as SR ERVBEERRESEAZRA
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and AEEFAEZNSREE BERK
borrowings, or payables, as appropriate. B BN FRIE (@A) -

Al financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, MERRABESRAER RANE
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of Bt 2 BAERRETARER K
directly attributable transaction costs. HBIENMBREEGB R IMA -
The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other FEENHSREGEREENEZERRX
payables, an amount due to the ultimate holding company, T E A FE S FRIE - FEAS S AR AR A R
lease liabilities, derivative financial instruments and interest- HIEHEEAEE TESRIANR
bearing bank and other borrowings. AFERITERREMEK-
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBERGITRE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (48)
(CONTINUED)

il

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESHBEHE (&)

policies (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of:
(i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the
policy as set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (i)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WAEEREHBE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FTESHBERME (&)
policies (continued)

il

Derecognition of financial liabilities SRIBEZALER

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under MRBEEBCRET BEEER-
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires. RlemBERIEER

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another MRBEECRMEERR —ERANE
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the BRI 2HTRBR S —2@E
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such BN KEREERRIETEE
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of WEEME SN AR RS E
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and AEIEERREEARER BN
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is BERE BEEERASE HNER
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. RiEm KR

Offsetting of financial instruments HEemT A

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the ERBFE-BAEERGEBITZ
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position BEREIEEERERE  BMEEMN
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the FRAEESRAFEREERENE
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on B -AlemEERERBERN TE
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities i MmEFERMEKARANZRT -

simultaneously.

Inventories w78

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable FERKA R AT FEMRERIEE
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis. FT{E o PR AN IR N I A EE TE o 1] &
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less TR ERGFHEEERETATTR R
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and on S RHESEENBETRAGTE -
disposal.

China New City Commercial Development Limited
160 2019 Annual Report



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S5 WA B

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WMEEEREEHE

AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WAEEREHBE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

il

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FTESHBERME (&)

policies (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination
is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is
measured at the higher of (i) the amount that would be
recognised in accordance with the general policy for
provisions above; and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, the amount of income recognised in
accordance with the policy for revenue recognition.
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBERGITRE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESHBEHE (&)

policies (continued)

Employee retirement benefits

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the PRC government,
the companies comprising the Group operating in Mainland
China (the “PRC group companies”) have participated in
a local municipal government retirement benefit scheme
(the “Scheme”), whereby the PRC group companies are
required to contribute a certain percentage of the salaries
of their employees to the Scheme to fund their retirement
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the Scheme is to pay the ongoing contributions under the
Scheme. Contributions under the Scheme are charged to the
statement of profit of loss as incurred.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax and land
appreciation tax. Income tax relating to items recognised
outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WAEEREHBE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FTESHBERME (&)
policies (continued)

il

Income tax (continued) 8%t (&)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary RIERIE B ER IR 2 B0 e AR e =

differences, except: BIEBALR B TERRIN:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial . BITR S (EBEHBRIN B
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a RS HAFEREERERE
transaction that is not a business combination and, MEANELEHRESES S
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the FIE sk R A A
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and Z2: K

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated . RMB AR LKA ERAIMNIE
with investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures, EHEBENERBEREEM
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary MY EENEE AR
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the FEH R E R R A] B K
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable Alge Mg R E o
future.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBERGITRE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES &
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

24 TEESGHERBE (&)

policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed the
at end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WAEEREHBE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

il

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FTESHBERME (&)

policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited
to a deferred income account and is released to the
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to the
statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBERGITRE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (48)
(CONTINUED)

il

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

24 TEESGHERBE (&)

policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with custorners

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group a significant financial benefit for more
than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical expedient
in IFRS 15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 285 o M i

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

@

Revenue from the sales of properties

For property development and sales contract for which
the control of the property is transferred at a point
in time, revenue is recognised when the purchasers
obtain the physical possession or the legal title of the
completed properties and the Group has present right
to payment from the purchasers.

Revenue from hotel operation

Revenue from hotel operation is derived from room
rental, food and beverage sales and income from the
provision of other ancillary services, and is recognised
when the services are rendered.

Revenue from property management

Revenue from property management services is
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line
basis because the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBERGITRE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESHBEHE (&)

policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WAEEREHBE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

il

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FTESHBERME (&)

policies (continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

Commission in obtaining contracts

Sales commissions incurred directly attributable to obtaining
a contract, if recoverable, are capitalised and recorded in
other assets. Capitalised sales commissions are charged
to profit or loss when the revenue from the related property
sale is recognised and are included as selling and marketing
expenses at that time. The Group elected to apply the
practical expedient and did not recognise the effects of the
sales commission if the time period is one year or less.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBERGITRE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES &
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESHBEHE (&)

policies (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model, further details of which are given in note 31 to the
financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfiled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement
of profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end
of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WAEEREHBE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

il

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FTESHBERME (&)

policies (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBERGITRE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESHBEHE (&)

policies (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a capitalisation rate of
8.99% (2018: 9.39%) has been applied to the expenditure on
the individual assets.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately
as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

The Company and certain subsidiaries incorporated outside
Mainland China use the Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), the United
States dollar (“US$”) and the Great Britain Pound (“GBP”)
as their functional currencies, respectively. The functional
currency of Mainland China subsidiaries is the RMB. As
the Group mainly operates in Mainland China, the RMB is
used as the presentation currency of the Group. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement

of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with
the exception of monetary items that are designated as
part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement
of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to
exchange differences on those monetary items are also

recorded in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. IREBERGITRE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES &
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESHBEHE (&)

policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance

consideration.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. WAEEREHBE
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

il

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FTESHBERME (&)

policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of non-PRC established
subsidiaries are currencies other than the RMB. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of non-PRC established subsidiaries are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of non-
PRC established companies which arise throughout the year
are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

(i) Property lease classification — Group as a lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a
major part of the economic life of the commercial property
and the present value of the minimum lease payments not
amounting to substantially all the fair value of the commercial
property, that it retains substantially all the significant risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of these properties
which are leased out and accounts for the contracts as
operating leases.
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31 December 2019 20194 12831H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Classification between investment properties,
completed properties held for sale and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If
the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual
property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an investment
property.

Classification of current and non-current properties
under development

The Group classifies properties under development according
to the construction progress and estimated commencement
date of pre-sale. Properties under development are classified
as current assets after the construction commences.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources

of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that

have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year, are described below:

@

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties were revalued based on the appraised
market value by independent professional valuers. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which are
subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from the
actual results. In making the estimate, the Group considers
information from current prices in an active market for similar
properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(@  current prices in an active market for properties of
a different nature, condition or location or subject to
different lease or other contracts, adjusted to reflect
those differences;

(o)  recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the dates of the
transactions that occurred at those prices; and
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 285 o M i

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EXEAER G
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (%)
(CONTINUED)
Estimation uncertainty (continued) TN T HBAEE (&)
()  Fair value of investment properties (continued) (i) REVELIAEHEE)

(€) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable © WREBERKBFESREZ A F(GHT
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms MmEL 2 RRSRETEA -
of any existing leases and other contracts and (when ZIEATRBEEMBREHRER
possible) by external evidence such as current market BB 2G50 ARk (nE A
rents for similar properties in the same location and 88 ) SMEE 2= (2048 B b 2 KAk
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current M2 BEUMEZBRITTHSES
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount L) MIEL - WA R E R
and timing of the cash flows. MHEHIREZRENESH

MEBZ 2 TR KT E -

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of AEBEGFAABENEERREE

the fair value include those related to current market rents HMEMERME KK EUMEZ

for similar properties in the same location and condition, ERmSES BERTEE BEIE

appropriate discount rates, expected future market rents and R TH © R AR RAEIE KR » 752019

future maintenance costs. The carrying amount of investment F12A318 REMERAEAAR

properties at 31 December 2019 was RMB5,675,600,000 #£5,675,600,0007T (20184 : A R #&

(2018: RMB5,524,300,000). Further details, including the key 5,524,300,0007T ) * # — FZ 15 (8

assumptions used for fair value measurement, are given in BAnRBEAEMEFANEERR

note 13 to the financial statements. R B WwERM T3
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(ii)

Net realisable value of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale

The Group’s properties under development and completed
properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Based on the Group’s historical experience
and the nature of the subject properties, the Group makes
estimates of the selling prices, the costs of completion
of properties under development, and the costs to be
incurred in selling the properties based on prevailing market
conditions.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in
net sales value, the net realisable value will decrease and this
may result in a provision for properties under development
and completed properties held for sale. Such provision
requires the use of judgements and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, the carrying
value and provision for properties in the period in which the
estimate is changed will be adjusted accordingly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 285 o M i

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iii)

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

LAT in the PRC is levied at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds from sale of properties less deductible expenditures
including land costs, borrowing costs and other property
development expenditures.

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the property
development business in Mainland China are subject to
LAT. However, the implementation of these taxes varies
amongst various cities in Mainland China and the Group
has not finalised its LAT returns with various tax authorities.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required in determining
the amount of land appreciation and its related taxes. The
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises these liabilities
based on management’s best estimates. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, the differences will impact the
statement of profit or loss and the provision for LAT in the
period in which the determination is made.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2019
was RMB98,995,000 (2018:Nil). Further details are given in
note 16 to the financial statements.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available (such as
for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions)
or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in
the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates
the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest
rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-
specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone
credit rating).
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31 December 2019 20194 12831H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-
use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Other non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs
of disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing
of the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows
from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based
on a market-based valuation technique as detailed in note
39 to the financial statements. The valuation requires the
Group to determine the comparable public companies
(peers) and select the price multiple. In addition, the Group
makes estimates about the discount for illiquidity and size
differences. The Group classifies the fair value of these
investments as Level 3. The fair value of the unlisted equity
investments at 31 December 2019 was RMB374,672,000
(2018: RMB416,814,000). Further details are included in note
18 to the financial statements
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on income derived from business and has four
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@  the commercial property development segment develops and
sells commercial properties in Mainland China;

(o)  the property rental segment leases investment properties in
Mainland China;

(c)  the hotel operations segment owns and operates hotels; and

(d) the “others” segment comprises, principally, the Group’s
property management services business, which provides
management and security services to commercial properties.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax from
continuing operations. The adjusted profit/loss before tax from
continuing operations is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit before tax from continuing operations except that interest
income, non-lease related finance costs, dividend income, fair value
gain/losses from the Group’s financial instruments as well as head
office and corporate expenses are excluded from the measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable,
pledged deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities
are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 2l o B

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

4. EESBEH (1])

Commercial
property Property Hotel
Year ended HZ2019F development rental operations Others Total
31 December 2019 12A31R L5 E WRAMERR MERE BELE Hith FoEy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTR ARBT R ARBT AR®TR
Segment revenue: okl ON
Sales to external customers HIMNPERPHE 1,534,552 175,412 141,270 104,619 1,955,853
Intersegment sales HEREE - 41,330 - 2,240 43,570
1,534,552 216,742 141,270 106,859 1,999,423
Reconciliation: El i
Elimination of intersegment sales AHEEELE (43,570)
Revenue from operations BEEBMA 1,955,853
Segment results SHEE 510,395 14,468 (69,333) 55,072 510,602
Reconciliation: e
Interest income FBWA 24,486
Finance costs HBER (154,960)
Profit before tax B 754 31 1 B 380,128
Segment assets AHEE 5,007,245 5,708,493 2,328,661 1,602,179 14,736,578
Reconciliation: B -
Elimination of intersegment receivables SRR TIBY H (723,854)
Corporate and other unallocated assets CEREMKRSIREE 496,000
Total assets BEE 14,508,724
Segment liabilities SHEE 1,134,309 51,730 730,812 1,183,070 3,099,921
Reconciliation: El i
Elimination of intersegment payables HEFEERRBELH (723,855)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities rEREMANEAE 5,911,123
Total liabilities BEE 8,367,189
Other segment information: HitpHER:
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 5,013 1,819 52,419 61,001 120,252
Capital expenditure EXREY 457 - 21,927 88,851 111,235

China New City Commercial Development Limited
2019 Annual Report

186



4. OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S5 WA B

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

4. EESBEH (&)

Commercial
Year ended HZE2018F property Property Hotel
31 December 2018 12A1BEFE development rental operations Others Total
HRAMERE MERE BIEEE Hft it
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFL AREF AREFT ARETR ARETR
Segment revenue: okl ON
Sales to external customers HOVBEFHE 1,578,447 160,369 111,328 74,475 1,024,619
Intersegment sales HEREEE - 35,952 - 1,722 37,674
1,678,447 196,321 111,328 76,197 1,962,293

Reconciliation: E) i

Elimination of intersegment sales AEEEELE (37,674)
Revenue from operations BEEBRRA 1,924,619
Segment results TEHEE 154,965 (29,623) (51,693) (107,844) (34,195)
Reconciliation: El i

Interest income FIBWA 13,711

Finance costs WBER (110,330)
Loss before tax BREAIESR (130,814)
Segment assets AHEE 4,780,196 5,565,032 2,107,184 760815 13,213,227
Reconciliation: GEE

Elimination of intersegment receivables A ERFE R TR (638,266)

Corporate and other unallocated assets CEREMRIEEE 656,627
Total assets BEE 13,231,588
Segment liabilities SHEE 1,875,708 126,107 257,391 1,365,501 3,624,707
Reconciliation: e

Elimination of intersegment payables SRR RELH (638,266)

Corporate and other unallocated liabilities rEREMANEAE 4,347,104
Total liabilties pafk 7,333,545
Other segment information: HitpHEH:
Depreciation & 750 1,995 39,753 7,173 49,671
Capital expenditure BERX 10,603 414 17,725 98,034 126,776
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 285 o M i

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

4. EESBEH (1])

Geographical information & &R

(a) Revenue from external customers (@) REMBEFEEZWA
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREF T
Mainland China R 1,945,910 1,924,619
Others Hb 9,943 -
1,955,853 1,924,619

The revenue information above is based on the locations of

the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

EREERTDEREF 2 E -

(b) FRBEE

2019 2018

20194 2018%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARBFT

Mainland China AR A 9,067,875 8,653,791
Japan =N 91,057 78,705
Others Etb 178,402 9
9,337,334 8,732,505

FHIERBEEER DEREE 2L
B BTBEEETERRALEBETA
Hh 2 E s H IR AR & MIRET A
and deferred tax assets. BE-

The non-current assets information above are based on the
locations of the assets and excludes equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income

1 China New City Commercial Development Limited
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4, BESWBEHE (#)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Information about major customers BAREEZFNESR
No sales to a single customer or a group of customers under WEHEE -EPHEREREH TR
common control accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s R HE R A S EE 220194 k2018
revenue for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. F12A31H IEFEUWAEI10%BLIA I o

5. EE\IﬁgUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5 WA - Hfhlilx A R &

An analysis of revenue is as follows: WARDHTIT :
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTT

Revenue from contracts with EFESHMA
customers 1,780,441 1,764,250
Revenue from other sources E T RA
Gross rental income from investment REMELCEHRE 2B IWABE
property operating leases 175,412 160,369

1,955,853 1,924,619

RE AT A BEERAT
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31 December 2019 20194 12831H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

5. WA Hfg AR

=

BEFEHWA

@

Disaggregated revenue information

i) 2DFBAEH

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ2019F12A31B L EE
Property
management
Property and other Hotel
development related services operations Total
MEER
REAM
Segments 28 MERR HERE BREE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR
Type of goods or services ~ ERBBHER
Sale of properties MEHE 1,534,552 - - 1,534,552
Hotel operating income BEZERA - - 141,270 141,270
Property management fee NEERERA
income - 104,619 - 104,619
Total revenue from contracts B A #IRA L%
with customers 1,534,552 104,619 141,270 1,780,441
Timing of
revenue recognition LN
At a point in time K 1,534,552 - 141,270 1,675,822
Over time —BREMH - 104,619 - 104,619
Total revenue from contracts B A #IMA L%
with customers 1,534,552 104,619 141,270 1,780,441

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

o
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. WA - H il A B U i
GAINS (CONTINUED) b=
Revenue from contracts with customers BEFEHWA (#E)
(continued)
Disaggregated revenue information (continued) i) HDFBAER (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE2018F12A31B IEFE
Property
management
Property and other Hotel
development related services operations Total
MEEE
REHA N
Segments a8 MR HERY BREE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'OOO RMB'000
ARETR ARBTI ARBTI AREFL
Type of goods or services ~ SRFMBER
Sale of properties MEHE 1,578,447 - - 1,578,447
Hotel operating income R EERA - - 111,328 111,328
Property management fee MEEBRERA
income - 74,475 - 74,475
Total revenue from contracts B A 4N ALE
with customers 1,678,447 74,475 111,328 1,764,250
Timing of LN LT
revenue recognition
At a point in time EEmEE 1,678,447 - 111,328 1,689,775
Over time —BEE - 74,475 - 74,475
Total revenue from contracts B A 4N A L%
with customers 1,678,447 74,475 111,328 1,764,250

Revenue from sales of properties recognised that that

was included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period is amounted to RMB862,687,000 (2018:

RMB942,899,000).

RRELFVTASHEENEHER
EEE WA A ARS862,687,0007T
(20184 : AR #942,899,0007T) °

FEFATHEZRER

NC]

FER
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31 December 2019 20194 12831H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. A -Efi A RS
GAINS (CONTINUED) (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers EFEHWA (1)
(continued)
() Disaggregated revenue information (continued) i) DFBAER (F)
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFIT
Other income Hipg A
Subsidy income G ON 1,451 1,879
Bank interest income HRITHRE WA 24,486 13,711
Others Hpth 10,447 3,315
36,384 18,905
Gains g
Changes in fair value of RARBEFABRZEMEEL
financial assets at fair value NAEEE
through profit or loss 31,625 -
Gain on fair value re-measurement BN EREERIEHELEH
of existing equity in business REREZ AR BEKE
combination not under common
control 451 -
32,076 -
68,460 18,905

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 6. BRIRAFIE (5H8)
The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/ NEBBREATFE, (F8) & (5
(crediting): A) T3 &IE
2019 2018
2019% 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M aF ARBT ARBETF T
Cost of properties sold B HEMERAE 22 849,453 1,330,618
Depreciation of property and equipment  #12 K :RIGITE 12 75,856 49,671
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 15 43,963 -
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hih i & e 17 433 -
Minimum lease payments under RIBKLEHRE
operating leases =IEHEFHIEA - 38,979
Lease payments not included in the TEFAHEAETEY
measurement of lease liabilities HER® 15 22,358 -
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BRI BN & 1,600 1,600
Staff costs including directors’ and chief B IR A (BIEEENM
executive’s remuneration: FETHAEMNS) 8
— Salaries and other staff costs —TERHMETHKA 114,317 106,133
— Pension scheme contributions —RIREFH B 18,758 16,983
Foreign exchange differences, net PERZ% FE 579 3,495
Direct operating expenses HELERE
(including repairs and maintenance (PREREMEEEN
arising on investment properties) HiE MIEE) 4,818 3,856
Loss on disposal of investment properties  H &% & ¥ 2 E51E 1,427 29,554
Gains on fair value re-measurement of BT 2N IEEIE G E
existing equity in business combination AR BREZ
not under common control N EERE 33 (451) -
Fair value (gains)/losses, net: AREE (K, EBE-
FE
Changes upon transfer to EREREMENE
investment properties 13 (50,642) 25,030
Changes in fair value of KEWMENANRBENEE
investment properties 18 36,742 (22,223)
Changes in fair value of financial assets at XA BETABIE 2
fair value through profit or loss ERMEEZANEE
b=k ) (31,625) 1,514

B 45 ZRARAT
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31 December 2019 20194 12831H

7.

FINANCE COSTS 7.

An analysis of the Group’s finance costs is as follows:

MERA

AEBNMBEERONMOT :

2019 2018
20194 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITER R EMERFE 218,936 198,985
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERE 15,034 -
Total interest expense on financial liabilites 7 3EIR A A BEET AEZH
not at fair value through profit or loss SRAEN M BEE 233,970 198,985

Less: Interest capitalised in properties B BB R EF B

under development (79,010) (88,655)

154,960 110,330

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8.
EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

ESREFETHARMS

RiE ETHAR A B R REHI5383(1)(a)
o) M ARAR (BEEEFNEE
B ROIE2EZ AT  FREBEREBITH

(Disclosure of information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is AEBEMT
as follows:
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Fees we 600 600
Other emoluments: b F BN -
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e JEAT ROEBh 932 987
Pension scheme contributions RIS ET B 21 28
953 1,015
1,553 1,615

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION
(CONTINUED)

In 2009 and 2011, certain directors were granted share options for
the shares of Zhong An Group Limited, the parent company of the
Group, as disclosed in note 31. The fair value of the options was
determined as at the date of grant. In respect of their services to
the Group, the relevant accounting impact was accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements for the financial year and included
in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
the year were as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

(§$)&EE§ THRARMSE

il

20094 R2011F - B TESERALE
BRRIRLEEAR AR RN BAE R
AES1FTINEE - A FBREN A ABERED
PHEE -EEFHEAKENREMS 1
MBREENGEMBHRRT R LMESH
BT MRS RE-

() BAFHTES

FABENBILFRTES 2RI

R
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AR¥ETT

Mr. Wu Shiyuan RETTTEE
Mr. Xu Chengfa AL E
Mr. Yan Zhenliang St npitas

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2018: Nil).

200 200
200 200
200 200
600 600

FERLEEMENBIIIFNTESE
N (20184 - £E) -

qﬂléﬁﬁf}ﬂjzmﬁ%?féﬁﬁﬁ éu

195




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 285 o M i

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8 ESRIETHARNE
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION (#8)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive b) BTES FATESRE
director and the chief executive ETBAE
Pension
Salaries and scheme
allowances Bonuses contributions Total
B
FeR e AN FTEIHER “st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT ARBTIT AR®T:R

2019 20194

Executive directors: HiTEE:

Ms. Tang Yiyan Elalzt 267 260 5 532

Ms. Jin Ni Szt - - - -
267 260 5 532

Non-executive director: HPTEE:

Mr. Shi Kancheng BEAR B 55 A - - - -

Chief executive: FETHAE -

Mr. Dong Shuixiao BERREE 405 - 16 421
672 260 21 953

2018 20184

Executive directors: HiTEE:

Ms. Tang Yiyan Bt 247 67 12 326

Ms. Jin Ni SRt - - - -
247 67 12 326

Non-executive director: HHITEE:

Mr. Shi Kancheng BT A 5 & - - - -

Chief executive: FETHEAL -

Mr. Dong Shuixiao EX A 540 133 16 689
787 200 28 1,015

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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8.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8.
EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors, a non-executive
director and the chief executive
(continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2018: Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year did not include any
(2018: Nil) director. Details of directors’ remuneration are set out
in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the five (2018: five)
non-director, highest paid employees for the year are as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

EERIETRARMNS

=

(b) MITES FATEERE
BEITHAE (&)

FAMBEEENEXREREEME
B ey 22 HE (20184F - £ ) o

LEmEFmAL

FRAASERSHFEELETMEE (2018
FoE) EEMEFBEHN X
8- FNA% (2018F : AR)FEEHRESH

BEENBSFEIBIT
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTT

Salaries, bonuses and allowances g B NORBL
Pension scheme contributions RIREEHEIHEFK

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

4,169 4,736
160 195
4,329 4,931

FHNTFUTARNEEEESHFMES
AERT

Number of employees

BEEAZ
2019 2018
20194 20184
Nil to RMB1,000,000 =& AR #¥1,000,00070 4 3
Over RMB1,000,000 j® i/ A R #1,000,0007T 1 2
5 5

No share options were granted to the non-director, highest paid
employees.

WEAFESHSFHER XL BERAE-

qﬂléﬁﬁf}ﬂjzmﬁ%?féﬁﬁﬁ éu
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10. INCOME TAX

The Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong were not liable
for income tax as they did not have any assessable profits currently
arising in Hong Kong during the year (2018: Nil).

The provision for the PRC income tax has been provided at the
applicable income tax rate of 25% (2018: 25%) on the assessable
profits of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from the sale
of properties less deductible expenditures including land costs,
borrowing costs and other property development expenditures. The
Group has estimated, made and included in taxation a provision for
LAT according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax
laws and regulations. Prior to the actual cash settlement of the LAT
liabilities, the LAT liabilities are subject to the final review/approval by
the tax authorities.

10. RIS 1R

AEBEREBTIMALAMME R ERFA
BENEBESTAANRERVAE - Bt
BRGNS (20185 : &) -

B FTS TR B AN S B e B i B9 I B
N A B FE R A $225% (20184 1 25% )
R)E ARG R R A B o

TR EN R LR E (L EYRAER
TERATHR ST (BIE LA B RBAR
MEMMEHZERH) ) AREHRKI0%E
BO%R - REBERIBEFEB RN AR
RRPTEGRTE - fh At fEHE REBREAR A
THIR(E R - AR & BIRAEE 38
BEREEZH CTHERERAGERRREE
BREERE A

2019 2018
20195 2018%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR®T R ARBETF T
Current — PRC corporate income BNHARE I8 —F I
tax for the year PR EATSHR 123,932 60,482
Current — PRC LAT for the year BIERFIIE —F N
B - 32 (E A 233,156 161,392
Deferred EEFIE 20 (22,249) (130,691)
Total tax charge for the year FRAMEMXHAE 334,839 91,183

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 10. FRr 5% (48)
RIBEARF REKXNZ W B RRAENE
EEAEEMEAERBMAABEARIE
M EBRERBETENRIER S HER

at the effective tax rate is as follows: N

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
using the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREF T

Profit/(loss) before tax BRELAIFDE, (E51E) 380,128 (130,814)
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% 125% (20184 : 25% )

(2018: 25%) EEMEGETIA 95,032 (32,704)
Lower tax rates for specific provinces or B8 & 19 5k b 5 #E 8 P & e 1Y

enacted by local authority BEME (3,316) 4,846
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on HALEFENE QT

the distributable profits of the Group’s A {55 R A E #10%

PRC subsidiaries FEMR TR 8,731 3,503
Income not subject to tax BARBUA (114) -
Expenses not deductible for tax AR X 1,356 1,110
Tax losses utilised from previous periods 2R B piHifE 2 E B) i B E5 18 (6,102) (16,600)
Tax losses not recognised RIERIBE B 64,385 9,984
Provision for LAT 3 IR E A B 233,156 161,392
Tax effect on LAT THIEERN RS E (58,289) (40,348)
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate I AEBEEREMEFENFHIBER S 334,839 91,183
Tax payable in the consolidated statement FA4R & B 765k 5 2= 7 # & 1~ B TB 38

of financial position represents:

PRC corporate income tax RS 225,956 188,336
PRC LAT AR IR E R 371,146 238,308
597,102 426,644

qﬂl%ﬁf}ﬂzmﬁ%?_‘@ﬁﬁ NG
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11. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based on the
earnings/(loss) for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent of RMB26,270,000 (2018: loss of RMB243,524,000) and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 2,010,309,319
(2018: 1,839,783,242) in issue of shares during the year, as
adjusted to reflect the shares repurchased during the year.

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based on:

HEERISEEA
2% (BR)

>
il
g

£}
i

BREARF(FE)RRESAGY
BREZFEBEABGFARA (FBE)
AR #26,270,0007T (20184 : E1E AR
243,524,0007) * LA RFAE EHTRHD Y
3 A% 1 00 T £9 202,010,309,319% (2018
:1,839,783,2420 ) 5T & - B T #HE AKX
Bk G (A 0] BE AR 5 o

EARF, (EE)RE T FE

im

2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTFT
Earnings/(loss) &BH, (EE)
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary NEIEBRERTE ARG
equity holders of the parent B/ (EE) 26,270 (243,524)
Number of shares
KROEE
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
Shares gl
Weighted average number of ordinary FREBITEBER 2 INETFHE
shares in issue during the year 2,010,309,319 1,839,783,242

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during

the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

China New City Commercial Development Limited
2019 Annual Report

REL Z20194F 201812 A31B I E & -
ANEBI EDBITEEE ST R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

12. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 12. ME R E

Hotel Office Motor  Leasehold Construction
Buildings properties  equipment vehicles improvements  in progress Total
HENE
B BIENE BORE AE B4z HEIR @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARET:
At 1 January 2018, Ro018%1 818 -
net of accumulated depreciation Mk 25 E 33,824 946,803 10,922 10,259 30,051 964,309 1,096,168
Additions NE 8,999 - 33,250 612 23,000 60,915 126,776
Construction in progress completed ~ TR EE T2 - 352,848 - - - (852,848) -
Disposals He (6,855) - (163) (437) (6,866) - (14,321)
Depreciation provided during the year TR T E (1,312) (35,668) (559) (2,144) (9,988) - (49,671)
At 31 December 2018, H2018E12A318
net of accumulated depreciation M2 E 34,656 1,263,983 43,450 8,290 36,197 672,376 2,058,952
At 31 December 2018: 20185 12A310
Cost A 56,398 1,377,257 63,099 26,563 52,598 672,376 2,248,291
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE 01742 (113,274) (19,649) (18273) (16,401) - (189,339)
Net carrying amount RHEFE 34,656 1,263,983 43,450 8,290 36,197 672,376 2,058,952
At 1 January 2019, H2019F1 /18
net of accumulated depreciation NG 2:eE 34,656 1,263,983 43,450 8,290 36,197 672,376 2,058,952
Additions RNE 92 - 40,542 2,717 - 67,884 111,235
Acaquisition of a subsidiary (note 33)  4xf& — R B2 A (HI7£33) - - 2,410 - 9,755 - 12,165
Transfer from properties under BRETENE
development - - - - - 344,086 344,086
Construction in progress completed R EE T2 136,452 849,397 - - 106,967  (1,092,816) -
Disposals e - - (203) (171) - - (374)
Depreciation provided during the year & RHEH & (3,692) (51,526) (8,406) (2,222) (10,010) - (75,856)
At 31 December 2019, 2019128318
net of accumulated depreciation ngRiNE 167,508 2,061,854 77,7193 8,614 142,909 (8,470) 2,450,208
At 31 December 2019: 2019128318
Cost AR 192,942 2,226,654 105,848 29,109 169,320 (8,470) 2,715,403
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (25,434) (164,800) (28,055) (20,495) (26,411) - (265,195)
Net carrying amount RHEE 167,508 2,061,854 77,793 8,614 142,909 (8,470) 2,450,208
Although the Group had obtained the land use rights certificates of REASECESEEIEN T HFERARE
construction in progress, building ownership certificates may be not FHE BUEFREIRRTIRIAEEENGERE
obtained before the completion of construction work. EREe

At 31 December 2019, certain items of the Group’s property

M2019F12A318 - AEEE TWHEKRK

%18 B BREFE A & A R #624,560,0007T
(20184 : AR #498,179,0007T) * a0} 5
OFTIN TR - EAERASEERT BRITER
Ko Ho A f& FRE AR

and equipment with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB624,560,000 (2018: RMB498,179,000) were pledged to
secure interest-bearing bank and other borrowings granted to the
Group as disclosed in note 29.

F B AR m?ﬁ%?ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ n
—hEF
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. EME

Investment Investment
Completed properties properties
investment under held for
properties construction sale Total
BRI HE BEHE
REME REME REME @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETFI ARBTI AREF
At 31 December 2017 and R2017F12A318 &
1 January 2018 2018F1A1H 5,472,345 - 194,955 5,667,300
Transfer from properties under TEEMEER
construction - 24,924 - 24,924
Transfer to investment properties BRERENE 24,924 (24,924) - -
Transfers from completed properties BEREDRIHEEENE
held for sale 80,006 - - 80,006
Fair value loss upon transfer HRENAEBEEBSR (25,030) - - (25,030)
Increase in investment properties BEMEEM 107,732 - - 107,732
Transfer to investment properties BREHEHERENE
held for sale (176,839) - 176,839 -
Disposal HE - - (352,855) (352,855)
Changes in fair value of investment REMENLABERES
properties 19,469 - 2,754 22,223
At 31 December 2018 and 720185124310 20195
1 January 2019 1A18 5,502,607 - 21,693 5,524,300
Transfers from completed properties BRACRIHEHENE
held for sale 59,541 - - 59,541
Fair value gain upon transfer ERENEBERS 50,642 - - 50,642
Increase in investment properties BEMELM 131,218 - - 131,218
Transfer to investment properties BRSHEHERENE
held for sale (346,047) - 346,047 -
Disposal & - - (53,359) (53,359)
Changes in fair value of investment BREMENLABEEY
properties (39,321) - 2,579 (36,742)
At 31 December 2019 2019124318 5,358,640 - 316,960 5,675,600
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S5 WA B

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

13. W= (&)

2019 2018

20195 20184

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

k=3 ART T AREEF T

Non-current assets EMBEE 5,358,640 5,502,607
Current assets MEEE (e) 316,960 21,693
5,675,600 5,524,300

(@) Al investment properties of the Group were revalued at the @ AKBEEIMEEVERFRABLE

end of the year by an independent professionally qualified
valuer, CBRE Limited, at fair value. CBRE Limited is an
industry specialist in investment property valuation. The fair
value represents the amount at which the assets could be
exchanged between a knowledgeable and willing buyer and
a seller in an arm’s length transaction at the date of valuation,
in accordance with International Valuation Standards.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as
well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable.

Investment properties held by the Group in the consolidated
statement of financial position were valued into fair value
hierarchy level 3 as shown below. During the year, there were
no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and
Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2018: Nil).
The valuation techniques adopted are the direct comparison
approach and the income approach (term and reversion
approach), and key inputs are:

(1) Term yield: the higher the term yield, the lower the fair
value;

(2)  Reversionary yield: the higher the reversionary yield, the
lower the fair value;

(8)  Market unit rent: the higher the market unit rent, the
higher the fair value; and

(4)  Price per square metre: the higher the price, the higher
the fair value.

EABEBRMEMERBIECER AR
RANBESEM - HARBEERA
BAINEFMAREMEMENTER
Ko BEEURABEMRER M
BEHRNEERAREBEERGEEREL
RIRGRIGEENTHRE -

TREJIMABERFREVENR
AEE(CER ARSNGB ERTR
BABB)WERARREARER

uﬂ'i%/\%ﬁﬁ—@ﬂm&riﬂﬁ”&ﬁ%
Bt 2N A BERE(E—2F=
;) e

ﬁé\ﬂﬁ%ﬂiﬁ%%qnl&%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ
METDIET X AREBESR

=RETHE-FAN ANE ﬁﬁi
BERNBEIR R E2 2 BES  NE
8 A sk 8 S534% (20184F « ) » %
M S E R BB E L8R RIRAE
(FBESER) mMEBEAREA:

(1) EEMEEE  HEREEES
N EEBIE:

@ ERREEERREEES
N EEBIE:

@ WmHEBNES THELES
BE AREESES: K

@ BFIAKER:ERES AR
EEYS-

FEFATHEERERL
—-nEE

=]

-
#
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. 1 EME (18)
(CONTINUED)
(@  (continued) @) (&)
The significant unobservable inputs EXRFAEREARE

Investment properties
held by the Group
AEEFRBFEEREYE

Property 1 -

Property in Hangzhou
(Guomao Building)
1R E — M
(HE8XE)

Significant unobservable inputs

EATUERRABE

Term yield, taking into account yield of 4% for office portion and 5.5% for retail portion,
generated from comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty of term
income secured and to be received.

Bt T R AR W 5 B AR WO WS T R B e ) 2 RS R B UCER 2 A8 BRU A T 2
B U G R R4% R T EH10 R5.5% ©

Reversionary yield of 5.5% for office portion and 6% for retail portion, taking into
account annual unit market rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties.

K hBUTSFEHESBARREYENSBLTE RPN EE KGR ERSL%
NEEFN R6% -

Market unit rent of RMB1.7/sgm/day for office portion and RMB4.9/sgm/day for retail
portion, using direct market comparables and taking into account location and other
individual factors such as road frontage, size of property and facilities.
EREEMSLRT AN RUE RBEER WERNRRBESEMEREZE-
THELEEREFHRERARK1I.7T (RAED) REFHARAGRARKLIT
(AL ) »

Price of RMB9,800/sgm for office portion and RMB23,800/sgm for retail portion, using
market direct comparables and taking into account location and other individual factors
such as road frontage and size of property.
CREEDSLEUAT RS REHERIMERNNEHEMENRE BRAT
FITARANR9,8007T (HAE M) BB F I AKANRE23,8007T (FH#HHH)

China New City Commercial Development Limited

2019 Annual Report



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. 1 EME (18)
(CONTINUED)
(@  (continued) @) (&)
The significant unobservable inputs BERFTUEHEGRARE (&)
(continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group
AEBEERENE

Property 2 -
Property in Shanghai
(La Vie)

2EME— EBYE
(3R4eet)

Significant unobservable inputs

EXTBRRARE

Term yield, taking into account yield of 5%, generated from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the certainty of term income secured and to be received.

KT R RIFR YD 3 B HE O W as T IR L ) B A % B W B 2 AR BR U A T /B 2 38
B MHe WS ERE% o

Reversionary yield of 5.5%, taking into account annual unit market rental income and
unit market value of the comparable properties.

Bt RBEAMSFERSWARRBYENELNE ERWEER55% -

Market unit rent of RMB7.8/sgm/day, using direct market comparables and taking into

account location and other individual factors such as road frontage, size of property

and facilities.

ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%m?ﬁilwﬁ&uﬁﬁh%‘%\%¥k¢&&ﬁ% LA {E B A 2%
HEMEEABTAIREBRARKT8T

Price of RMB50,500/sgm, using market direct comparables and taking into account
location and other individual factors such as road frontage and size of property.
CREEMSLEUAT RS RBGEHERIMENNEHEMENRE BRAT
77K AR #50,5007T ©

EPl%ﬁiBszﬁ%?{éEﬁB éu
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. B BME (#|)
(CONTINUED)
(@  (continued) (@) (&)
The significant unobservable inputs BERFUEHER ARE (&)

(continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group
rEBFEERENE

Property 3 —

Property in Hangzhou
(Integrated Service Center)
SMWE—TINIE

(4R & RFEH L)

Significant unobservable inputs

EXTBRHARE

Term yield, taking into account yield of 5.5%, generated from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the certainty of term income secured and to be received.
At T R AR Y 5 B AR B W T IR B e ) 2L RS K B R 2 A8 BRU A T 2
B THAIN R K R5.5% o

Reversionary yield of 6%, taking into account annual unit market rental income and unit
market value of the comparable properties.
Kt RBUMSFEHSWARRBYENELTE B8RS ER/6% -

Market unit rent of RMB3.8/sgm/day, using direct market comparables and taking into
account location and other individual factors such as road frontage, size of property
and facilities.

A EEMIS B AWK R E MGETER  WMERNRREEHEMERE =
MSEUHERET T HRERARKIST

Price of RMB20,600/sgm, using market direct comparables and taking into account
location and other individual factors such as road frontage and size of property.
CREEMSLBUAT T MU ERGEHERIDENNSEEMERNRE BERE
77K AR #20,6007T ©

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. BEME (#|)
(CONTINUED)
@  (continued) @) (#8)
The significant unobservable inputs EXRFASERARE (&)

(continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group
AEBEERENE

Property 4 —

Property in Hangzhou

(Retail portion of Highlong Plaza)
ZEikZE Sk AN EES

(B ESEEE D)

Significant unobservable inputs

EXTBRRARE

Term yield, taking into account yield of 5.5%, generated from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the certainty of term income secured and to be received.
Bt T R AR Y 5 B A B0 W T R B e ) 2 RS e BN R 2 A8 BRU A T 1 2
B THAIN R ER5.5% ©

Reversionary yield of 6%, taking into account annual unit market rental income and unit
market value of the comparable properties.

Bt RBEAMSFERESRARRABYENELTE ERKREER6% -

Market unit rent of RMB6.3/sgm/day, using direct market comparables and taking into

account location and other individual factors such as road frontage, size of property

and facilities.

E%E%ﬁ%mﬁﬁilwﬁ&uﬁﬁﬁm‘%\%¥k¢&ﬁﬁ% LA {E B A 2%
HEMHEE AT REBRARKEIT.

Price of RMB32,000/sgm, using market direct comparables and taking into account
location and other individual factors such as road frontage and size of property.
CREEDSLEUAT RS RGEHERIMENNEEMENRE BRAT
77K AR #32,0007T ©

EPl%ﬁiBszﬁ%?{éEﬁB éu
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. 1 EME (18)
(CONTINUED)
(@  (continued) @) (&)
The significant unobservable inputs BERFUEHER ARE (&)
(continued)

Investment properties

held by the Group Significant unobservable inputs

TEBREEREYE EXTABEBAYE

Property 5 — Term yield, taking into account yield of 5.75%, generated from comparable properties
Property in Hangzhou and adjustment to reflect the certainty of term income secured and to be received.
(Landscape Garden) Lt R EBEYEEEN R X AR BFEYE S KRBV UE 2 AU A MM EL 2 7
SR E - B R R R5.75% ©

(17K38)

Reversionary yield of 6.25%, taking into account annual unit market rental income and
unit market value of the comparable properties.

B RBEATSFERSWRARRBYENELTE  ERWEER6.25% °

Market unit rent of RMB2.4/sgm/day, using direct market comparables and taking into

account location and other individual factors such as road frontage, size of property

and facilities.

ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?%?ﬁi%ttfﬁiﬁr%« T RAE REREBE MERNRRESEMEREZE
HBEMMEE AT REBRARKE247T -

Price of RMB13,500/sgm, using market direct comparables and taking into account
location and other individual factors such as road frontage and size of property.
CREEMSLBUAT T MU ERGEHERIDENNSEEMERNRE BERE
FI7R AR #13,5007T

China New City Commercial Development Limited
2019 Annual Report



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. BEME (#|)
(CONTINUED)
@  (continued) @) (#8)
The significant unobservable inputs EXRFASERARE (&)

(continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group
AEBEERENE

Property 6 —

Property in Hangzhou
(Hidden Dragon Bay)
B E — N

(i)

Significant unobservable inputs

EXTBRRARE

Term yield, taking into account yield of 5%, generated from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the certainty of term income secured and to be received.

KT R RIFR YD 3 B HE O W as T IR L ) B A % B W B 2 AR BR U A T /B 2 38
B THAIN R ERE% o

Reversionary yield of 6%, taking into account annual unit market rental income and unit
market value of the comparable properties.

Bt RBEAMSFERASRARRABYENELTE ERKREER6% -

Market unit rent of RMB4.4/sgm/day, using direct market comparables and taking into

account location and other individual factors such as road frontage, size of property

and facilities.

ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%m?ﬁilwﬁ&uﬁﬁﬁm‘%\%¥k¢&ﬁﬁ% LA {E B A 2%
HBEMEEABTAIREBRARK44T-

Price of RMB21,000/sgm, using market direct comparables and taking into account
location and other individual factors such as road frontage and size of property.
CREEDSLEUAT RS RGEHERIMENNEEMENRE BRAT
77K AR #21,0007T

B 45 ZRARAT
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. 1 EME (18)
(CONTINUED)
(@  (continued) @) (&)
The significant unobservable inputs BERFUEHER ARE (&)
(continued)

Investment properties

held by the Group Significant unobservable inputs

TEBREEREYE EXTABEBAYE

Property 7 — Term yield, taking into account yield of 5.75%, generated from comparable properties
Property in Yuyao and adjustment to reflect the certainty of term income secured and to be received.
(intime City) KR R R 2 B A A s B R I R R 1) B BRAS e B MR 2 AR BRI A T H 2 3
TSR E — Rk B R R R5.75% ©

(SRZFER)

Reversionary yield of 6.25%, taking into account annual unit market rental income and
unit market value of the comparable properties.

B RBEATSFERSWRARRBYENELTE  ERWEER6.25% °

Market unit rent of RMB4.1/sgm/day, using direct market comparables and taking into

account location and other individual factors such as road frontage, size of property

and facilities.

ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?%?ﬁi%ttfﬁiﬁr%« T RAE REREBE MERNRRESEMEREZE
BEMEE AT RERARKEIT -

Price of RMB16,500/sgm, using market direct comparables and taking into account
location and other individual factors such as road frontage and size of property.
CREEMSLBUAT T MU ERGEHERIDENNSEEMERNRE BERE
TR AR #16,5007T ©

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. 1 EME (18)
(CONTINUED)
(@  (continued) @) (&)
The significant unobservable inputs BERFTUEHEGRARE (&)
(continued)

Investment properties

held by the Group Significant unobservable inputs

TEBREEREYE EXTABERAYE

Property 8 — Term yield, taking into account yield of 5.75%, generated from comparable properties
Property in Yuyao and adjustment to reflect the certainty of term income secured and to be received.
(Retail portion of Times Square I) A& &1 K& FIZEMFE 4 I E K& A KR EY) B ES &AW EL 2 A HIR A mIEH 2 #
8SRE — Rk B R R R5.75% ©

(RRES—HEiEass)
Reversionary yield of 6.25%, taking into account annual unit market rental income and
unit market value of the comparable properties.

Bt RBEATSFERSRARRBYENELTE  ER WS EH6.25% °

Market unit rent of RMB3.0/sgm/day, using direct market comparables and taking into

account location and other individual factors such as road frontage, size of property

and facilities.

ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ?ﬁ%tt??ﬁflﬁ“ TR E REREEE  MER N RREEEMERE X
HEMEE AT T RERARKEIOT:.

Price of RMB15,200/sgm, using market direct comparables and taking into account
location and other individual factors such as road frontage and size of property.
CREEMSLEUAT RS RBGEHERIMENNEHEMENRE BRAT
FI7R AR #15,2007T

B 45 BRAEMRAR
R EE mﬁ%_ ﬁf‘g 211
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(CONTINUED)

(@  (continued)

The significant unobservable inputs
(continued)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy:

13. W= (&)

@) (&)
BERATUEHEGASE (&)

DEBEZRAABEER 2 AAEMERT
BHER:

Commercial

properties

EmRAYE

RMB’000

ARBFT

Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 H2018%1A1H Z BREE 2,985,800
Net loss from a fair value adjustment recognised in RIEEME AR BEEHER Y

changes in fair value of investment properties NREBEFAR Y BIEERE (109,500)

Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 and 72018F12A31H &

1 January 2019 20191 A1B Z REE 2,876,300
Net gain from a fair value adjustment recognised in WRE NREBEESHHERZ

changes in fair value of investment properties NAEBEARZ WS FEE 44,000

Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 R2019%F 12310 2 BRE A 2,920,300

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated
using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of
ownership over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal value.
This method involves the projection of a series of cash flows on a
property interest. A market-derived discount rate is applied to the
projected cash flow in order to establish the present value of the
income stream associated with the asset. The exit yield is normally
separately determined and differs from the discount rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows
and outflows are determined by events such as rent reviews, lease
renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or refurbishment.
The appropriate duration is driven by market behaviour that is
a characteristic of the class of property. The periodic cash flow
is estimated as gross income less vacancy, non-recoverable
expenses, collection losses, lease incentives, maintenance costs,
agent and commission costs and other operating and management
expenses. The series of periodic net operating income, along with
an estimate of the terminal value anticipated at the end of the
projection period, is then discounted.

China New City Commercial Development Limited
2019 Annual Report

RBRERBEREE ARABEIRARE
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(BREREBERRREE) -%IESRY
MERD—RIRSREMTEN - BRI
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(CONTINUED)

(@  (continued)

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rental value and
the market rent growth rate per annum in isolation would result in
a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the investment
properties.

A significant increase (decrease) in the long term vacancy rate and
the discount rate in isolation would result in a significant decrease
(increase) in the fair value of the investment properties. Generally,
a change in the assumption made for the estimated rental value is
accompanied by a directionally similar change in the rent growth
per annum and the discount rate and an opposite change in the
long term vacancy rate.

There are five properties — the International Office Center, the
Office portion of Highlong Plaza, the Serviced apartment portion
of Highlong Plaza and the Retail portion of Xixi New City, four
properties in Hangzhou, and the Retail and Office portion of Time
Square I, a property in Yuyao are valued and categorised into Level
2 fair value hierarchy. The valuation technique adopted is the direct
comparison approach, and the key input is price per square metre.
The higher the price, the higher the fair value.

The significant unobservable input for the International Office Center
is the price of RMB36,500/sgm, using market direct comparables
and taking into account location and other individual factors such
as road frontage and size of property. As at 31 December 2019, the
investment property part of the International Office Center is valued
and categorised into Level 2 fair value hierarchy with a carrying
amount of RMB2,614,000,000 (2018: RMB2,485,000,000).

13

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

REYME (])

(@) (&)

M HEEERTSHSFEEXERZA

RN ORD) BEEIREMEZ AABE
KIEZ I OB D) ©
RZERR R KREBFAEL I OR D)

BEBREMET DR BEAERD (H
M) o~ 5 - AR EEE R OB
SNEDLEIELFHERERELR
BUAHEBRERRNEEERARA
Bk o

LE DR — BB RSO B ESH

\|

NER D B EEREARE RFEFMT
ZEMO (HEH/NAM) RERES =
HTZERRAMN (—RBURRIZWE)

BETHRELNBASREEETRE2H -
RO GERMRERLEE MEIBHA
BEAETHABR -BRUR ANEE
e

BWMAROLHERTAIBRREASER
tiﬁﬁ“AEﬁ%%omw BB
BEREETISLEEW AT R B KRR
HER WMEXNNFHMERNEEZEE -
20195128318 EEH AR LHIRE
MEFDEETHELDERAABES
JFEof - BRTEE B AR %2,614,000,0007T
(20184 = A R#2,485,000,0007T) °

F B AR m?ﬁ%?ﬁéﬁﬁfﬁ n
—hEF
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(CONTINUED)

(@  (continued)

The significant unobservable input for the Office portion of
Highlong Plaza is the price of RMB12,700/sgm, using market
direct comparables and taking into account location and other
individual factors such as road frontage and size of property. As
at 31 December 2019, the investment property part of the Office
portion of Highlong Plaza is valued and categorised into Level 2 fair
value hierarchy with a carrying amount of RMB40,400,000 (2018:
RMBE8,000,000).

The significant unobservable input for the Serviced apartment
portion of Highlong Plaza is the price of RMB15,800/sgm, using
market direct comparables and taking into account location
and other individual factors such as road frontage and size of
property. As at 31 December 2019, the investment property part
of the Serviced apartment portion of Highlong Plaza is valued and
categorised into Level 2 fair value hierarchy with a carrying amount
of RMB22,600,000 (2018: RMB39,000,000).

The significant unobservable input for the investment property part
of the Retail portion of Xixi New City is the price of RMB47,200/
sgm, using market direct comparables and taking into account
location and other individual factors such as road frontage
and size of property. As at 31 December 2019, the investment
property part of the Retail portion of Xixi New City is valued and
categorised into Level 2 fair value hierarchy with a carrying amount
of RMB28,300,000 (2018:Nil).

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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13. W= (&)

(@) (&)

B R 45 T A 5040 RO B AT A B 2 8 A 2K
BAESFHKARE12,7007THEIE  %Z
BEFAEETMSLBETTRUEUR
RATER MEXNNSEAMAEANERREE -
2019124318  1BE B 5 I A & B
CEMEBHDETHELDEEANRE
BESHFE2A - BREE R A K #40,400,000
7T (20184 : A R68,000,0007T ) °

BEREESRERXAZHMHHERTAIEE
8 A B RS T 77 Ok AR #15,8007T #) (8
1% ZEEEFEAEENSLBETR R
BEUREGHEE MEXNEEMERNRE
ETE - 72019F 12 A31H  ER EHRER
NEBHOREYETH D ETHEL S
BAANBESLFER FEHEAARE
22,600,0007T (20184 : A R #39,000,000
TT) °

PRI T E LR MHORENEDHHER
TABISR B ABIR ARG T R ARE47,200
TRER ZEHEFEAEEMISLEET
T RAIE A REBREER MEXNEHME
RIFEREE - 20195124318 - FEHM
MEEHNHBREMESH D ETHEAEL
PEAANBESLEN FEHEAAR
#528,300,0007T (20184 : f&) ©
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. B E (1)
(CONTINUED)
(@  (continued) @) (&)
By the end of 2017, the Retail and Office portion of Time Square R2017F KAl BRES ZBHNZTERHA

Il was originally designed for sale. In October 2018, Management
decided to change the usage of the Retail and Office portion of
Time Square Il from sale to lease out. Significant unobservable input
for the Retail portion of Time Square Il is the price of RMB7,800/
sgm and that for the Office portion of Time Square Il is the price of
RMB6,850/sgm, using market direct comparables and taking into
account location and other individual factors such as road frontage
and size of property. As at 31 December 2019, the investment
property part of the Retail and Office portion of Time Square I
is valued and categorised into Level 2 fair value hierarchy with a
carrying amount of RMB50,000,000. (2018: RMB56,000,000)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group’s investment properties:

HORETIAEE A B R mRET - 72018
FI0R BEEHAEBERES _HNE
ERBRFOBEREEERREME-
KRES -—HEEBNHNERTIERE
AEERE T RARET,800THER -
iR E S Z R PR B E XA E
B ABBRE T RKARE6,850THIE
BREHEEREETSLEE AT R
LB KRERATER  MERNEEMAERNE
HETE - M2019F12A318 ' EHRRES
ZHNZTE R RO RIREMES 5 E
TEELDEAAABESRER KE
& & A R #50,000,0007T (20184 : AR#E
56,000,0007T ) °

N\,

A REESR

TRHEAAEEERENR 2 A EBEFE

E4

A

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2019 using

R2019F 128 AEANTEEN LA ABEFE

Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable  unobservable
Recurring fair value UTEBZREMARERE  active markets inputs inputs
measurement for: HE: (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERm S EAAEBE EXTAHEE
HRE BARE BAE
(SE145) (524 31) (5834 A1) wsct
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
Commercial properties [k ES - 2,755,300 2,930,300 5,675,600
AR BT I T Fﬁ%?ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ NS
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(CONTINUED)

(@  (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

13. W= (&)

(@) (&)

IREESR (F)

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2018 using
R2018F12A31 A AU T RENAABETE

Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservable
Recurring fair value UTEBZREMARERE  active markets inputs inputs
measurement for: HE: (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERT S EAABE EAMTEHE
MRE BAHE BAHR
(14 A0 (E2MA0) (E3@A) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETT ARBFT ARBFT
Commercial properties EhikIES 2,648,000 2,876,300 5,524,300

(b)  The Group’s investment properties situated on the leasehold
land in Mainland China are all leased for 30 to 50 years.

() Investment properties leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
lease arrangements. All leases run for a period of one to
fifteen years, with an option to renew the leases after the
expiry dates, at which time all terms will be renegotiated.
The Group’s total future minimum lease receivables under
non-cancellable operating leases arising from investment
properties are as follows:

AEBOREYE (LR EAHE
HE 1 30) BEIH N FHRI0E505

RBEEHEEHHNREME

AEBERBLEEERALREY
X-MEHERAM—Z=+A%E XA
BN D BRI EHER 2 B
THEIHEE - AEERBETATHUEKL
LHERREMEMEHARRER
EEMGRIBRBRIT

2019 2018

2019 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AREBF T

Within one year —F N 79,763 74,551
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_EZFEAF (REEREMF) 154,333 175,829
Atfter five years HFELE 48,089 61,957
282,185 312,337

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

The significant unobservable inputs
(continued)

©

At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s investment
properties with a carrying amount of RMB1,317,502,000
(2018: RMB1,238,247,000) were pledged to secure interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings granted to the Group as
disclosed in note 29.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had entered into certain
sale and purchase agreements to sell certain investment
properties with a carrying amount of RMB316,960,000
(2018: RMB21,693,000). Besides, the Group also received
deposits of approximately RMB266,234,000 (2018:
RMB8,153,000), and the amount received was recognised as
contract liabilities as at 31 December 2019.

14. PROPERTIES UNDER

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S5 WA B

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

13. W= (&)

EATOEEWARE (&)
d) H2019F 128310 ' IRIEM 7F29

FRE AEEEEEARARE
1,317,502,0007T (20184 : A R ¥
1,238,247,0007T) K& TIREMEE
EREEREFE T BIRITER R E b fE
FRE AR o

R2019F12A31H REBET &
TEEHBZULEREEAAR
#316,960,0007T (20184 : AR ¥
21,693,0007T) K& TR &Y -
AN AEB B WEIZSHAR
#266,234,0007T (201845 : AR ¥
8,153,0007T ) ° A2019F 124318 -
BB eEERRAENER-

14. AR ME

DEVELOPMENT

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥T T ARBEF T
Carrying amount at 1 January M1 A1BEREE 1,847,069 2,851,414
Additions NE 563,826 1,157,277
Transfer to investment properties BRI A 13 - (24,924)
Transfer to construction in progress HBSTETRE 12 (344,086) -

Transfer to completed properties EREFEHEC RN E
held for sale 22 (633,974) (2,136,698)
Carrying amount at 31 December R12A31HEEEE 1,432,835 1,847,069
Current assets BB E 497,524 913,669
Non-current assets FRBEE 935,311 933,400
1,432,835 1,847,069

Except for one property located in Japan, the rest of the Group’s

properties under development are located in Mainland China.

Br— LI AARSN AEEEARFE D
MELLA T B A o

qﬂléﬁﬁf}ﬂjzmﬁ%?féﬁﬁﬁ éu
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31 December 2019 20194 12831H

14. PROPERTIES UNDER

DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

14. AR HRYE (18)

2019 2018

20194 20184F

Japan A7 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT

Freehold KA 80,037 77,291

The carrying amounts of the properties under development situated
on the leasehold land in Mainland China are as follows:

YR (LR AMAEE )&
FRmEEMT:

2019 2018

20195 20184

Mainland China R A RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T

Leases between 30 and 50 years FH HABOE 504 1,352,798 1,769,778

At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s properties under
development with a carrying amount of RMB124,462,000 (2018:
RMB753,053,000) were pledged to secure interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings granted to the Group as disclosed in note 29.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

=
15. LEASES 15. 18§
The Group as a lessee AEBEAEBEA
The Group has lease contracts for buildings used in its operations. AEEBREAREEER 2 EFHEAY
Leases of buildings generally have lease terms between 5 and HEBFHEHR RN F5E18F  — K&
18 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and ME ASRETFEERSETBRAEHE
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. ZHEEE-
(@  Right-of-use assets @ (FREEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and AEBRFRZFEABEERDER
the movements during the year are as follows: BEhT
Buildings
BF
RMB’000
ARET T
As at 1 January 2019 20191811 279,579
Additions NE 67,321
Additions as a result of acquisition of a subsidiary AU E—E B ATIARE 13,851
Depreciation charge WESH (43,963)
As at 31 December 2019 R2019%12A31H 316,788

B 45 ZRARAT
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31 December 2019 20194 12831H

15. LEASES (CONTINUED)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)  Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

15. 8 (#§)

REBEEREEA (F)

b HEEEE

REAZHEERBERAERZSHN

during the year are as follows: e
Lease
liabilities
HEEE
RMB’000
ARETFIT
As at 1 January 2019 7201941818 273,178
New leases e 67,321
Additions as a result of acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — B RARIRE 13,851
Accretion of interest recognized during the year FNHER 2N EIE N 15,034
Payments (VB (36,987)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 M2019F12A31H 2 BREE 332,397
Analysed into DE:
Current portion L ENER 24,297
Non-current portion SERBNER 308,100
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 40 HEBB YA MHEERMBR

to the financial statements.

China New City Commercial Development Limited
2019 Annual Report

KHI5E40 ©



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

= (4=
15. LEASES (CONTINUED) 15. 8 ()
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBERAEBEA (F)
©)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases c HEEEEREzTRERZSBEN
are as follows: N
2019
2019F
RMB’000
ARBEF T
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEME 15,034
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets TREEEZTESH 43,963
Expense relating to short-term leases and HEHHEREEEEEHER@ .
leases of low-value assets X (BFATTBRHX)
(included in administrative expenses) 22,358
Total amount recognized in profit or loss RIBmP R 2258 81,355
(d)  Extension and termination options d) EHIRKRILRERE
The Group has no lease contracts that include extension and REBEWME ST X IEERE
termination options. HEEL-
()  Variable lease payments ©) FHENK
The Group has no lease contracts that contains variable AEFRTEBENENHRIEE
payments. #ye
) The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflows ) MHEEZRSHAERESKRFGZ
relating to leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed HEAEZRKRERE D RIFRER
in note 34(c) and 36, respectively, to the financial statements. B 75 ¥R 7= T 7534 (c) 1236 °

B 45 ZRARAT
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31 December 2019 20194 12831H

15. LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties consisting of one
commercial properties in Yuyao and two commercial properties
in Hangzhou under operating lease arrangements. The terms of
the leases generally require the tenants to pay security deposits
and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the
then prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised
by the Group during the year was RMB175,412,000 (2018:
RMB160,369,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the
financial statements.

At 31 December 2019, the undiscounted lease payment receivable
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants are as follows:

15. 8 (#§)

AEBERHEA

AEBBRBELEEHERHLHEKLEY
¥ EFRE—ERRZERMERN
BRMMzERAYME-HEBKRR—BREX
MPENRESRBEERMMATE N
BHE - AEERFABAZHSEA
B AR#175,412,0007T (20184F : A R
160,369,0007T) - B BE=F 1B E A B #5 i = T
55 e

MR2019F 12831 H  AEERIFHEER P
RIS 2 AN AT 8 A A TR B A SR Ok HR R e Uk
ZABRAEMNTOT

2019 2018

20195 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETTT

Within one year —FR 79,763 74,551
After one year but within two years ZR—FEPRME 43,732 54,847
After two years but within three years ZHRMEBLRZE 39,677 45,853
After three years but within four years LR =FELRESE 36,580 38,743
After four years but within five years ZRUFEERDIRASE 34,344 36,386
After five years HFELE 48,089 61,957
282,185 312,337

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

16. GOODWILL 16.5 8
RMB’000
ARETFIT
Cost at 1 January 2019, net of accumulated impairment MR20195F1 A1B 2 BAS - kg REHRVE -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 33) Wb — R B A ) (Ff15133) 98,995
Impairment during the year FARE -
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2019 MR2019F12A31 A Z AN R BREFE 98,995
At 31 December 2019: 2019412 A318 :
Cost &N 98,995
Accumulated impairment ZERE -
Net carrying amount BREFAE 98,995
Impairment testing of goodwill BEZRENR
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to EREGEHEB2EENRENTRS
the following cash-generating units for impairment testing. EL BT LUEITRE R -
The recoverable amount of the pre-education business cash- BRI EEBReERNE T2 RE &5
generating unit has been determined based on a value in use EREFEHREENECTAERNSAETERERE
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets FrtERERFHR o M BEE RSN
covering a five-year period approved by senior management. The EEAET -HERETBAMER 2L
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections was 13% and EH13% ML AFHRcReREFA
cash flows beyond the five-year period were extrapolated using 2.85% 2 RREE  ZIGREKHEEBRI{TE
a growth rate of 2.85%, which was the same as the long term 2 REFFHERERR -

average growth rate of the pre-education industry.

1 g}%@ NG|
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31 December 2019 20194 12831H

16. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
pre-education business cash-generating unit for 31 December
2019. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwiill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross
margins achieved in the year immediately before the budget year,
increased for expected efficiency improvements, and expected
market development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on the market
development of the pre-education business and discount rates are
consistent with external information sources.

The management of the Group assessed that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
carrying amount of the pre-education business cash-generating unit
to exceed its respective recoverable amount as at 31 December
2019.
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. Hth i\ EE
Brandname
mEER
RMB’000
ARET
31 December 2019 2019 12831H
Cost at 1 January 2019, net of accumulated amortisation 7201991 B18 Z A7 H1k K585 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 33) U B8 — FE BT /8 2 &) (P9 5E33) 34,690
Amortisation provided during the year FREH 2 #H (433)
At 31 December 2019 R2019%F12H31H 34,257
At 31 December 2019: 2019128318 :
Cost %N 34,690
Accumulated amortisation RETEEH (433)
Net carrying amount

BREHE 34,257

qﬂléﬁﬁf}ﬂjmﬁ%?féﬁﬁﬁ éu
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31 December 2019 20194 12831H

18. EQUITY INVESTMENTS
DESIGNATED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HESEBARKREGAR
2 F

7 A
fthEmlRzBEFRE

o

2019 2018
2019% 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Equity investments designated EBEERERAAEBEA
at fair value through other Hth2mkEzBRARE
comprehensive income
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value 3 F R AR E - IR AR EBE
Qian Ning Health Industry Co., Ltd. I EREEXBRAT 25,000 25,000
Anhui Five Star Food Co., Ltd. THHEERGBBMHAR AT 3,300 3,300
Hangzhou Sui Kang Nursing Home MINBEREZR AR A A
Co., Ltd. 4,372 4,000
Shenzhen Xin Shi City Development RYEAWETERREGR LA
Investment Co., Ltd. 6,000 6,000
Maggie and Rose Limited (note 33) Maggie and Rose Limited
(Pf&E33) - 42,514
Zhejiang Xinnongdu Industrial Co., Ltd. LR EZEBR AT 336,000 336,000
374,672 416,814

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income as the Group considers
these investments to be strategic in nature. (No changes in fair
value for the year ended 31 December 2019, accumulated changes
of RMB9,000,000 in fair value as of 31 December 2019 has been
recognized in other comprehensive income.)

China New City Commercial Development Limited
2019 Annual Report

HRAEER A Ll g A BB 1S -
MAEEG T BRI EZSRE AR
ARBEFAREMEE R - (REIZE2019
FI2ABIEFEMEAABEEZS) BE
2019F12A31H 2 AR BERFEHAR
#£9,000,0007T 2 7 E b 2 T U e H 1EFR) ©



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

19. LONG TERM PREPAYMENTS 19. REAFR &
2019 2018
201945 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TF T ARETT

Deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary WE—MNB AR ZEE - 60,000
Prepayments for land acquisition T g 2 TR RIE 11,020 51,415
Maintenance fund HEED 20,378 19,441
Prepaid expense AR 17,480 24,908
Deposits for construction completion BTk 33,062 22944
Deposits i 52,273 52,273

134,213 230,981
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, financial assets included 20194 K&2018F 12 A31H » A& EET A
in long term prepayments of the Group were considered to be ROPBNRBEZCREERGEAEEER
low credit risk and thus the Group assessed that there was no 9%+ BRI It 7N £ @ ET (i 7020194F K 20184F12
significant loss allowance recognised in accordance with the ECL F31 8 3 AR IR BIPR B i s e R 52 955 18
model under IFRS 9 as at 31 December 2019 and 2018. TRIEHEEBEEAER ZERNEER

fe
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31 December 2019 20194 12831H

20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES

20. REEMARERAR

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year

are as follows:

FREEHIEEEREERHNT -

Deferred tax assets BEEHBEEE
Losses
available
Unrealised for offsetting
intragroup Lease  against future
profit or loss liabilities  taxable profits Total
AT AL 8
RER RRIERH
KEBER HEEE FEnER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARBTT ARBFT ARBFT
At 1 January 2018 201851 A 18 1,976 - 9,081 11,057
Deferred tax charged to the FRR BRI
statement of profit or loss BEEHR
during the year - - (6,504) (6,504)
At 31 December 2018 and R20185F12A31E &
1 January 2019 2019F1A1H 1,976 - 2,577 4,553
Deferred tax credit/(charged) to FRRBERER/
the statement of profit or loss (HRR) A iR
during the year - 4,468 (2,577) 1,891
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12/31H 1,976 4,468 - 6,444

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Deferred tax assets (continued)

In accordance with the PRC laws and regulations, tax losses could
be carried forward for five years to offset against its future taxable
profits. Deferred tax assets relating to unutilised tax losses are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow these deferred tax assets to be
utilised.

The Group has no accumulated tax losses arising in Hong
Kong that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The
Group has accumulated tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB731,322,000 (2018: RMB532,752,000) that will expire in one
to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

20.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

REREAER R B

=]
EEBHEE (H)

RIEFEDERROER - RIEB B AE A F
LABE S H B 18 80 FE R FE - BRI AR ED A
MIEFBENEEHEELEE RETHEEHN
ERBMABUAEZEEERBEAERIFE
FAB T & R o

AEETERBEEEELRABIEEE
AANERPBEKES HREBENRAA
% H) ERTLFDE o AN B R B E
4 AR #731,322,0007 (20185 : AR ¥
532,752,0007T ) &) 2T HIEEE - R —2
RERNEE - LIKHEBBAEREFE - B
REZEMBAREELBE —RER  BR
AT 587G 0] A EHDR B IS S 18 /O FE =R
AR R ERZSEERRARENEE
EE o
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31 December 2019 20194 12831H

20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND 20.;EEMIARER AR

LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

=]
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEBEAE
Fair value
adjustment
of equity
investment Fair value
Fairvalue at fair value adjustment
adjustment  through other  arising from
of investment  comprehensive  acquisition of With-
properties income  a subsidiary holding tax Others* Total
RAAER
AR K-8
2EUE HEAR
RENE  ZRARE Fri8%e
NEERE AAEERE LAEERER jibilk Hib #t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR  ARBTR  ARMTR  AR®TR  AR¥TR  AR%Txn
At 1 January 2018 1201851 A18 969,941 - - 19,343 98,037 1,087,321
Realised during the year WERER (127,857) - - - (04,441) (152,298)
Deferred tax(charged)/credited to the FRRBER (1K) /#ENETHE
statement of profit or loss during the year (702) - - 3,503 12,302 15,108
Deferred tax credited to the statement of FRREM2ERARERNELTHE
other comprehensive income
during the year - 2,250 - - - 2,250
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 12018512 4318 k20195118 841,382 2,250 - 22,846 85,898 952,376
Realised during the year RERER (39,446) - - - (4,879) (44,325)
Acquisition of a subsidiary YE-HHBAR - - 5,807 - = 5,807
Deferred tax(charged)/credited to the ERRBRE (1K) /
statement of profit or loss during the year HEMELRE 10,619 - - 8,731 4,617 23,967
At 31 December 2019 20195124318 812,555 2,250 5,807 31,577 85,636 937,915

N Hit X B RERENCEERAHRN T
E8-

Others mainly include temporary differences regarding
capitalised finance costs.
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20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law (the “New CIT
Law”), a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 10%.
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries

The Group is therefore liable for

established in the PRC in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

Other than the above deferred tax liability in relation to the PRC
withholding income tax provided, no deferred taxation has been
provided for the distributable retained profits of approximately
RMB770,397,000 (2018: RMB431,728,000), which were derived
from the PRC subsidiaries as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

20.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

REREAER R B
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 20194 12831H

21. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES 21. BRI AEKIER

WITH MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-
controlling interests are set out below:

Percentage of equity interest held by non-controlling interests:

R i 2R RIPH B 2 5

BAEBRIFERERNAEENE QB
ICEXE NN

FEBRESFEREI L

2019 2018
2019% 20184
Zhejiang Zhong An Sheng Long LR ELEEREGRAA
Commercial Co., Ltd. (IREE&E])
(“Zhong An Sheng Long”) 10% 10%
Maggie and Rose Limited Maggie and Rose Limited
(“Maggie and Rose”) ([ ez ]) 46.5% -
Zhejiang Heng Fa Real Estate Co. Ltd. LB EXER AT
(“Zhejiang Heng Fa”) ([T EzE]) 49% 49%

Accumulated balances of non-controlling interests at the reporting

RIS B HFEER i s Rt A AR

date:
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREBF T
Zhong An Sheng Long RELERE 129,942 132,916
Maggie and Rose B e 4 2,978 -
Zhejiang Heng Fa AT B E 98,248 62,486

(Loss)/profit for the year allocated to non-controlling interests:

FRADIRTIEERERD (BR) /FE:

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Zhong An Sheng Long RLERE
Maggie and Rose HEH e B ik
Zhejiang Heng Fa N PARIERES

2 2 China New City Commercial Development Limited
3 2019 Annual Report
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

21. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES 21. BRI AHEXIEE
U= = — ==
WITH MATERIAL NON- RRESNMELT (1)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(CONTINUED)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information TREYIALHMBARKMFEELS -
of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any FiEENEEANIMARMEEN 2
inter-company eliminations: H:
Maggie and Zhong An Zhejiang
Rose Sheng Long Heng Fa
B e B RETRE PAR R
2019 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
20194 AR® TR ARET R AR¥T R
Revenue WA 9,944 49,593 189,956
Changes in fair value of WEMEQAREBEE
investment properties - 13,482 -
Total expenses X 5 (15,427) (92,812) (116,971)
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive £ A (538 ),/F38 &
income for the year FHN LR (5,483) (29,737) 72,985
Current assets MEEE 13,612 4,215,195 316,214
Non-current assets ERBEE 31,283 2,891,602 6,352
Current liabilities mEAaE (38,818) (4,997,375) (122,060)
Non-current liabilities FnBEE = (810,000) =
Net cash flows generated from/ EEESEL S (FA)
(used in) operating activities RemEFRE 19,350 (168,186) (43,602)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated  $&&&E®) (%5 ) S EE
from investing activities REREFH (19,211) 27,748 (6)
Net increase/(decrease) in ReMREZEYEM
cash and cash equivalents R ) F5 139 (140,438) (43,608)
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21. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES 21. BB HMBFEKXIERE
WITH MATERIAL NON- BRERKIMELT (1)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(CONTINUED)

Zhong An Zhejiang
Sheng Long Heng Fa
R E N DARIERES
2018 RMB’000 RMB’000
20184 ARBFT ARBFT
Revenue ON 53,743 291,925
Changes in fair value of WEMEAAEBEE
investment properties (50,783) -
Total expenses F 4858 (170,922) (201,496)
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive FA(EE) FIEK
income for the year 2EWEELREE (167,962) 90,429
Current assets mENEE 3,260,460 379,004
Non-current assets FEMBEE 3,003,544 6,682
Current liabilities mENAE (4,447 ,845) (259,890)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (487,000) -
Net cash flows used in operating activities =& EENFEFAIR & i E/F5E (43,217) (675)
Net cash flows generated from investing & BB E £
activities REmeFHE 165,712 -
Net increase/(decrease) in RehReEEY
cash and cash equivalents #n, Ol ) FEE 122,495 675)




22. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD

23

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. 5EHECETYE

FOR SALE
2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ARETR ARBEF T
Carrying amount at 1 January R1A1R ZBRHEE 2,009,041 1,282,967
Transfer from properties BEAMRERYE 14
under development 633,974 2,136,698
Transfer to investment properties EBEREME 13 (59,541) (80,006)
Cost of properties sold B HEMERR 6 (849,453) (1,330,618)
Carrying amount at 31 December M12A31H 2 BRHEE 1,734,021 2,009,041

As at 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s completed
properties held for sale of RMB824,359,000 (2018:
RMB1,524,606,000) were pledged to secure interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings granted to the Group as disclosed in note 29.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally one month, extending
up to three months for major customers. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables to minimize credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of
the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables
related to various diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances.
The balances of trade receivables are non-interest-bearing and
unsecured.

The Group assessed that there was no significant loss allowance
recognised in accordance with the ECL model under IFRS 9 as at
31 December 2019 and 2018.

23

20195124310 A& EE THEHEE
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FE U 58 2 R 3%
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BEEERR SR EEETENEHANS
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20194 K2018%12 A31H » AN & B 51 1h
BEE AR IR B PR B 7S R 5 4RI S8 05k 1 TN TR HA
FEEERABRCENGERE-
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24. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

24, AT
REM

]
Hith&E

« H fth B 4y 7R IR

2019 2018

20195 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARETF T

Advances to suppliers BT HER 252,923 32,563

Project construction guarantee deposits 18 B TR2ERILZ S 52,019 44,592
Recoverable prepayment for land B EH 4 b W Y P] W (2] TR A SRR

acquisition cancelled 2,500 122,500

Prepaid other tax AT E MR IE 57,870 113,444

Prepayment for equity acquisition* W i AR v 2 TR B 163,889 -

Recoverable deposit for acquisition EECEKEEIE 2 f] ) EIR S

cancelled 60,000 -

Other receivables H b R U FRIE 111,804 90,480

701,005 403,579

FPA LSS B EREWRIESR
ZERRRBIYE LB AESE LT
$% 0 A20194F K20185F12A31H - Eig #

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default the
past due amounts. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the loss

allowance was assessed to be minimal. B AR -
* On 7 January 2019, the Company allotted and issued 178,280,000 shares * M2019F1A7H AR A MMM R F Xk

BER¥EEERAR ([EH])BEREST
178,280,0008% AR 15 + FA LA 1R #£201847 A 20
BASEHREERBAREN IHREE
EERDE ([FEE])H22.65% 1 ([
1) AW BHERARGRERA Bk
BUH R 5 > R2019F 12 A31H » sf M &
1o

to Hangzhou Oriental Culture Tourism Group Co., Ltd. (“the Seller”) with
the purpose of acquiring 22.65% of equity interests of Zhejiang Xinnongdu
Industrial Co., Ltd. (“XND”) under the equity transfer agreement announced
on 20 July 2018 (“the Transaction”). However, the Seller had filed a lawsuit
against the Company to cancel the Transaction. As at 31 December 2019,

the lawsuit is still in process.
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AND RESTRICTED CASH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. HERAEEFERYVRER
w3 &

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TF T AREBTT

Cash and bank balances e MIRTTA 4
Time deposits TEHTF K

Less: Restricted cash B SR HIER &
Cash and cash equivalents RehReEEBY
Current assets MENVEE
Non-current assets IERBEE
Restricted cash ZRHIRE

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and restricted cash are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

Pursuant to relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property
development companies of the Group are required to place in
designated bank accounts certain amounts of pre-sale proceeds
of properties as guarantee deposits for the construction of the
related properties. The deposits can be used for purchases of
construction materials and payments of the construction fees of
the relevant property projects when approval from the relevant
local government authorities is obtained. As at 31 December 2019,
these guarantee deposits amounted to approximately RMB297,000
(2018: RMB64,820,000).

Besides, certain of the Group’s bank accounts of approximately
RMB13,974,000 (2018: RMB5,030,000) were pledged to banks for
the timely repayment of the loans.

422,764 618,757
8,922 6,565
431,686 625,322
(23,193) (76,415)
408,493 548,907
14,271 69,850
8,922 6,565
23,193 76,415

RITTFRERBITAE T RELNFBFE
HOFE - EHTHERA—RE=M@A
TEMHR (RASEMEEREFRM
)+ RIZFK) K HATE BT 30 5 BRE R
B0 IRITRE B R IR $I IR £ 917 B s B
BENFELNEBRITZRT

RIEH BARRE AR - AR EM S T YR
NEIZEE RIS E T ¥R SRS HIE
TR B EIRITERP - fEREAMEER
BRIZS - £ DUSER & BR3P R Bt
% e ARBERBEYEEE NEEM
B 258/ - 2019512 A318 » %
ERZEE % A AR297,0007T (20184 :
AR #64,820,0007T) °

o AEBzETRITEEOARSE
18,974,0007T (20184 : A R #5,030,000
T BERTIRIT A RBEEER -

qﬂléﬁﬁf}ﬂjzmﬁ%?féﬁﬁﬁ éu
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25.

26.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AND RESTRICTED CASH
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s non-current time
deposits of RMB8,922,000 (2018: RMB6,562,000) were pledged to
banks as guarantees for mortgage facilities granted to purchasers
of the Group’s properties.

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Group’s non-current time
deposits (2018: RMB3,000) was pledged to secure interest-bearing
bank loans and other borrowings granted to the Group as disclosed
in note 29.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB410,760,000
(2018: RMB561,718,204).The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement.
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

TRADE PAYABLES

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the payment due dates, is as follows:

5 H& ﬁ

FRYEZR

BB & ()

ﬁ'

2019F 124310 A& B 2 & T IEA
TE H91F A R #8,022,0007T (20184F : A
E#6,562,0007T) EEHR THRIT (ERMAAR
SEMEXERERIRIBEEZER.

BAOMIFE20FTH TR - R2019F 128318 » &K
SR E B IERNERTE BATE 3R (20185 - ARKE
3,0007T) E TINER  fERREEERGE
RITERREAMERZ R

RBERR NEEUARBIENES
N ER7T# 8% B AR 410,760,000 7T (2018
F: AR#EB61,718,20470) - ARG B
BRERAEMER AW REHRE A
EEHRTEUAREE - SERNEETER
E o AEEEESBAEETINEZEBHR
TIEAREH AR EE -

26. FE {18 % IR

AR B B 5B R RS MR R 2B
BB HERAIFT -

2019 2018

20195 2018%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F T ARBT T

Within six months 618 A A 580,609 602,405
Over six months but within one year HEB6ME A EMER 44,130 64,857
Over one year BiE1E 18,290 23,531
643,029 690,793

The trade payables are unsecured and interest-free and are
normally settled based on the progress of construction.
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27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 27. HfiEIRIEREEH

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT

Deposits related to construction EHEEENES 28,155 30,317
Payables for acquisition of subsidiaries FEULRE B B A B FE A B 3RE 15,059 15,059
Tax surcharges P 18,418 26,842
Guarantee deposits EREZE 50,244 46,231
Other payables H i FE T 5K IE 100,995 66,497
212,871 184,946

Other payables are unsecured and interest-free. H b fE A 5118 AEKIFI B T8 -

28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 28. EHAR ERWMA®

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TF T ARETT

Advances received from customers BEFTEMNK 476,063 1,123,792
Contract liabilities represent sales proceeds received from buyers in EHBBEEIAEE  RENEERER
connection with the Group’s pre-sale of properties. ZHEPTIS A

i X G
qﬂl%ﬁﬁkmﬁ%? Eﬁf‘ i?—: 239




240

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 285 o M i
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29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND

OTHER BORROWINGS

29

MRRITERREMER

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREEF T
Current: BER
Bank loans — secured RITER—HFEIF 351,860 922,460
Non-current: JERNHER
Bank loans — secured RITER-—BEA 3,294,245 1,235,625
Other loans — secured HihEHR—FHHEAR 810,000 810,000
4,104,245 2,045,625
4,456,105 2,968,085
Repayable: AR TP HEEE
Within one year or on demand —F R B R 351,860 922,460
Over one year but within two years ZR—FELRMF 948,298 320,500
Over two years but within five years ZHMEBRLRAFE 2,065,642 1,565,000
Over five years AFEUE 1,090,305 160,125
4,456,105 2,968,085

Except for certain short term bank and other borrowings amounting
to RMB2,390,000,000 (2018: RMB1,010,000,000) that bear

interest at fixed rates, all bank loans bear interest at floating rates.

China New City Commercial Development Limited
2019 Annual Report

BETIEREEMN RS ZEHHBRTEREE
e A R #2,390,000,0007T (20184 : A
R#1,010,000,0007T) ' FA B RITERIRZ

B FIRET S



29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK

AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(CONTINUED)

The Group’s bank and other borrowings bear interest at effective
interest rates ranging as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.t BERTTERRHMMER

(&)

HTIIII

REBEMRITERREMETIZATER
ARSI PSR

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARBEF T

i
B

Effective interest rates Tl =

\

The carrying amounts of all the Group’s borrowings during the year
were denominated as follows:

5.15% -10%  0.90% - 8.20%

ARERFAMEERNEEERZATE
WEHE - FEmT

2019 2018

201945 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETR AREF T

RMB loans and borrowings ARBERRER 4,456,105 2,968,085

The Group’s bank and other borrowings were secured by the
pledges of the following assets at the end of reporting period:

REIR AEBRTER R EMEKS
AT EEEREERM:

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
kA ARBT T AREF T

Carrying value of the Group’s assets: AEBEENREE:
Investment properties "EYE 13 1,317,502 1,238,247
Properties under development LR ES 14 124,462 753,053
Completed properties held for sale FHEHEC SR 2 22 824,359 1,524,606
Restricted cash ZRHIR e 25 13,974 5,033
Property and equipment I EYE L 12 624,560 498,179
2,904,857 4,019,118

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s borrowings of RMB50,000,000
(2018: RMB479,000,000) were guaranteed by Mr. Shi Kancheng
(Note 35(3)(iv)).

R2019F12A31H  AEB 2 ERA
R #50,000,0007T (20184 : A R ¥
479,000,0007T ) J5 FA KE 1 AK 5t A 32 4 HE AR
(M EE35(3)(iv) ) °

EPI%WBWF%%?*EEB A7
—hEFHR
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30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. g &
Shares % 2
2019 2018
20195 20184
’000 ‘000
T F &
Authorised: EIE
5,000,000,000 (2018: 5,000,000,000) 5,000,000,000/%
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BRREE0.10E T L@ HK$500,000 HK$500,000
(20184 : 5,000,000,000/% ) 500,000 T 500,000/% 7T
Issued and fully paid: BT R
2,013,248,000 (2018: 1,834,968,000) 2,013,248,000/%
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each EREE0I0B T B RMB160,443 RMB144,850
(20184 : 1,834,968,0004% ) AE#160,4437C AR #144,8507C

A summary of movements in the Company’s issued share capital is KRR BITRAESEES BT
as follows:
Number of Share
shares Share premium
in issue capital account Total
BT
RHEE BEA  BRHERER #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR¥®Tn AR%T=x
At 31 December 2018 7201812 A31H 1,834,968,000 144,850 573,233 718,083
Issue of shares (Note(a)) BRI (H5t(e)) 178,280,000 15,593 148,461 164,054
At 31 December 2019 FA2019%12 A31H 2,013,248,000 160,443 721,694 882,137
Note: Hiat
(@) On 20 July 2018, the Company entered into an equity transfer agreement (@) 201847 A20A » A QA Al 7] L I & 32 1

to acquire 22.65% of the equity interests in XND at a consideration of
RMB352,994,400 which would be settled by the allotment and issue
of 178,280,000 ordinary shares of the Company to the Seller or its
designated nominee. On 7 January 2019, the Company completed the

issue of 178,280,000 ordinary shares.
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31. OTHER RESERVE

Other reserve represented the reserve from the share option
scheme adopted by Zhong An Group Limited (the “Parent
Company”), the parent company of the Group, who operates a
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the operations. The Scheme became effective on 15
May 2009 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from the offer date.

Certain directors of the Group were granted these share options.
In respect of their services to the Group, the relevant share-based
payment transactions were accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements.

Pursuant to the Scheme adopted by the Parent Company, the initial
maximum number of shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all options granted (excluding options which have lapsed
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme and other share option
schemes of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries (the “Parent
Group”), if any) under the Scheme and other share option schemes
of the Parent Group (if any) must not exceed 10% of the shares
of the Parent Company in issue as at 15 May 2009, being the
date of approval of the Scheme by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Parent Company. Such maximum number
may however be refreshed at a general meeting of the Parent
Company by shareholders. In addition, no options may be granted
under the Scheme or other share option schemes adopted by the
Parent Group (if any) if the grant of such option will result in the
maximum number of shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted but yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and other share option schemes adopted
by the Parent Group (if any) exceeding 30% of the issued share
capital of the Parent Company from time to time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to
1% of the shares of the Parent Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

31.
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H fih %

HthRBEEREAEERARARELEER
PRAE ([RARF) Pt an e B AR i 51 21 &)
e ERERTE ([ZtE D aEgAaE
i DRALSERNEL NG ERSHR
EIR TR E) 2 2R - 5T 21720095 A15
BB - BRIEBTTRESEIEE] - BRI
BHBERTFENEGR-

AEBETESERZSEEE AREY
REBERIRE T = - ARRARRD AER
MR ZEF R B ABBERERE IS
Wk

RIBERBMRANZET S BREZS

LB RARLEMBAR (BAREHR])
H BT 8 () X e 2 siE R
B (TERREZFIELGAREEEM
BRERTE (WA MIERE SR ER
)BT A TRELETOVSZS
D& - TEEBE R FIN2009F5H15H
(ABRRNERBBRBFERNE LI EZ
a2 AH) EBITRME10% < A B
MRSKRHBEAIRERARKEKRE LA
PR AE B - BESh - i 15 th 7 R R A
BYREBERAET SRR REERAL
HipfERAEar 8 (nE) ERHERTTER
FEREEETEM A F i3 R EITHR
SN E BB AR NEDETRAN
30% - RIN AT RIZRE A AT SIS B A R
R LBt 8 (A REZEH
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R - ERNEE R RIPME(IR 2 31T
B AR H91% o (E{# — R KB @ R A
BREANBRRARE EEUS R A HLAE -

AT R BRRERAT
TR g Nern 243




244

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 285 o M i

31 December 2019 20194 12831H

31. OTHER RESERVE (CONTINUED)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Parent Company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Parent Company, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Parent Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Parent
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval
in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted by the
grantee within 21 days from the date of offer at a consideration
of HK$1.00. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, and commences after a vesting
period of one to five years and ends on a date which is not later
than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options or the
expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors,
but may not be less than the highest of:

(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Parent Company’s
shares on the date of offer of the share options;

(i)  the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Parent
Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately

preceding the date of offer; and

(i) the nominal value of a share of the Parent Company.
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31. Hfthiw (48)

RREHRE BRI AEEE TEEHBRE
Tz at 8T i R1T 0 2 BB A HE -

31. OTHER RESERVE (CONTINUED)

The share options granted to certain directors of the Group were
outstanding under the Scheme during the reporting periods:

2019 2018
20194 20184

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
In#EF1g B R hn#gEF1g HH AR
TEE "B 118 #HE

HK$ HK$
per share ’000 per share ‘000
BRET T4 BRETT F1n
At 1 January M1 H1H 2.12 5,053 2.12 5,053
Expired during the year RE RN E W 2.58 (2,403) - -
At 31 December M12A831H 1.85 2,650 2.12 5,053

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

RMER - WARTTEBEREZITERERT

outstanding as at the end of the reporting periods are as follows: FEHALN T -
2019 20194
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE TEE" TEH
’000 per share
SR B8R
2,650 HK$1.85 22 January 2014 to 21 January 2021
1.858 7T 201441 220 £20214F1H21H
2018 20184
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREE R TfEE 1TEHA
‘000 per share
F15 ST
2,650 HK$1.85 22 January 2014 to 21 January 2021
1.858 7T 201441 220 £20214F1H21H
2,403 HK$2.58 9 July 2010 to 8 July 2019
2.587 7T 201047 A9H =201947 A8H
5,053
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case of * BERENITEEBAEMHRSAIREITHEA

rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Parent Company’s

share capital.

The Group did not recognise any share option expense during the > A
year ended 31 December 2019. (2018: Nil) EREMEEREFR S - (20185 : &

AR EMAEZBERTA THE-

IEF R REBE A &
=)
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32. RESERVES

(@) Share premium

The share premium represents the excess of ordinary shares

paid by the shareholders over their nominal value.

(b) Capital reserve

U

(i)

(iii)

On 30 May 2014, the Company and its related
parties signed the deed of novation, assignment
and set-off (the “Deed”). The Deed settled and set-
off the outstanding balances of the Company with
related parties. The net debts due to and owing by
the Company to Ideal World after set-off, amounting
to approximately RMB963,639,000, were settled by
the Company by allotting and issuing 1,000,000 new
shares amounting to RMB80,000 credited as fully paid
to Ideal World.

On 31 May 2014, the directors were authorised
to capitalise HK$126,700,000, equivalent to
RMB100,825,000, by using the exchange rate on
that day, standing to the credit of the capital reserve
account of the Company, so that 1,267,000,000
shares were allotted and issued, pursuant to this
resolution.

Deemed contribution by the controlling shareholder
represented certain residual interests of the residential
business remaining in certain subsidiaries and was
contributed by the controlling shareholder to the
Group.
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(b) EXf#EE

M

(i)

(i)

P2014F5 4308 - AR E RHE
BB AR M EE R R
RE ([ZRE]) - ZRBHEE
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EiEr% RNIEH%E  AQRE
Rz R AFIdeal World#J & 75 5%
B4 A AR #963,639,0007T °
A Q&5 B Al ldeal WorldE?
¢ 12 3£471,000,0008% A BR 51|/
BERFRMOMENS SEEA
R #80,0007T °

2014458318 « EFERE
1 75 & 75126,700,0007%8 7T (1%
EREXHERERARE
100,825,0007T) * 5 A A A A
BEABERER UWIREARER
it 2% K 3% 771,267,000,0004% A%

1/\ °
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32. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(c) Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and
the respective articles of association of the PRC group
companies, each of the subsidiaries of the Group that is
domiciled in Mainland China is required to allocate 10% of its
profit after tax, as determined in accordance with the PRC
Accounting Regulations, to the statutory surplus reserve
(the “SSR”) until such reserve reaches 50% of its registered
capital.

In addition, certain of the PRC group companies are foreign
investment enterprises which are not subject to the SSR
allocation. According to the relevant PRC regulations
applicable to foreign investment enterprises, each of these
subsidiaries is required to allocate a certain portion (not less
than 10%) of its profit after tax, as determined in accordance
with the PRC Accounting Regulations, to the statutory
reserve fund until such reserve reaches 50% of its registered
capital.

33. BUSINESS COMBINATION

In February 2018, the Group acquired 10,391 ordinary shares and
1,017 A shares, representing approximately 19.95% equity interest
of Maggie and Rose Limited at a consideration of GBP 4,848,400
in cash (equivalent to approximately RMB42,514,000), through a
subsidiary in which the Group holds 75% equity interest.

In September 2019, the Group acquired 15,638 ordinary shares
and 2,403 A shares, representing approximately 31.56% of the
equity interest of Maggie and Rose Limited at a consideration
of GBP 8,840,090 in cash (equivalent to approximately
RMB76,567,000). After the acquisition, the Group totally holds
26,029 ordinary shares and 3,420 A shares, representing 51.51%
equity interest of Maggie and Rose Limited. The Group elected to
measure the non-controlling interest in Maggie and Rose Limited
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of Maggie and
Rose Limited'’s identifiable net assets.
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S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

32. s (48)

(c) EERRMEE

RIBFERARDERFEEERREB
MABERZAR LR EABH AR
LS NIV S EE N TN
M10% (RIFFEEF EREE)E
EERBAR(DEERBAE])
HEEZAQ/EEEERSAEMELRK
50% °

SN BAE TR EEE AR RIINE
¥ WHARBUEERBRDTE R
BEANINELENERT Iiﬁ%ﬁ'
ZEMBRRHEARREPESE

E'Jﬁﬁ%iﬂwﬁméﬂﬂE’JEJF*B{%
(TPR10% ) BEXEEEES HE
ZREHREEZHEMEAE0% °

33. KBS

R2018F 2R AEBMBBAEEHFTH
75%R% AE 2 KB A B WK BE10,891 0% &
B K&1,017R AR - 18 E M Maggie and
Rose Limited” #719.95% /% # - 17 &
18 /4,848,400 8 (HERH AR
42,514,0007T ) °

R2019F9H - R&EE U #E15,6380 &
AR 2 2,403% A% - 18 & FAMaggie and
Rose Limitedz #J31.56% % #& * I & X
B 78,840,000% & (IHE R AR
76,567,0007T) WU BB IR - ANEE A HHF
526,0290% & @ Ik 23,4200 AR - & R
Maggie and Rose LimitedZ51.51 %% °
A= ER 2% Maggie and Rose Limited 7] 3%
RIE B 38 2 FE15 IR 1 % b I 5 &= Maggie
and Rose Limited 2 JE{Z A% #E 25 -

EPl%ﬁiBszﬁ%?{éEﬁB éu
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33. BUSINESS COMBINATION
(CONTINUED)

Maggie and Rose Limited is mainly engaged in operating pre-
education business, and the acquisition was made as part of the
Group’s strategy to expand its diversification of business.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Maggie and
Rose Limited as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

33. KBS O (1)

Maggie and Rose Limited = Z (& & E /125
2 ETRWEEEAAEEBEARNERS
AR EE 2 — B o

Maggie and Rose Limited A W18 A Hi~
AHREERBBEZAAEBBENT

Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
N SR e
NAEE
Notes RMB’000
HtaE AREBF T
Property and equipment LIEYSE L 12 12,165
Right-of-use assets EAEEE 15(a) 13,851
Other intangible assets HEthEpEE 17 34,690
Inventories ZENS 727
Trade receivables FEWE 5 R 1,172
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets &1 718 ~ H b i I 5008 [ H Ath & &= 7,620
Cash and cash equivalents BehEeEEY 10,115
Trade payables FERTE SRR (7,418)
Other payables and accruals H e R R ERTE A (9,029)
Lease liabilities HEAE 15(b) (13,851)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEEE (5,897)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRANBEFENAHMINFEELE 44,145
Non-controlling interests AR = (23,608)
Fair value of equity investment at fair value BAABEFGAEMEZEANKG 2
through other comprehensive income: A E D AEIE:
Gains on fair value re-measurement of existing ~ EFst 2R IEHAREFIES S 2
equity in business combination not under REREZ ARBEERE
common control (451)
Transferred from investment at fair value HEEAAEBESALMEE RS
through other comprehensive income A (42,514)
Goodwill on acquisition WEEANEE 16 98,995
Satisfied by cash AR ER 76,567

2 4 China New City Commercial Development Limited
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==
33. BUSINESS COMBINATION 3. XKBEH ()
(CONTINUED)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of a BRWE—HMNBATNESRESITN
subsidiary is as follows: N
RMB’000
AREF T
Cash consideration RERE (76,567)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriiEriR & MIRe EEY 10,1156
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in FFARBEESELRSRENRE R
cash flows generated in investing activities REFZEWRLFE (66,452)
Since the acquisition, Maggie and Rose Limited contributed B U B& #E - Maggie and Rose Limited[A) 2K ££
RMB9,943,000 to the Group’s revenue and caused a loss of B # Z=2019F12 A31 B IEFE 2 A E B
RMB5,483,000 to the consolidated profit of the Group for the year AR 159,943,0007T - I A LB N2 F &
ended 31 December 2019. 2 #RE % R EE A B 1R A R #65,483,0007T
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year, the & FFREH T - BIEL=2019612 A 31
revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the year ended AEFEASEE 2 WA RKEER 2 FHE
31 December 2019 would have been RMB1,987,189,000 and o Al A AR #1,087,189,0000T M A R #&
RMB35,410,000, respectively. 35,410,0007T °
&= =] &
34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED M. FERENERME
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions (@) EEFRERS
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to FR - AEBFREFHEHERHEZ®
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB67,321,000 REEEFRESARELRHEEEES
and RMB67,321,000, respectively, in respect of lease Al A AR ¥67,321,0007T & A R EE
arrangements for buildings (2018: Nil). 67,321,0007T (20184 : £&) ©

AT R BRRERAT
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ?réiiﬁm;ilﬂﬁi
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 1=
(CONTINUED)
(b) Changes in financial liabilities arising (b) METBHELEZCHEES
from financing activities B
Interest-bearing
bank
and other Lease
borrowings liabilities
FFERITER
R E At A8 5K HEaE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

As 31 December 2018 R2018F12H31H 2,968,085 -
Effect of adoption of IFRS 16 B S LR E1698 2 w2 - 273,178
At 1 January 2019 (restated) 7201991 A18 (&&E5)) 2,968,085 273,178
Changes from financing cash flows Rt &R 4 R E & 1,488,020 (21,953)
New leases s - 67,321
Interest expense FERX - 15,034
Interest paid classified as operating D iBAZER S REZCATFE
cash flows - (15,034)
Increase arising from acquisition of W& — & fff B A Bl EE 4 2 38
a subsidiary - 13,851
At 31 December 2019 201912 A31H 4,456,105 332,397
At 1 January 2018 7201841 81H 3,107,739 -
Changes from financing cash flows g & IR & R E & (139,654) -
At 31 December 2018 201812 H31H 2,968,085 -
(c) Total cash flow for leases (c) HERESRELT
The total cash for leases included in the statement of cash FARERERZHEER BB
flows is as follows: T
2019
20195
RMB’000
ARBT
Within operating activities EEEYA 15,034
Within financing activities BmEZEHNR 21,953
36,987

2 China New City Commercial Development Limited
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Q)

Name and relationship

Name of related parties

BHAER

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

(1) BEREE

Relationship with the Group
HAKEER

Mr. Shi Kancheng

HEARAK 5

Yuyao Zhong An Property Co., Ltd.

ARBLEXERAF

Zhejiang Zhong An Property Management Co., Ltd.

MWIRZMERBERRA

Zhong An Group Co., Ltd.

REEERRAA

Zhong An Group Limited

REEERERAA

Glorious Days Management Co., Ltd.

HRERERDA

Anhui Zhong An Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

ZHRLEWERERRLOA

Zhejiang Anyuan Agriculture Development Co., Ltd.

MWIZREEREERRA

Hong Kong Hui Yuan Real Estate Limited

EAERMERRAR

Rui Kai Management Ltd.

W\ ERARAA

Zhong An Asset Management Co., Ltd.

REEEEEERAT

Zhong An Corporate Finance Limited

REBMEFR AT

Zhong An Finance Limited

RLEMBEERRF

Zhong An Securities Limited

RLEZRBRRF

Hangzhou Huijun Information Technology Co., Ltd.

MINEREESRIARAR

Hangzhou Junjie Investment Co., Ltd.

MMBERREEEERRA

Qingdao Zhong An Longsheng Commercial
development Co., Ltd.

ERRLERBEEREBRLR

Zhong An Financial Holdings Ltd

RETRERER AT

Grand Sail International Trading Limited

ERERES (BE)FRAAF

Ultimate controlling shareholder

SEST T

Company controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholder
AR A IE IR AR I8 A 7

Company controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholder
AR A IE IR AR B A 7

Company controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholder
AR A IE IR AR I8 A 7

Company controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholder
AR A IE IR AR I A 7

Company controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholder
AR A IE IR R B A 7

Company controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholder
A RAIE IR AR B A 7

Company controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholder
A RAIE AR IE 6 A 7

Company controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholder
AR IE IR AR I8 A 7

Company controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholder
A RAIE AR I8 A B

Company controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholder
AR IE AR FIE A 7

Company controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholder
A RAIE R AR I A 7

Company controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholder
AR IE R AR FIE A 7

Company controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholder
AR IE R AR FIE A 7

Company controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholder
AR A IE R AR IEFI 6 A 7

Company controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholder
AR A IE R AR IE 6 A B

Company controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholder

H B AR R AR AR SR R A A ]
Company controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholder
B B AR R AR AR SR HE A A ]
Company controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholder

A BRI R B A R)

AT R BRRERAT
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

@

Outstanding balances with related parties:

U

Amounts due from related companies

35.FMBEAERS (48)

@ HEEBINREERSER:

=
=

FEd5 AR X R R IR

2019 2018

20195 2018%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMF T ARBTT

Zhong An Group Limited BEEEFRAT 136,672 7,017

Glorious Days Management Co., Ltd. HEFERGR AR 17,916 17,524
Qingdao Zhong An Longsheng SERLERBELES

Commercial development Co., Ltd. fRAR] 1,000 -

Zhong An Financial Holdings Ltd RELTRIERER AT 7,174 -

Grand Sail International Trading Limited ~ ZWERZE 5 ()

BRAA 40,966 -

Zhong An Group Co., Ltd RELEEBERAF 856,547 -

1,060,275 24,541

Amounts due from related companies are interest-free, JEWEB ARRIEARE &

unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment,
except RMB297,492,000 due from Zhong An Group
Co., Ltd, which is interest-bearing at the annual rate of

9%.

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S5 WA B

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

B AR (])

(2)  Outstanding balances with related parties: (continued) ) HEEARREELSH: (&)
(i) Amounts due to related companies (i)  FETEEER RIFUA
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETFIT
Hangzhou Huijun Information Technology 71 /) FE B& 1= B =il
Co., Ltd. BRAF 107,912 107,912
Hangzhou Junjie Investment Co., Ltd. MMEBEREBRAF 55,427 55,427
Zhong An Group Co., Ltd. RELEEBBR AT - 260,515
Zhejiang Zhong An Property AL R LR
Management Co., Ltd. HRAA 11,833 800
Anhui Zhong An Real Estate LTRBLEME R
Development Co., Ltd. BRAF 186,316 186,316
Yuyao Zhong An Property Co., Ltd. RURLEEERAF 92,071 79,298
Zhejiang Anyuan Agriculture AL 2R R 2 A B
Development Co., Ltd. BRRA 1,439 1,685
Hong Kong Hui Yuan Real Estate Limited &7 &Rt E B R A 7 44,790 252,330
Rui Kai Management Ltd. e\ BB ERAA 36,442 35,645
Zhong An Asset Management Co., Ltd. RELZEEEEFR A A 1,784 1,745
Zhong An Corporate Finance Limited BELBMEBRIA 1,784 1,745
Zhong An Finance Limited REMEER A A 1,785 1,746
Zhong An Securities Limited REEHARRAA 1,784 1,745
Grand Sall International Trading Limited ~ ZWMEFRE 5 (F%)
BRAA 168,340 -
711,707 986,909
Amounts due to related companies are interest-free, ENBEBARIRIBEARRE &
unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment. 4 % & °E (2R BARR o
B 3T 95K

FRLERERAA
“E-NEER

233
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

35.FMBEAERS (48)

(3) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these @) BRZEMERREMBOOZISF
financial statements, the Group had the following transactions %9\ RF RN E E SR S #ETH
with related parties during the year: RSN
)  Property service fee () WERS

2019 2018
2019%F 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBEF T
Zhejiang Zhong An Property TR LY E RS
Management Co., Ltd. BRAF 11,033 800
(i) During the year, the Group had repaid i FAR-AEEDEERRBAR
RMB275,201,000 to and lent RMB1,035,735,000 to its B8 AR #275,201,0007T & f&
related companies, which are controlled by the ultimate H A R #1,035,735,0007T * 5%
controlling shareholder. LN B B AR AR R
il o
(i)  Compensation of key management personnel of the iy AEEFZEEAEB KM
Group, which comprises the remuneration of the (BIEEFEHMH) 2 A 8%
directors, is disclosed in note 8. o
(v)  During the year, the Group’s equity investment of vy FR AEEBREELREH

Yunnan Puijin Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. were
transferred to Zhong An Group.

(vy  As disclosed in note 29, the Group’s borrowings
of RMB50,000,000 (2018: RMB479,000,000) were
guaranteed by Mr. Shi Kancheng at 31 December
2019.

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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36. COMMITMENTS

(@)

The Group had the following commitments for property
development expenditure at the end of the reporting period:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S5 WA B

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

36. iz

(@)

R|ERR AEERYERE
BVAEREMT -

2019 2018
2019%F 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBF T
Contracted, but not provided for: BETHB R BHE -
Properties under development FEERYE 767,467 480,259
(o)  Operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 (b) M2018F12A31H 2 &L E&IE
The Group leased certain of its office properties under AEBRBEEHETHHES TH
operating lease arrangements. Leases for office properties NEVE - WREMERHNFER A2
were with terms of 12 months or less. & A AT

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum R2018F12A31H » REBIRE A
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases i EHEEMR Ty RS A

falling due as follows: BEEMEENREELT
2018
20184
RMB’000
ARBF T
Within one year —F R 18,599
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EENF (BEEERSF) 105,975
After five years A F1 256,700
381,274

EPI%WBWF%%?*EEB A7
—hEFHR
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37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

37. X RAR/

2019 2018
2019% 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBF T
Guarantees given to banks for: FMLATIER 4 TIRITHHE
Mortgage facilities granted to REBYEERERIZBEE
purchasers of the Group’s properties 258,800 332,636

The Group provided guarantees in respect of the mortgage
facilities granted by certain banks to the purchasers of the Group’s
properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements,
in case of default on mortgage payments by the purchasers,
the Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage
loans together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by the
defaulted purchasers to the banks. The Group is then entitled to
take over the legal titles of the related properties. The Group’s
guarantee periods commence from the dates of grant of the
relevant mortgage loans and end after the execution of individual
purchasers’ collateral agreements.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the reporting
period in respect of the guarantees provided for mortgage facilities
granted to purchasers of the Group’s properties. The directors
consider that in case of default on payments, the net realisable
value of the related properties can cover the repayment of the
outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and
penalty, and therefore no provision has been made in connection
with the guarantees.

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 38. LIS IT A
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EHEESMIANRERRNERBELT

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2019 20194
Financial
assets Financial
at fair value assets
through other at fair value

comprehensive through profit
income or loss
RAAEE
STAEM RAREE
2EEBER FABHEMN

SREE SREE
Financial
assets Mandatorily
at amortised Equity designated
cost investments as such Total
REHEEA
TENSREE BRAKRE REEEAML #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR

Financial assets: tREE:
Financial assets included in long term st ARHIBNZNEREE

prepayment 53,440 - - 53,440
Equity investments designated EEBERANEBFA

at fair value through other Hip2EMAORAREE

comprehensive income - 374,672 - 374,672
Financial assets at fair value RANEEG ABEMN

through profit or loss SREE - - 650 650
Trade receivables BRESER 29,375 - - 29,375
Financial assets included in prepayments, &t AT 708 « E b FERFIB I

other receivables and other assets HiEE E’] %%ﬂ BE 223,823 - - 223,823
Amounts due from related companies  JEULBEEE 1) B 1,060,275 - - 1,060,275
Restricted cash XRHRS 23,193 - - 23,193
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEED 408,493 - - 408,493

1,798,599 374,672 650 2,173,921

B #T % ?XE NG
PRRATEZRIEEY 057
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

8. LUBBE ST R

CATEGORY (CONTINUED) b =]
2019 20194
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
2 8 85 A A
FTENEREE
RMB’000
AR®T R
Financial liabilities: cEAE:
Trade payables FEE SRR 643,029
Financial liabilities included in FFAEMENRIEREFERANeREE
other payables and accruals 194,453
Interest-bearing bank and other & ERITEF R EAbfE
borrowings 4,456,105
Lease liabilities HERE 332,397
Amounts due to related companies & 1< BaH A 7 F 8 711,707
6,337,691

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 38. LiARIEIo e TR
CATEGORY (CONTINUED) (#%)
The carring amounts of each of the categories of financial EHERITARREHRRNEEBELNT:
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as (&)

follows:(continued)

2018 20184

Financial assets
at fair value Financial assets

through other at fair value
comprehensive through profit
income or loss
BARER
STAEAM BARER
2EKEH) FTABEN
TREE TREE
Financial
assets Mandatorily
at amortised Equity designated
cost investments as such Total
BB
GTENEREE RARE ®iElE AL m@st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

Financial assets: tREE:
Financial assets included in long term At ARHIBNZNEREE

prepayment 102,385 - - 102,385
Equity investments designated EBEARAABENAEMEZE

at fair value through other WaEmmBR AR E

comprehensive income - 416,814 - 416,814
Financial assets at fair value RANBHEFABENEREE

through profit or loss - - 42,093 42,093
Trade receivables EKE SHER 21,501 - - 21,501
Financial assets included in prepayments, &t AJEfFIA » E 4 fE Y 708 )2

other receivables and other assets HEENEREE 135,072 - - 135,072
Amounts due from related companies  FEUREIEE A A 2R 24,541 - - 24,541
Restricted cash XRHHS 76,415 - - 76,415
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEED 548,907 - - 548,907

908,821 416,814 42,093 1367728

i X G
qﬂl%ﬁﬁkmﬁ%? Eﬁf‘ i?—: 259
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

8. LUBBE ST R

CATEGORY (CONTINUED) b =]
2018 20184
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
big: §is 10N
EMNemAE
RMB’000
ARBTT
Financial liabilities: SRIEE:
Trade payables FERTE SRR 690,793
Other payables and accruals B fh et R IE R EET B 158,104
Interest-bearing bank and other T EIRITER M EME R
borrowings 2,968,085
Amounts due to related companies & 1< BaH A 7318 986,909
4,803,891

China New City Commercial Development Limited
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE ITREMARRERS
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL EE®

INSTRUMENTS

39. £
FEN

L

il B

|

AEETRTANETELRAEEBNT
EREEEQAREERERAEERIN:

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

Carrying amounts Fair values
RREE AREE
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 20184 20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥ETT AR®TR ARETT
Financial assets TREE
Equity investments designated 18 F AIE A N EEF A
at fair value through other Efbh 2E R E
comprehensive income 374,672 407,814 374,672 416,814
Financial assets at fair value EARBEFABRR
through profit or loss SREE (30,975) 72,679 650 42,093
343,697 480,493 375,322 458,907
Financial liabilities £ Y=L
Interest-bearing bank and other &t BIR1TE &
borrowings H MR 4,456,105 2,968,085 4,314,572 2,923,871

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, the current portion of restricted cash, trade receivables,
trade payables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, amounts due from/to related companies,
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments. The non-current portions of
restricted cash, long term deposits and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the insignificant amount or short remaining maturities
of these instruments.

HRRERREEHEY JRHHS BN
B BRESER ENEZERR A
BNFOR - HttBFUE R A EEN TR
BE FAARMENREREAERTNS
BEE R RN B A R FIRN A
FE MEEEFARELAAAEERER
FREEMRR - ZE IR IFRNEED - &5
FHRARBRARBEFABRENSREE
EBRARBEFARGEZEARENSHE
EREREERS T2HR%ETARE
PREFIEREAR G PR -

FEFATHEZRER

NC]

FER
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices. The fair values of unlisted equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income,
have been estimated using a market-based valuation technique
based on assumptions that are not supported by observable
market prices or rates. The valuation requires the directors to
determine comparable public companies (peers) based on industry,
size, leverage and strategy, and to calculate an appropriate price
multiple, such as enterprise value to earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation (“EV/EBITDA”) multiple and
price to earnings (“P/E”) multiple, for each comparable company
identified. The multiple is calculated by dividing the enterprise value
of the comparable company by an earnings measure. The trading
multiple is then discounted for considerations such as illiquidity
and size differences between the comparable companies based
on company-specific facts and circumstances. The discounted
multiple is applied to the corresponding earnings measure of the
unlisted equity investments to measure the fair value. The directors
believe that the estimated fair values resulting from the valuation
technique, which are recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial position, and the related changes in fair values, which are
recorded in other comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that
they were the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting
period.

For the fair value of the unlisted equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income, management has estimated
the potential effect of using reasonably possible alternatives as
inputs to the valuation model.
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative
sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2019 and 2018:

Significant
Valuation unobservable
technique inputs

BEATAEER
& (B L iT BWASE

39. £
FEN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

IAMNARKRERD
EHE®

(-E)

i

AR BF20194F K2018F12 A31H & R T
BB EMERNERT B RE AT

EHUREDNME:

Range

Al

Sensitivity of fair
value to the input
AREEHHAHE
8RR E

RMB’000
AR®FT

Unlisted equity
investments

FEMBAKRE

Valuation multiples

RERE -3

Average P/B

multiple of peers

(Or Average P/E
multiple of peers)
CENCIERS SIS
EEH (FRERA
BT AR EE)

Discount for lack
of marketability

R g RBtTE

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts of
premiums and discounts determined by the Group that market
participants would take into account when pricing the investments.

2019: 1.28 t0 1.36
(2018: 1.19 to 1.45)
20194F : 1.28%1.36
(20184 :
1.19%21.45)

2019: 25%
(2018: 25%)
20194 : 25%
(20184 : 25% )

5% (2018: 5%)
increase/decrease

in multiple would
result in increase/
decrease in fair

value by 17,062
(2018: 16,577)
E8E MR

5% (2018%F : 5% ) #
BEYRABEEEN
/HA17,062(2018
F:16,577)

5% (2018: 5%)
increase/decrease
in discount would
result in decrease/
increase in fair
value by 5,822.
(2018: 5,384)
i, m 5%
(2018%F : 5% ) 538
BARBERD
#5,822(20184F :
5,384)

REmERBETRETS2BEEHE

BETEEBRS
EBRIrEDE-

F B AR mﬁ%jﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁ’

2 B H B AR B E A0

Hhrew 203
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or
disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 —  Quoted market prices in an active market (that
are unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 —  Valuation techniques (for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable)
Level 3 —  Valuation techniques (for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable)

Fair value hierarchy

All the above financial assets and liabilities had Level 2 inputs other
than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and equity
investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income which had Level 1 and Level 3 inputs respectively. The fair
value hierarchy of investment properties is disclosed in note 13 to
the financial statements.
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE TR
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL HEEESR (.E
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

N\,

N REERE (&)

THRIFARESBIANA A EEE
B

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group’s financial instruments:

Fair value measurement using

EANTEENAREERE

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
ERMS BATEE EATTHE
M RE WABE WAHE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(14 5A0) (ZE24% A1) (B34 Al) #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE AR®BTR AR%®Trn AR%Tx
Financial assets at fair value RAABEFABREN
through profit or loss TREE 650 - - 650
Equity investments designated BEBRANBESA
at fair value through other Hih 2 E KRR AR E
comprehensive income - - 374,672 374,672
As at 31 December 2019 2019 12H31H 650 - 374,672 375,322
Financial assets at fair value BAMNEBEF BN
through profit or loss CREE 42,093 - - 42,093
Equity investments designated EBEAERANBEAHM
at fair value through other 2HKENRARE
comprehensive income - - 416,814 416,814
As at 31 December 2018 R2018%F12H31H 42,093 - 416,814 458,907

During the reporting period, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into

or out of Level 3.

RIREHRE > F1RBIRE2HF 2RI ER
AEEFEER  BUEE AL EHEMR

I| o

0

qﬂl%ﬁf}ﬂzmﬁ%?_‘@ﬁﬁ NG

FER
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
cash equivalents, short term deposits, lease liabilities and interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments
for trading purposes. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below:

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets. The
Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank and other
borrowings with floating interest rates. The Group has not
used any interest rate swaps to hedge its interest rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings) and the
Group’s equity, assuming all the increases or decreases are
dealt with in profit or loss, without consideration of interest
capitalisation.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. BBREEEHBRRBUE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)
(@) Interest rate risk (continued) (@) F=mEpkx (&)
(Decrease)/
Increase/ increase (Decrease)/
(decrease) in  in profit/(loss) increase
basis points before tax in equity
RRBL AT
BE® FE(ER) xR
B Od)  CED) M ORd) /8
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBFR

2019 20195

RMB AR 50 (22,281) (16,711)

RMB AR (50) 22,281 16,711

2018 20184

RMB NG 50 (14,840 (11,130)

RMB AR (50) 14,840 11,130
(b) Foreign currency risk (b) HhEEE

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such REEEAZZZFEERR -BHER

exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units for e A B AC S BT TS B S BB A

and financing activities in currencies other than the units’ RIABRINEE B AN 2 B ETTR

functional currencies. =OEE K

In addition, the Group has currency exposures from its BN AEE B EFTERITEREE

interest-bearing bank borrowings. Bk

AT R BRRERAT
TR N ern 207
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(b) Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in
the US$ and HK$ exchange rates, with all other variables
hold constant, of the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax and the

40. HHERBEE MR HR

=

(b) shESEBR (%)

TRIRAEERFAFE (F8)
RS ERER B E R ETRA
0 5 2 BB T B8 B ) U - M
ERMAEEERETE

Group’s equity.
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit/(loss) (decrease)
foreign currency rate before tax in equity
BRBLAT

Sk = Fm|/ (E]) s
#m/ (Gh) #m/ () #m/ (GR)
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% ARBTR AR®T T

2019 201945
If HK$ weakens against US$ fin 7 7T 2 E LA 5 94 70
If HK$ strengthens against US$ fiw 7T 7 ETTHHE (5) (94) (70)
If RMB weakens against US$ MARBHETEZE 5 3 3
If RMB strengthens against US$ M AR HETAE (5) () ()]

2018 2018%F
If HK$ weakens against US$ w7 T H &R A 5 294 220
If HK$ strengthens against US$ fin 7 7T 5 E T HHE () (294) (220)
If RMB weakens against US$ MARBHETRE 5 1,720 1,290
If RMB strengthens against US$ M AREHETHE ) (1,720) (1,290)
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 0. HERBEEHERBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)

(c) Credit risk (c) EERME

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts
is not significant. For transactions that are not denominated
in the functional currency of the relevant operating unit,
the Group does not offer credit terms without the specific
approval of the Head of Credit Control.

AEBEEELRVTEEERTINE=
TETR S - ANEBENBREBRE
BEREGEMETRINER HA
BEXEERERF U REBF
BERREYGIARAS  BARSENE
ARER Y N E A - B I AARRE L 2
B ZBEEREZR %ﬁﬁa'ﬁ
WEEEEER BRI E 1S

T AEETREEES-

Maximum exposure and year-end staging =R R F KGR
The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum Ti‘%ﬁ@ﬂ’\ﬁTFKEIEEBZMZEE
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, BxzhkmaEERRE (RIETHEA

which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-
end staging classification as at 31 December. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets
and the exposure to credit risk for the financial guarantee

E$@§&$WWZI HTERBE
ER  GAIBBENEE ﬁW@Hﬂ
é%ﬂr’auﬂ) ARM12A81AZF R
EERNH 2SI CREATREEY
Wﬂﬁﬁ@&,@!ﬂ%%ﬁa,@z{é%ﬂ

contracts. % o
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 A H
FEER 2HEHEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-KB ERR EZRR L& it
As at December 31, 2019 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2019F12A310 ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
Trade receivables* EUE S ET - - - 29,375 29,375
Financial assets included in long term &t A K EETBT 304
prepayment- Not yet past due SREE-RaH 53,440 - - - 53,440
Financial assets included in ATABRFE £t
prepayments, other receivables WiEhIE R H B EE Y
and other assets — Not yet past due £ B EZE KA 223,823 - - - 223,823
Amounts due from related FEW AR N AR
companies — Not yet past due —REH 1,060,275 - - - 1,060,275
Pledged deposits - Not yet past due & #7337k — A 1 H8 23,193 - - - 23,193
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEED
— Not yet past due —-KEH 408,493 - - - 408,493
1,769,224 - - 29,375 1,798,599

@A EEERARAD
FETATRZ g5tk R 209
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

40. HHERBEE MR HR

=

(c) FERM (&)

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 AEH
FEER 2HEHEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-BE ERE EZRR R[4 Fohy
As at December 31, 2018 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2018512A31R ARBTR ARETR AR®TR ARBT R AR®TR
Trade receivables* EWE ZER - - - 21,501 21,501
Financial assets included in long term &t A & SiTE T 20
prepayment- Not yet past due SREE-RBH 102,385 - - - 102,385
Financial assets included in FABRFE £
prepayments, other receivables WHEREMEEN
and other assets — Not yet past due £ B EZE—FKAH 135,072 - - - 135,072
Amounts due from related & U BB 8 AR IR
companies — Not yet past due — K@ 24,541 - - - 24 541
Pledged deposits — Not yet past due & #1737 — K &1 & 76,415 - - - 76,415
Cash and cash equivalents BeREEZED
—~ Not yet past due — R 548,907 - - - 548,907
887,320 - - 21,501 908,821
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified * AL E A ET ERE 2 B

approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix

is disclosed in notes 23 to the financial statements.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. B EPEEE B R R

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (#8)

(CONTINUED)

(d) Liquidity risk (d) REBELRB
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using AEBERALENRSESTETA
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the ERHESHRER ZTAZEA
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets cRTARSREE (MEWE Z K
(e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows from HOMEZ BB R REEER A
operations. AEERE
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between REBMBERH BB ARITERK
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank HtfER @iz o EEMEE T
and other borrowings. Z A FEe
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at RIBFTHORBRNAR AEESHE
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual BERREBRAOE R AT

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Less than 3 to less than 1to5 Over
On demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
3ERZE
REX SH3ER HM2(EA 1Z5% S5EN L @t
2019 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
20195 ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR
Interest-bearing bank HERITERR
and other borrowings Hitfam - 179,715 172,145 3,013,940 1,090,305 4,456,105
Interest payable in relationto B RIRITER R E ML 2
bank and other borrowings &/ | &, - 70,435 204,910 495,734 148,948 920,027
Trade payables LS - 580,609 62,420 - - 643,029
Lease liabilities HEaR - 3,770 20,527 115,705 192,395 332,397
Amounts due to related parties & B3 % 5 78 711,707 - - - - 711,707
Financial liabiliies included in &1 A - fth JE 5 508 &
other payables and accruals Bt EAMERERE 194,453 - - - - 194,453
906,160 834,529 460,002 3,625,379 1,431,648 7,257,718

AT R BRRERAT
TR R N erw 271
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

40. HHERBEE MR HR

L=
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d KBESEK (&)
Lessthan  3toless than 11056 Over
On demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
EAZE
REK S R3ME A L1218 A 1256 5 L Fotrs
2018 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
20185 ARBFTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTR
Interest-bearing bank and &t BERTTE R
other borrowings Hifam - 214,000 1,518,460 1,075,500 160,125 2,968,085
Interest payable in relationto ~ BHRITEFTREMETZ
bank and other borrowings  [EF I & - 41,651 66,816 139,286 21,791 269,544
Trade payables BB SR - 602,405 88,388 - - 690,793
Amounts due to related parties &1 B 7 58 986,909 - - - 986,909
Financial liabilities included in &1 A At 1< 5078 Jt
other payables and accruals R EFEME R AR 158,104 - - - 158,104
1,145,013 858,056 1,673,664 1,214,786 181,916 5,073,454
(e) Capital management (e) EXEE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2018.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(e) Capital management (continued) (e)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is

net debt divided by capital plus net debt. Net debt includes

interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, trade payables,

other payables and the accruals, and lease liabilities, less

cash and cash equivalents. Capital represents equity

attributable to owners of the parent. The gearing ratios as at

the end of each of the reporting periods was as follows:

S5 WA B

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

40. HHERBEE MR HR

=

EXREHE (&)

AEEEREEABLRERER
ZEERBELETREBRFERNUE
AIMETFHE - EFRRIEA R
TERREMER BNEZER
HibENFEREFERAREER
%'ﬁfﬁu%&fﬁ/\gﬁwﬁﬁ$%
RAFEBEAEEES -RERSHK
WEEBBLEWT:

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBEF T

Interest-bearing bank and other FTERITER R EAMER (A1iF29)

borrowings (note 29) 4,456,105 2,968,085
Trade payables FERE SRR 643,029 690,793
Other payables and accruals HiERRIBERETER 212,871 184,946
Lease liabilities HEAE 332,397 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents  Jil 1 & MRS EEY) (408,493) (548,907)
Net debt B 558 5,235,909 3,294,917
Equity attributable to NEIEB AR S

owners of the parent 5,784,051 5,582,986
Capital and net debt PR A N BT F 5B 11,019,960 8,877,903
Gearing ratio EEBENLE 48% 37%

qﬂléﬁﬁf}ﬂjzmﬁ%?féﬁﬁﬁ éu
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL AN. FLAF)ZMBHRAE

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

BERARRBANBERRZMBIRARZE

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

BHanT -

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBFT
Non-current assets RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R E R RREE 1,326,803 1,369,316
Property and equipment eI 10 12
Total non-current assets wIEREEE 1,326,813 1,369,328
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, other receivables and TEfTFRIE - EAth FEUGRIE &
other assets Hih&EE 2,169 4,633
Financial assets at fair value BRAREBEITAEBRZ
through profit or loss TREE 480,123 93,531
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UG B /B~ R FRIE 1,486,689 1,652,433
Inventories FE 111 108
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREZEED 5,575 9,414
Total current assets BREEE 1,974,667 1,760,119
Current liabilities REBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FESTB B R R FUAE 938,350 1,097,992
Amounts due to related parties FES A HE 5 8 166,084 50,792
Total current liabilities FEEN=E 1,104,434 1,148,784
Net current assets RBEEFE 870,233 611,335
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 2,197,046 1,980,663
Net assets BEE 2,197,046 1,980,663
Equity e
Equity attributable to owners of the parent & A FIHEH A EIGHERS
Share capital f& s 160,443 144,850
Reserves (note a) & (Hita) 2,036,603 1,835,813
Total equity R 2,197,046 1,980,663
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

42

43

POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

Note a:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 i

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

M. FRFZHBRRE

(#&)

Hiita -

AABEFHBRANT :

Share Exchange
premium fluctuation Accumulated Capital
account reserve losses reserve Total
iy EXKE
RER =1 RETER ERGRE #t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTRT AR%TR AR%¥TR AR¥TRT AR%BTxR
At 1 January 2018 201841 A1H 583,836 38,337 (51,135) 1,235,872 1,806,910
Repurchase of shares B B % 1 (10,603) - - - (10,603)
Total comprehensive income for the year — 4F A % T W 25 4258 - 58,143 (18,637) - 39,506
At 31 December 2018 and R2018F 128310 &

1 January 2019 20191 A1H 573,233 96,480 (69,772) 1,235,872 1,835,813
Issue of shares BEITRAD 148,461 - - - 148,461
Total comprehensive income for the year & N2 T U5 4258 - 32,701 19,628 - 52,329
At 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H 721,694 129,181 (50,144) 1,235,872 2,036,603

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Since the outbreak of the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”)
in January 2020, the prevention and control of the COVID-19
has been going on throughout China. The COVID-19 has certain
impacts on the business operation and overall economy in some
areas or industries, including in Hubei Province. This may affect the
Group to a certain extent, and the degree of impact depends on the
situation of the epidemic preventive measures, the duration of the
epidemic and the implementation of regulatory policies. The Group
will keep continuous attention on the situation of the COVID-19,
assess and react actively to its impacts on the financial position and
operating results of the Group. Up to the date of this report, the
assessment is still in progress.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 31 March 2020.

2. FEHERER

43

B20198 A mEZ W ([COVID-19]) R
2020F 1 AIB B LAPR - 2 Bl —EH B ¥
COVID-19% jisl; #% #& its - COVID-19%1 %5 T
R ITHE (BENILE) 2 EBEERE
BEBEXRETRE E—FEE L KA
BEREREE My BRERTEIBENE
H2IER REREREREEEREES
ST RE o AN 5 B S 8 4B B B COVID-19/Y 1
S BT R AE AR E T H AR SR BB S RO
MERENTE AR ANRE R ARGT
AT -

HEMBERR

BB HMA D EN2020F3 31 HEEE &t
HE R IR RE T B o

EPI%WBWF%%?*EEB A7
—hEFHR

275




SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
fok o BB B R

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controling N5 Bl &% B 2 2
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the

ERMBHRRZBERE
MBREREREREE BEMFEREROEE

published audited financial statements. E P (N
RESULTS E ¥
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
20194 20184 20174 20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETRT AREBFTT ARETT AREBTT
Revenue A 1,955,853 1,924,619 295,986 858,371 503,986
Profit/(loss) before tax BrELATRIE,
(EB#8E) 380,128 (130,814) 752,090 265,707 1,075,435
Income Tax Frigt (334,839) (91,183) (285,732) (128,642) (324,265)
Profit/(loss) for the year FNFIE, (EE) 45,289 (221,997) 466,358 137,065 751,170
Profit/(loss) attributable to: AN (SRR,
(E1E)
Equity holders of RAEIERER A
the Company 26,270 (243,524) 488,505 147,042 740,337
Non-controlling interests eI IE = 19,019 21,527 (22,147) (9,977) 10,833
45,289 (221,997) 466,358 137,065 751,170
= =3
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON- BE - ARRIEERER
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
31 December
12831H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
20194 20184 20174 20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR%®TFT AR®ETFT AREFTT ARETT
Total Assets BEE 14,508,724 13,231,588 13,254,174 11,288,945 11,293,164
Total Liabilities BEE (8,367,189)  (7,333,545)  (7,245,818)  (5,946,886)  (6,073,322)
Non-controlling Interests IR (357,484) (315,057) (171,234) (170,406) (180,383)
5,784,051 5,582,986 5,837,122 5,171,653 5,039,459
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